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THE RYLAND GROUP

2008 ANNUAL REPORT

We retooled our homes and financing programs to meet the needs and the

budgets of our customers Today many Ryland homes are smaller and more

value-oriented while maintaining
the rooms and features homebuyers desire

More than 8o
percent

of our homes are currently priced within FHA loan limits

making them more affordable for the
majority

of our first-time and move-up buyers

We aggressively marketed and sold our homes We addressed the sluggish sales

environment by offering quality
homes at great

values with attractive incentives

through constant flow of action-oriented marketing campaigns

We positioned Ryland for the ftiture We evaluated
every aspect

of our business

to enter 2009
leaner and more efficient Given these efficiencies and our available

cash balance Ryland is well-positioned to restore profitability seize
greater

market share and capitalize on opportunities that will arise in the recovery
from

this housing downturn

The numerous macro-economic factors that impact the housing market consumer

confidence and the overall economy make it difficult to determine when the

homebuilding business will improve However there is ample support
for the

long-term strength
and

viability
of the housing industry Harvards Joint Center

for Housing Studies projects
future household growth that requires about 1.45

million new homes
year

over the next ten years
At the same time the NAHB

projected demand for as many as 1.85
million new homes

year
in the future

Thanks to careful management through the downturn and sharp focus on the

future Ryland is ready to address that demand

We made great strides at Ryland in zoo8 It is
important

to note that none of

this
progress

is possible
without Rylands dedicated employees subcontractors

suppliers customers board of directors and shareholders We thank all of them

for their
support

and for their valuable role in ensuring Rylands success

CHAD DREIER LARRY NICHOLSON

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

THE RYLAND GROUP INC THE RYLAND GROUP INC
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PART

Item Business

With headquarters in Southern California The Ryland Group Inc Maryland corporation the Company is one of

the nations largest homebuilders and mortgage-finance company The Company is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE under the symbol RYL Founded in 1967 the Company has built more than 280000 homes In

addition Ryland Mortgage Company and its subsidiaries RMC have provided mortgage financing and related services

for more than 235000 homebuyers The Company consists of six operating business
segments

four geographically

determined homebuilding regions financial services and
corporate

The Companys operations span
all significant aspects

of the homebuying processfrom design construction and sale to

mortgage origination title insurance escrow and insurance services The homebuilding operations are by far the most

substantial
part

of its business comprising approximately 97
percent

of consolidated revenues in fiscal
year 2008 The

homebuilding segments generate nearly all of their revenues from the sale of completed homes with lesser amount from

the sale of land and lots In addition to building single-family detached homes the homebuilding segments
also build

attached homes such as town homes condominiums and some mid-rise buildings that share common walls and roofs The

Company builds homes for entry-level buyers as well as for first- and second-time
move-up buyers Its

prices generally range

from $100000 to more than $500000 with the
average price

of home closed during 2008 being $252000 The

financial services segment
offers

mortgage title escrow and insurance services to the Companys homeowners and

subcontractors

The Company has traditionally concentrated on expanding Its operations by investing its available
capital in both

existing

and new markets The Company focuses on achieving high return on invested capital and establishing profitable operations

in
every one of its markets New and existing communities are evaluated based on return profitability and cash flow

benchmarks and both senior and local
management are incentivized based on their

ability to achieve such returns

Management monitors the land acquisition process
sales revenues margins and returns achieved in each of the Companys

markets as part
of its capital evaluation

process See discussion in Part Item IA Risk Factors

The Company is highly diversified throughout the United States and
attempts to have no more than 10

percent
of its

deployed capital allocated to any given
market It believes diversification not only minimizes its

exposure to economic and

market fluctuations but also enhances its growth potential Capital is strategically allocated to avoid concentration in
any

given geographic area and to reduce the risk associated with excessive dependence on local market anomalies Subject to

macroeconomic and local market conditions the Company generally tries to either
manage

its
exposure or to expand its

presence
in its existing

markets in an effort to be among the largest builders in each of those markets It may continue

diversification by selectively entering new markets primarily through establishing start-up or satellite
operations in markets

near its existing
divisions

The Companys national scale has provided opportunities
for

negotiation
of volume discounts and rebates from material

suppliers Additionally it has access to lower cost of capital due to the strength and transparency
of its balance sheet as

well as to its banking and capital markets relationships While the Companys operating margins
have suffered significantly

in the current economic climate the Company believes that economies of scale and diversification have contributed to

improvements in its operating margins during periods 0f growth and mitigated its overall risk in most periods of
declining

housing demand

Committed to product innovation the Company conducts ongoing research Into consumer preferences and trends It is

constantly adapting and improving its house plans design features customized
options

and
mortgage programs

It strives to

offer value selection location and quality to all homebuyers

The Company is dedicated to building quality homes and customer relationships With customer satisfaction as major

priority it continues to make Innovative enhancements designed to attract homebuyers The Company continues to develop

its ability to collect customer feedback via its Web site which includes online
systems

for
tracking requests processing

issues and improving customer interaction In addition it uses third
party to analyze customer feedback in order to better

serve its homebuyers needs

The Company enters into land
development Joint Ventures from time to time as means of

building lot positions

reducing Its risk profile and enhancing its return on capital It
periodically partners

with
developers

other homebuilders or

financial investors to develop finished lots for sale to the
joint

ventures members or other third parties



Aside from being an added value to customers the financial services segment generates profit for the Company while

reducing
its risk competitively high capture rate for

mortgage financing and other services allows the Company to

monitor its backlog and closing process
Risk is further reduced because the majority

of loans originated are sold within

one business day
of the date they close The third party purchaser then services and manages

the loans assuming nearly all

of the credit risk 0f borrower default

Homebuilding

General

The Companys homes are built On-Site and marketed in four major geographic regions or segments
The Company

operated
in the following metropolitan areas at December 31 2008

Region/Segment Major Markets Served

North Baltimore Chicago Delaware Indianapolis Minneapolis and Washington D.C

Southeast Atlanta Charleston Charlotte Jacksonville Myrtle Beach Orlando and Tampa

Texas Austin Dallas Houston and San Antonio

West Calfornias Central
Valley Ca4fornias Coachella Valley Calfornias inland Empire Denver Las

Vegas
and

Phoenix

The Company has decentralized operations to provide more flexibility
to its local division presidents and management

teams Its homebuilding divisions across the country generally consists of division president controller and other

management personnel
focused on land entitlement acquisition and development sales construction customer service and

purchasing as well as accounting and administrative personnel The Companys operations in each of its homebuilding

markets may differ due to number of market-specific factors These factors include regional economic conditions and job

growth land availability and local land development consumer preferences competition from other homebuilders and home

resale activity The Company not only considers each 0f these factors upon entering into new markets but also in

determining the extent of its operations and capital allocation in existing
markets The Companys local management teams

are familiar with these factors and their market experience and expertise are critical in making decisions regarding
local

operations

The Company provides oversight and centralizes key elements of its homebuilding business through
its

corporate
and

regional offices The Company has two regional offices each generally consisting of region president vice president of

financial operations and additional management personnel focused on human resources real estate legal support marketing

and operations Regional offices provide oversight and standardization where appropriate The staff in these offices monitors

activities by using various operational metrics in order to achieve Company return benchmarks

The Company markets attached and detached single-family homes which are generally targeted to entry-level and first- and

second-time
move-up buyers Its diverse product

line is tailored to the local styles and preferences
found in each of its

geographic markets The product line offered in particular community
is determined in conjunction with the land

acquisition process
and is dependent upon number of factors including consumer preferences competitive product

offerings and development costs Architectural services are generally outsourced to increase creativity
and to ensure that the

Companys home designs are consistent with local market trends

Homebuyers are able to customize certain features of their homes by selecting from numerous options
and upgrades

displayed in the Companys model homes and design centers These design centers which are conveniently located in most

of the Companys markets al5o represent an increasing source of additional revenue and profit for the Company Custom

options contributed approximately 17.0 percent
of revenues in 2008 and resulted in significantly higher margins in

comparison to base homes

Land Acquisition and Development

The Companys long-term objective is to control portfolio of building lots sufficient to meet its anticipated homebuilding

requirements for period of approximately
four to five

years
The Company acquires

land only after completing due

diligence and
feasibility

studies The land acquisition process
is controlled by corporate

land approval committee to help

ensure that transactions meet the Companys standards for financial performance
and risk In the ordinary course of its

homebuilding business the Company utilizes both direct acquisition and option contracts to control building
lots for use in

the sale and construction of homes The Companys direct land acquisition activities include the purchase of finished lots

from developers and the purchase
of undeveloped entitled land from third parties

The Company generally does not

purchase unentitled or unzoned land



Although control of lot
inventory through the use of option contracts minimizes the Companys investment such

strategy

is not viable in certain markets due to the absence of third-party land developers In other markets competitive conditions

may prevent
the Company from controlling quality lots solely through the use of option contracts In such situations the

Company may acquire undeveloped entitled land and/or finished lots on bulk basis The Company utilizes the selective

development of land to gain access to prime locations increase margins and position itself as leader in the area through

its influence over communitys character layout and amenities After determining the size style price range density layout

and overall
design of community the Company obtains governmental and other approvals necessary to begin the

development process Land is then graded roads utilities amenities and other infrastructures are installed and the

individual home sites are created

Materials Costs

Substantially all materials used in construction are available from number of sources but may fluctuate in price due to

various factors To increase purchasing efficiencies the Company not only standardizes certain
building materials and

products but also acquires such products through national supply contracts The Company has on occasion experienced

shortages of certain materials If shortages were to occur in the future such shortages could result in longer construction

times and higher costs than those experienced in the
past

Construction

Substantially all On-site construction is performed for fixed price by independent subcontractors selected on

competitive-bid basis The Company generally requires minimum of three competitive bids for each phase of construction

Construction activities are supervised by the Companys production team which schedules and coordinates subcontractor

work monitors quality and ensures compliance with local zoning and building codes The Company requires substantially

all of its subcontractors to have workmans compensation insurance and general liability
insurance including construction

defect
coverage

Construction time for homes depends on weather availability of labor or subcontractors materials home

size geological conditions and other factors The duration of the home construction
process

is
generally between three and

six months The Company has an integrated financial and homebuilding management system that assists in scheduling

production and controlling costs Through this
system

the Company monitors construction status and job costs incurred

for each home during each phase of construction The
system provides for detailed budgeting and allows the Company to

track and control actual costs versus construction bids for each community and subcontractor The Company has on

occasion experienced shortages of skilled labor in certain markets If shortages were to occur in the future such shortages

could result in longer construction times and higher costs than those experienced in the
past

The Company its subcontractors and its suppliers maintain insurance subject to deductibles and self-insured amounts to

protect against various risks associated with homebuilding activities including among others general liability all-risk

property workmans compensation automobile and employee fidelity The Company accrues for its
expected costs associated

with the deductibles and self-insured amounts when
appropriate

Marketing

The Company generally markets its homes to entry-level and first- and second-time
move-up buyers through targeted

product offerings in each of the communities in which it
operates

The Companys marketing strategy
is determined during

the land acquisition and feasibility stage of communitys development Employees and independent real estate brokers sell

the Companys homes generally by showing furnished models new order is reported when customers sales contract has

been
signed by the homebuyer approved by the Company and deposit is taken subject to cancellation The Company

normally starts construction of home when customer has selected lot chosen floor plan and received preliminary

mortgage approval However construction may begin prior to this in order to satisfy market demand for
completed homes

and to facilitate construction scheduling and/or cost savings Homebuilding revenues are recognized when home sales are

closed title and possession are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement from the

homebuilder

The Company advertises directly to potential homebuyers through the internet and in
newspapers and trade publications as

well as with marketing brochures and newsletters It also uses billboards radio and television advertising and its Web site to

market the location price range
and availability of its homes The Company also

attempts to operate in conspicuously

located communities that permit it to take advantage of local traffic
patterns

Model homes
play significant role in the

Companys marketing efforts by not only creating an attractive atmosphere but also
by displaying options and upgrades

The Companys sales contracts typically require an earnest money deposit The amount of earnest money required varies

between markets and communities Additionally buyers are generally required to pay additional deposits when they select



options or upgrades for their homes Most of the Companys sales contracts stipulate
that when homebuyers cancel their

contracts with the Company it has the right to retain the homebuyers earnest money and option deposits however its

operating divisions may choose to refund portion
of such deposits The Companys sales contracts may also include

contingencies that permit homebuyers to cancel and receive refund of their deposits
if

they cannot obtain mortgage

financing at prevailing or specified interest rates within specified time period The Companys contracts may also include

other contingencies such as the sale of an existing
home The length of time between the signing of sales contract for

home and delivery of the home to the buyer may vary depending on customer preferences permit approval and

construction cycles

Customer Service and Warranties

The Companys operating divisions are responsible for pre-closing quality control inspections and responding to homebuyers

post-closing needs The Company believes that prompt and courteous acknowledgment of its homebuyers
needs during and

after construction reduces post-closing repair costs enhances its reputation for quality and service and ultimately leads to

repeat and referral business

The Company provides
each homeowner with product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one year

certain

mechanical systems
for two years

and structural
systems

for ten years
from the time of closing The Company believes its

warranty program meets or exceeds terms customarily offered in the homebuilding industry The subcontractors who

perform most of the actual construction also provide warranties on workmanship

Seasonality

The Company experiences seasonal variations in its quarterly operating results and capital requirements Historically new

order activity is higher during the
spring

and summer months This is primarily
due to the preference of many homebuyers

to act during
those periods As result the Company typically

has more homes under construction closes more homes and

has greater revenues and better operating results in the third and fourth
quarters

of fiscal year However historical results

are not necessarily indicative of current or future homebuilding activities

Financial Services

The Companys financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services as well as title escrow and

insurance services to its homebuyers
The Companys financial services segment

includes RMC RH Insurance Company

Inc RHIC LPS Holdings Corporation
and its subsidiaries LPS and Columbia National Risk Retention Group Inc

CNRRG By aligning its operations
with the Companys homebuilding segments

the financial services
segment leverages

this relationship to offer its lending services to homebuyers In addition to being valuable asset to customers the financial

services
segment generates profit

for the Company Providing mortgage financing and other services to its customers allows

the Company to better monitor its backlog
and closing process

The majority of loans originated are sold within one

business day of the date they close The third party purchaser
then services and

manages
the loans assuming nearly all of

the credit risk of borrower default In 2008 the Company entered into mortgage warehouse facility in order to finance its

mortgage
loans and increase the number of investors to which it sells the loans it originates The Company also provided

construction-related insurance to subcontractors in its western markets through June 2008 Additionally
the financial

services segment
also offers insurance for

liability
risks specifically

homeowners structural warranty coverage arising in

connection with the homebuilding business of the Company

Loan Origination

In 2008 RMCs mortgage origination operations consisted primarily
of the Companys homebuilder loans which were

originated
in connection with the sale of the Companys homes During the

year mortgage operations originated 5634

loans totaling $1.3 billion of which 99.6 percent was for purchases
of homes built by the Company and the remaining

amount was for either purchases of homes built by others purchases
of existing homes or the refinancing

of existing

mortgage
loans

RMC arranges
various

types
of mortgage financing including conventional Federal Housing Administration FHA and

Veterans Administration VA mortgages with various fixed- and adjustable-rate features RMC is approved to originate

loans that conform to the guidelines established by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC and the

Federal National Mortgage Association FNMA The Company sells the loans it originates along
with the related

servicing rights to others



Title and Escrow Services

Cornerstone Title Company wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC doing business as Ryland Title Company provides title

services and acts as title insurance agent primarily for the Companys homebuyers At December 31 2008 it provided

title services in Arizona Colorado Delaware Florida Illinois Indiana Maryland Minnesota Nevada Texas and Virginia

The Company also operated Ryland Escrow Company until February 2008 which performed escrow and closing functions

for the Companys homebuyers in California During 2008 Ryland Title Company and Ryland Escrow Company provided

these services to 973 percent of the Companys homebuyers in the markets in which they operate compared to

96.8
percent during 2007

Insurance Services

Ryland Insurance Services RIS wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC provides insurance services to the Companys

homebuyers At December 31 2008 RIS was licensed to operate in all of the states in which the Companys homebuilding

segments operate During 2008 it provided insurance services to 495
percent

of the Companys homebuyers compared to

54.2
percent during 2007

RHIC is
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that provided insurance services to the homebuilding segments

subcontractors in certain markets RHIC ceased providing such services effective June 2008 RHIC is registered and

licensed under Section 431 Article 19 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes and is required to meet certain minimum capital and

surplus requirements Additionally no dividends may be paid without
prior approval of the Hawaii Insurance Commissioner

CNRRG is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and some of its affiliates CNRRG was established to directly

insure
liability

risks specifically homeowners structural
warranty coverage arising

in connection with the
homebuilding

business of the Company and its affiliates

Corporate

Corporate is
non-operating business segment whose

purpose
is to support operations Corporate departments are

responsible for
establishing operational policies and internal control standards implementing strategic initiatives and

monitoring compliance with
policies and controls throughout the Companys operations Corporate acts as an internal

source of capital and provides financial human resource information technology insurance legal marketing national

purchasing and tax compliance services In addition it performs administrative functions associated with publicly traded

entity

Real Estate and Economic Conditions

The Company is
significantly affected by fluctuations in economic activity interest rates and levels of consumer confidence

The effects of these fluctuations differ among the various geographic markets in which the Company operates Higher

interest rates and the
availability

of homeowner financing may affect the ability of buyers to qualify for
mortgage financing

and decrease demand for new homes As result rising interest rates generally will decrease the Companys home sales and

mortgage originations
In addition continued decline in the availability of

mortgage products due to the continued

tightening of credit standards negatively impacted the Companys ability to attract homebuyers during 2008 The

Companys business is also affected by local economic conditions such as employment rates consumer confidence and

housing demand in the markets in which it operates All 0f the Companys markets have experienced significant decline in

housing demand

Inventory risk can be substantial for homebuilders The market value of land lots and housing inventories fluctuates as

result of
changing market and economic conditions The Company must continuously locate and acquire land not only for

expansion
into new markets but also for replacement and

expansion
of land inventory within current markets The

Company employs various measures designed to control inventory risk including corporate
land approval process and

continuous review by
senior management It cannot however assure that these measures will avoid or eliminate this risk and

the Company has
experienced substantial losses from inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs in recent periods

Competition

The Company competes in each of its markets with large number of national regional and local
homebuilding companies

The strength and expanded presence
of national homebuilders plus the viability of regional and local homebuilders impacts

the level of competition in many markets The Company also
competes

with other housing alternatives including existing

homes and rental properties Principal competitive factors in the homebuilding industry include price design quality

reputation relationships with developers accessibility of subcontractors availability and location of lots and availability of

customer financing The Companys financial services
segment competes

with other
mortgage

bankers to arrange financing



for homebuyers Principal competitive factors include interest rates fees and other features of
mortgage

loan products

available to the consumer

Employees

At December 31 2008 the Company had 1303 employees The Company considers its employee relations to be good No

employees are represented by
collective bargaining agreement

Web Site Access to Reports

The Company files annual quarterly and special reports proxy statements and other information with the U.S Securities

and Exchange
Commission SEC under the Exchange

Act and the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities

Act Any document the Company files may be read at the SECs public reference room Room 1580 at 100 Street NE

Washington D.C 20549 Please call the SEC toll-free at I-800-SEC-0330 for information regarding
its public reference

room The Company files information electronically with the SEC The Companys SEC filings are available from the SECs

Web site at www.sec.gov Reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file

electronically are readily obtainable there

Stockholders securities analysts and others seeking information about the Companys business operations and financial

performance can receive copies of its 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form I0-Q Current

Reports on Form 8-K all amendments to those
reports

and other documents filed with the SEC without charge by

contacting the Companys Corporate Secretarys office at 818 223-7500 by writing to The Ryland Group Inc Investor

Relations 24025 Park Sorrento Suite 400 Calabasas California 91302 or via e-mail at investors@ryland.com In addition all

filings
with the SEC news releases and quarterly earnings announcements including

live audio and replays of the most

recent quarterly earnings conference calls can be accessed free of charge on the Companys Web site at www.iyland.com

Information on the Companys Web site is not part
of this report The Company makes its Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form I0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those
reports

filed or furnished

pursuant
to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act available on its Web site as soon as possible after it electronically

files such material with or furnishes it to the SEC To retrieve
any

of this information visit www.ryland.com select

Investors and scroll down the
page to SEC Filings The Company uses its Web site as one method for distributing

information about the Company to the securities marketplace

Item IA Risk Factors

The homebuilding industiy
is

cyclical
in nature and has

experienced downturns which have in the
past

and
may in the future cause the Company to

incur losses in financial
and

operating
results

The Company is affected by the cyclical nature of the homebuilding industry which is sensitive to many factors including

fluctuations in general and local economic conditions interest rates housing demand employment levels levels of new and

existing
homes for sale demographic trends availability of homeowner financing and levels of consumer confidence In

2008 the markets served by the Company and the U.S homebuilding industry as whole continued to experience

significant and sustained decrease in demand for new homes and an oversupply of new and existing
homes available for sale

The homebuilding industry has been impacted by
lack of consumer confidence housing affordability and large supplies of

resale and new home inventories which has resulted in an industry-wide softening of demand for new homes In addition

an oversupply of alternatives to new homes such as rental properties and existing homes has depressed prices
and reduced

margins for the sale of new homes These trends resulted in overall fewer home sales greater cancellations of home purchase

agreements by buyers higher inventories of unsold homes and the increased use by homebuilders of discounts incentives

price concessions and other marketing
efforts to close home sales in 2008 compared to the

past
several

years Reflecting

these demand and supply trends the Company experienced large drop in net orders decline in the selling price of new

homes sold and reduction in margins
in 2008 relative to prior years

The Company cannot predict how long these market

conditions will continue and what affect they might have on the Companys financial and operating performance

Because almost all
of

the Companys homebuyers finance
the

purchase of
their homes the terms and availability of mortgage financing can affect

the

demand for and the
ability

to complete the purchase of
home as well as the Companys future operating

and
financial

results

The Companys business and earnings depend on the ability of its homebuyers to obtain financing for the purchase of their

homes Many of the Companys homebuyers must sell their existing
homes in order to buy home from the Company

During 2008 the mortgage lending industry experienced significant instability
due to among other things defaults on

subprime loans and resulting decline in the market value of such loans In light
of these developments lenders investors

regulators and other third parties questioned
the adequacy of lending standards and other credit requirements for several

loan
programs

made available to borrowers in recent years
This has led to tightened

credit
requirements

and reduced



liquidity Deterioration in credit
quality among subprime and other nonconforming loans has caused most lenders to

eliminate subprime mortgages and most other loan products that do not conform to Fannie Mae Freddie Mac FHA or

VA standards Fewer loan products and tighter
loan

qualifications
in turn make it more difficult for some categories of

borrowers to finance the purchase of new homes or the
purchase

of
existing homes from potential move-up buyers who

wish to purchase one of the Companys homes In general these developments have resulted in reduction in demand for

the homes sold by the Company and have delayed any general improvement in the housing market Furthermore they have

resulted in reduction in demand for the
mortgage loans that the Company originates through RMC If the Companys

potential homebuyers or the
buyers

of the
homebuyers existing homes cannot obtain suitable financing the result will have

an adverse effect on the Companys operating and financial results and performance

The Company is subject to
inventory

risk for its land options for land building
lots and

housing inventory

The market value of the Companys land building lots and housing inventories fluctuates as result of changing market and

economic conditions In addition inventory carrying costs can result in losses in poorly performing projects or markets

Changes in economic and market conditions have caused the Company to dispose of land options for land and housing

inventories on basis that has resulted in loss and required the Company to write down or reduce the carrying value of

its inventory During the 12-month period ended December 31 2008 the Company decided not to
pursue development

and construction in certain areas where it held land or had made option deposits which resulted in $22.5 million in

recorded write-offs of option deposits and preacquisition costs In addition market conditions led to recorded land-related

impairments on communities and land in the
aggregate amount of $257.4 million during the same period The Company

can provide no assurance that it will not need to record additional write-offs in the future

In the course of its business the Company makes acquisitions of land Although it employs various measures including its

land approval process and continued review by senior management designed to
manage inventory risks the Company cannot

assure that these measures will enable it to avoid or eliminate its inventory risk

Construction costs can fluctuate and impact the Companys margins

The
homebuilding industry has from time to time experienced significant difficulties including shortages of qualified trades

people reliance on local subcontractors who may be inadequately capitalized shortages of materials and volatile increases in

the cost of materials particularly increases in the price of lumber drywall and cement which are significant components
of

home construction costs The Company may not be able to recapture increased costs by raising prices either because of

market conditions or because it fixes its prices at the time home sales contracts are signed

Fluctuations in interest rates can
affect

the Companys business and
profitability

Interest rates can significantly affect the Companys lines of business Higher interest rates affect the ability of buyers to

qualify for mortgage financing and decrease demand for new homes As result rising interest rates can decrease the

Companys home sales and mortgage originations Any of these factors could have an adverse impact on the Companys

results of
operations or financial position

Because the homebuilding industry is
competitive

the business
practices of

other homebuilders can have an impact on the Companys financial
results

and cause these results to decline

The residential
housing industry is highly competitive The Company competes in each of its markets with large number

of national regional and local homebuilding companies In 2008 this competition caused the Company to adjust selling

prices in response to competitive conditions in the markets in which it operates and required the Company to increase

selling incentives We cannot predict whether these measures will be successful or if additional incentives will be made in

the future The Company also competes with other housing alternatives including existing homes and rental housing

Principal competitive factors in homebuilding are home price availability of customer financing design quality reputation

relationship
with

developers accessibility of subcontractors and availability and location of homesites Any of the foregoing

factors could have an adverse impact on the Companys financial performance and results of
operations

The Companys financial services segment competes with other mortgage bankers to
arrange financing for homebuyers

Principal competitive factors include interest rates fees and other features of mortgage loan products available to the

consumer

Because the
Companys business is

subject
to various

regulatory
and environmental limitations it

may
not be able to conduct its business as planned

The Companys homebuilding segments are subject to various local state and federal laws statutes ordinances rules and

regulations concerning zoning building design construction stormwater permitting and discharge and similar matters as

well as
open space

wetlands and environmentally protected areas These include local regulations that
impose

restrictive

I0



zoning and density requirements
in order to limit the number of homes that can be built within the boundaries of

particular area as well as other municipal or city land planning restrictions requirements or limitations The Company may

also experience periodic delays in homebuilding projects
due to regulatory compliance municipal appeals and other

government planning processes
in any of the areas in which it

operates

With
respect to originating processing selling and servicing mortgage loans the Companys financial services segment is

subject to the rules and regulations of the FHA FHLMC FNMA VA and U.S Department of Housing and Urban

Development Mortgage origination activities are further subject to the Equal Credit Opportunity Act Federal

Truth-in-Lending Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and their associated regulations
These and other

federal and state statutes and regulations prohibit discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines which include

provisions for audits inspections and appraisals require credit reports on prospective borrowers fix maximum loan amounts

and require
the disclosure of certain information

concerning
credit and settlement costs The Company is required to

submit audited financial statements annually and each
agency

or other entity
has its own financial

requirements
The

Companys affairs are also subject to examination by these entities at all times to assure compliance with applicable

regulations policies and procedures

The Companys ability to grow
the business and

operations of
the Company depends

to
sign ficant degree upon

the Companys ability
to access

capital on favorable terms

The ability to access capital on favorable terms is an important factor in
growing

the Companys business and operations in

profitable manner In December 2007 Moodys lowered the Companys debt rating to non-investment grade with

negative outlook and Standard Poors also reduced the Companys investment grade rating to non-investment grade in

May 2008 The Company has received additional downgrades from these agencies and remains on negative watch The loss

of an investment grade rating affects the cost of borrowing capacity and covenants under the Companys revolving credit

facility and makes it more difficult and costly for the Company to access the debt capital
markets for funds that may be

required to implement the Companys business plans and achieve growth objectives

Natural disasters
may

have sgnficant impact on the Companys business

The climates and geology of many of the states in which the Company operates present
increased risks of natural disasters

To the extent that hurricanes severe storms tornadoes earthquakes droughts floods wildfires or other natural disasters or

similar events occur its business in those states may be adversely affected

The Companys net
operating

loss carryforwards could be
substantially

limited it
experiences an ownership change

as
defined

in the Internal Revenue

Code

The Company has experienced and continue to experience substantial operating losses including realized losses for tax

purposes
from sales of

inventory
and land previously written down for financial statement

purposes
which would

produce

net operating losses and unrealized losses that may reduce potential friture federal income tax obligations It may also

generate
net operating loss carryforwards in future

years

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code contains rules that limit the ability of company that undergoes an ownership

change which is generally any change in ownership
of more than 50.0

percent
of its stock over three-year period to

utilize its net operating loss carryforwards and certain built-in losses recognized in
years

after the ownership change These

rules generally operate by focusing on ownership changes among stockholders owning directly or indirectly 5.0 percent or

more of the stock of company and any change in ownership arising from new issuance of stock by the company

If the Company undergoes an ownership change for
purposes

of Section 382 as result of future transactions involving Its

common stock including purchases or sales of stock between 5.0 percent stockholders the Companys ability to use Its net

operating
loss carryforwards and to recognize certain built-in losses would be subject to the limitations of Section 382

Depending on the resulting limitation significant portion of the Companys net operating loss carryforwards could expire

before it would be able to use them The Companys inability to utilize its net operating loss carryforwards could have

negative impact on its financial position and results of operations

II



in December 2008 the Company announced that its Board of Directors adopted stockholder rights plan designed to

preserve
stockholder value and the value of certain tax assets primarily associated with net loss carryforwards and built in

losses under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code The Company can provide no assurance that the rights plan will

protect
the Companys ability to use its net operating

losses and unrealized losses to reduce potential future federal income

tax obligations See Note Employee Incentive Stock and Shareholder Rights Plans

Because this

report
contains forward_looking statements it may not prove to be accurate

This
report

and other Company releases and
filings

with the SEC may contain forward-looking statements The Company

generally identifies forward-looking statements using
words like believe intend expect may should plan

project contemplate anticipate target estimate foresee goal likely will or similar statements Because these

statements reflect its current views concerning future events they involve risks uncertainties and assumptions including the

risks and uncertainties identified in this
report

Actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in these

forward-looking statements The Company does not undertake to update its forward-looking statements or risk factors to

reflect future events or circumstances

Item TB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The Company leases office
space

for its
corporate headquarters in Calabasas California and for its IT Department and

RMCs operations center in Scottsdale Arizona In addition the Company leases office
space in the various markets in

which it operates

Item Legal Proceedings

Contingent liabilities may arise from obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business or from the usual obligations of

on-site housing producers for the completion of contracts

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses Based on evaluation of these

matters and discussions with counsel management
believes that liabilities

arising
from these matters will not have material

adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

During
the fourth

quarter
of the fiscal

year
ended December 31 2008 there were no matters submitted to vote of

security holders

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market for Common Equity Common Stock Prices and Dividends

The Company lists Its common shares on the NYSE trading under the symbol RYL The latest reported sale
price

of

the Companys common stock on February 12 2009 was $17.49 and there were approximately 2087 common

stockholders of record

The table below
presents high and low market

prices
and dividend information for the Company

DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS
DECLARED DECLARED

LOW PER SHARE LOW PER SHARE2008 HIGH 2007 HIGH

First
quarter

35.64 20.25 0.12 First
quarter

60.13 41.96 0.12

Second quarter 37.85 21.81 0.12 Second
quarter

48.61 37.22 0.12

Third quarter 30.00 18.11 0.12 Third
quarter

39.33 20.19 0.12

Fourth
quarter

27.75 9.95 0.03 Fourth
quarter

29.67 19.51 0.12
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not purchase any
of its own equity securities during the

year
ended December 31 2008

On December 2006 the Company announced that it had received authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase

shares totaling $175.0 million or approximately 3.1 million shares based on the Companys stock price on that date

During 2007 approximately 747000 shares had been repurchased in accordance with this authorization At December 31

2008 there were approximately 8.1 million additional shares available for purchase in accordance with this authorization

based on the Companys stock price on that date This authorization does not have an expiration date

Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or be filed with the

SEC nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into
any

future
filing

under the Securities Act or the

Exchange Act except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates
it by reference into such filing

The following graph compares
the Companys cumulative total stockholder returns since December 31 2003 to the Dow

Jones U.S Home Construction and SP 500 indices for the calendar
years ending December 31

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among The Ryland Group Inc The SP 500 Index

And The Dow Jones U.S Home Construction Index

12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08

The Ryland Group Inc _i_ Sp 500 Dow Jones U.S Home Construction

$100 invested on 12/31/03 in stock or index_tnciudinp
reinvestment of dividends

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The Companys equity compensation plan information as of December 31 2008 is summarized as follows

PLAN CATEGORY

NUMBER OF SECURITIES TO WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

BE ISSUED UPON EXERCISE EXERCISE PRICE OF

OF OUTSTANDING OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
WARRANTS AND RIGHTS WARRANTS AND RIGHTS

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders 4134903 37.97 2518606

Equity compensation plans not approved

by
stockholders

$200

$150

$100

$50

$0

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR

FUTURE ISSUANCE UNDER
EQUITY COMPENSATION

PLANS EXCLUDING
SECURITIES REFLECTED IN

COLUMN

The Company does not have
any equity compensation plans

that have not been
approved by

stockholders
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Item Selected Financial Data

in millions except per
share

data
unaudited

ANNUAL RESULTS

REVENUES

Homebuilding 1912 2960 4654 4726 3867

Financial services 64 92 126 117 107

TOTAL REVENUES

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures

Selling general
and administrative

Expenses related to
early

retirement of debt

Earnings loss before taxes

Tax
expense benefit

NET EARNINGS LOSS _____________________________________

YEAR-END POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Housing inventories

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Debt

Other liabilities and
minority interest

TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

PER COMMON SHARE DATA

NET EARNINGS LOSS
Basic

Diluted

DIVIDENDS DECLARED

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Adjusted EBITDAi

Adjusted EBITDA/interest incurred2

Return on beginning equity3

Net debt-to-capital4

Earnings before interest taxes depreciation
and amortization and

impairments Adjusted EBITDA is measure commonly
used in the

homebuilding industiy
and

is presented to

assist in
understanding

the
ability of

the
operations of

the Company to generate
cash

beyond
that which

is
needed to service existing interest requirements

and
ongoing tax obligations

Adjusted
EBITDA

equals net earnings loss before interest expense previously capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales income taxes depreciation
and

amortization and
inventory

and other asset impairment charges
and

writeqffi Adjusted
EBITDA is not financial measure recognized in accordance with

generally accepted

accounting principles CAAP Adjusted
E3ITDA should neither be considered an alternative to net earnings

determined in accordance with GA.AP as an indicator
of operating

performance nor an alternative to cash
flows from operating

activities determined in accordance with GAAP as measure of liquidity

Adjusted E.BITDA/interest incurred is calculated as Adjusted
EBITDA

defined above
divided

by
total interest incurred which is the sum of interest expense

and
capitalized interest

for
the period

Return on beginning equity
is calculated as net earnings loss

divided
by

total stockholders
equity at the

beginning of
the

period

Net debttocapital is calculated as debt net
of cash divided

by
the sum of

debt and total stockholders
equity

net
of

cash The Company believes the net debttocapital
ratio is

usful
in

understanding the leverage employed in its

operations
and in comparing

it with other homebuilders

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

1976 3052 4780 4843 3974

2003 3034 3640 3538 2970

44

334 438 565 576 489

406 420 567 721 521

86 207 274 201

397 334 360 447 320

423 244 215 461 88

1096 1813 2772 2580 2024

344 494 430 346 313

1863 2551 3417 3387 2425

790 839 950 922 559

348 587 956 1089 809

1138 1426 1906 2011 1368

725 1125 1511 1376 1057

9.33 7.92 8.14 9.52 6.72

9.33 7.92 7.83 9.03 6.36

0.39 0.48 0.48 0.30 0.21

16.97 26.68 35.46 29.68 22.32

33 260 744 814 604

0.7X 4.2X I0.3X I2.2X II.4X

35.3% 22.I% 26.2% 42.3% 38.9%

33.6% 34.6% 32.7% 25.1% 30.8%



The following table sets forth the
computation

of Adjusted EBITDA for each period presented

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2005 2004in thousands
2008 2007 2006

Earnings loss before taxes 405764 420098 567108 721051 521212

Inventory
and other asset impairments and write-offs 325480 583363 81314 3798 1588

Interest expense
220 98 205 738 1227

Capitalized
interest amortized to cost of sales 61146 41689 48708 45483 41764

Depreciation
and amortization 52215 54494 46731 43166 38519

Adjusted EBITDA 33297 259546 744066 814236 604310

reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided by operations the most directly comparable GAAP measure is

provided below for each period presented

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2005 2004in thousands
2008 2007 2006

Net cash
provided by used for operating

activities 248426 228140 14637 216264 78471

Decrease increase in inventories 383237 273355 263444 494769 587150

Tax
expense benefit 9179 86572 207166 273999 200667

Deferred tax valuation allowance 143784 75166

Interest
expense

220 98 205 738 1227

Capitalized interest amortized to cost of sales 61146 41689 48708 45483 41764

Net change in other assets payables and other liabilities 239388 412984 217488 175358 104424

Stock-based compensation expense 9048 12257 25593 18862 15208

Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock
options

and
vesting

of

restricted stock 3138 6714 14632 30505 17475

Other 26227 17271 3379 7708 10920

Adjusted EBITDA 33297 259546 744066 814236 604310
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Note Certain statements in this Annual Report may
be

regarded as forwardlooking statements within the
meaning of

the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 and

may qualfy for the
safe

harbor
provided for in Section iF of the Exchange Act These forwardlooking

statements
represent

the Companys expectations
and

beliefs concerning future events
and no assurance can be

given
that the results described in this

Annual
Report

will be achieved These forwardlooking statements can generally
be

identified by
the use

of
statements that include words such as

anticipate believe estimate expect foresee goal intend likely may plan project should target will or other similar words

or phrases
All forwardlooking statements contained herein are based

upon information
available to the

Company on the date
of

this Annual Report

Except as may
be

required
under

applicable law the Company does not undertake any oblgation
to

update
or revise any forwardlooking statements

whether as result
of

new information future events or otherwise

These forwardlooking statements are subject to risks
uncertainties and other factors many of

which are outside
of

the Companys control
that could

cause actual results to dffer materially from the results discussed in the forwardlooking statements The
factors

and
assumptions upon

which
any

forwardlooking statements herein are based are subject to risks and uncertainties which include among others

economic changes nationally or in the Companys local markets including volatility
and increases in interest rates inflation

continued weakness

in consumer demand and
confidence

levels and the state of the market for homes in general

instability
and

uncertainty
in the

mortgage lending market including
revisions to underwriting standards

for borrowers

the
availability

and cost of
land and the future value

of
land held or under development

increased land development costs on projects
under development

shortages of
skilled labor or raw materials used in the

production of houses

increased
prices for labor

land and raw materials used in the
production of houses

increased
competition

failure to
anticipate

or react to changing consumer preferences
in home

design

increased costs and
delays

in land development or home construction
resulting from adverse weather conditions

potential delays or increased costs in
obtaining necessary permits as result

of changes
to laws regulations

or governmental policies including

those that
affect zoning density building

standards and the environment

delays in obtaining approvals from applicable regulatory agencies
and others in connection with the Companys communities and land

activities

changes in the Companys effective tax rate and assumptions and valuations related to its tax accounts

the risk
factors

set forth
in this Annual Report on Form 10K and

other
factors over which the Company has little or no control

Results of Operations

Overview

Operating conditions became progressively worse during 2008 as the economys decline accelerated late in the
year

extending
the industrys downturn which began in 2006 Since the latter half of 2007 lack of availability

of
mortgage

products resulting
from an industry-wide increase in loan delinquency and foreclosure rates as well as the related tightening

of credit standards has impacted the housing industry and the Companys ability to attract qualified homebuyers
These

factors have exacerbated already high inventory
levels of new and resale homes increased cancellation levels and weakened

consumer confidence Demand pressure
from foreclosures and unsettled credit markets continued through 2008 while rising

unemployment and declining consumer confidence slowed the decline in existing and new housing inventories Consequently

the Company continued to report
declines in the volume of homes sold decreases in prices high sales contract cancellation

rates and as result recorded additional valuation adjustments In an effort to compensate for these developments it has

continued its operating strategy focusing on cash
generation

and debt reduction through increased sales price discounts and

other incentives opportunistic
land sales monetization of its deferred tax assets through consummation of transactions

creating
loss carrybacks to 2006 reductions in excess inventory

and existing commitments to purchase land through

contract renegotiations
and cancellations controlled development spending renegotiations of contracts with subcontractors

and suppliers reductions in overhead
expense to more closely match projected volume levels and repayment or repurchase

of debt at discount As result the Company operated from 31.6
percent

fewer active communities in 2008 than in

2007 and its inventory 0f lots controlled as of December 31 2008 was down 41.0 percent from
year ago

The Company

believes that access to traditional capital
will be constrained in the early stages

of
recovery

and that lenders will migrate to

homebuilders with the strongest balance sheets To insure that the Company participates in the initial stages of recovery it

has formed limited
liability company with Oaktree Capital the

purpose
of which will be to jointly acquire and develop

distressed and other residential real estate assets The Company believes that its cash balances low net debt-to-capital ratio

manageable inventory pipelines and early access to liquidity and land will allow it to ultimately take advantage of

opportunities that may arise facilitating
accelerated growth and market share as conditions improve
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Due to increased price reductions and sales incentives evaluation of the Companys inventory through quarterly impairment

analyses during 2008 resulted in $257.4 million of inventory
valuation adjustments Charges of $22.5 million related to the

abandonment of land purchase option contracts reflect the deterioration of specific related returns and the assumption that

recent price reductions are indicative of price levels for the foreseeable future In addition the Company recorded valuation

allowances totaling $143.8 million against its deferred tax assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 109 SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes These assets were largely the result of inventory

impairments taken during the
year

and reflect uncertainty
with regard to the duration of current conditions in housing

markets Should the Company generate significant taxable income in future
years

it will reverse the allowance in the form of

lower effective income tax rate Additionally the Company evaluated the recoverability of its goodwill
which resulted in

$2.8 million impairment charge during 2008 There was no remaining goodwill at December 31 2008

For the
year

ended December 31 2008 the Company reported consolidated net loss of $396.6 million or $9.33

per
diluted share compared to net loss of $333.5 million or $7.92

per
diluted share for 2007 and earnings

of

$359.9 million or $7.83 per diluted share for 2006 The decrease in earnings over the past two years was due to decline

in revenues inventory valuation adjustments and other write-offs resulting from deteriorating market conditions as well as

from more competitive sales environment in most markets

Total revenues were $2.0 billion for the
year

ended December 31 2008 compared to $3.1 billion for the same period in

2007 decrease of $1.1 billion or 35.2
percent

This decrease was primarily due to decline in closings average closing

price and mortgage originations
Total revenues for 2007 decreased from 2006 levels by $1.7 billion or 36.2

percent

primarily due to decline in closing volume average closing price and mortgage originations Homebuilding pretax

operating margins were negative 20.2
percent

for 2008 compared to negative
14.4

percent
for 2007 and 123 percent for

2006 The decreases in margins were primarily due to increased price
concessions and sales incentives in most markets as

well as to inventory
and other valuation adjustments and write-offs

Adjusted EBITDA was $33.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $259.5 million and

$744.1 million for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively The Companys ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to interest

incurred was 0.7 for the
year

ended December 31 2008 compared to 4.2 for 2007 and 10.3 for 2006 In an effort to

position itself for competitive industry conditions in 2009 the Company generated cash flow from its operations in part

by reducing land acquisitions development activity and its obligations to take down land in the future At December 31

2008 it had 16345 fewer lots under control or 41.0
percent

decrease from year-end 2007

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company which include homes under construction land under development and

improved lots and inventory held-for-sale declined 37.8 percent to $1.1 billion at December 31 2008 from $1.7 billion

at December 31 2007 Homes under construction decreased by
35.3

percent to $464.8 million at December 31 2008

compared to $718.0 million at December 31 2007 Land under development and improved lots decreased by 42.4 percent

to $547.3 million at December 31 2008 compared to $949.7 million at December 31 2007 Inventory held-for-sale

decreased 0.4 percent and totaled $69.0 million at December 31 2008 compared to $69.2 million at December 31 2007

The Companys balance sheet continues to reflect its conservative strategy and transparency The Company ended the
year

with $423.3 million in cash $160.7 million in current taxes receivable no borrowings against its revolving credit
facility

and no debt maturities until 2012 In January 2009 it gained access to additional capital through the formation of joint

venture for the acquisition and development of new projects The Company was not significant participant in offbalance

sheet financing outside of traditional option contracts with land developers and its investments in joint ventures at

December 31 2008 was not significant The Companys net debt-to-capital ratio was 33.6
percent at December 31 2008

compared to 34.6
percent

and 32.7 percent for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively As result of the

revaluation of significant portion of inventory and deferred tax assets and balancing of cash flow with inventory

management
and leverage objectives stockholders equity per share declined by 36.4

percent to $16.97 in 2008 compared

to $26.68 in 2007 and $35.46 in 2006 The Companys book value at December 31 2008 was 100.0 percent tangible
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Homebuilding Overview

The combined homebuilding operations reported pretax
losses of $385.9 million and $425.0 million for 2008 and 2007

respectively compared to earnings of $573.1 million for 2006 Homebuilding results in 2008 improved from 2007

primarily due to lower
inventory

valuation adjustments and write-offs partially offset by decline in closings and margins

and higher losses from land sales Homebuilding results in 2007 decreased from 2006 due to decline in closings and

margins
and to the impact of inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

in thousands except units
2008 2007 2006

1856647 2937435 4545594

54984 22759 108326

REVENUES

Housing

Land and other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES

Cost of sales

Housing

Land and other

Valuation
adjustments

and write-offs

Total cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures

Selling general
and administrative

TOTAL EXPENSES

PRETAX EARNTNGS LOSS

Closings units

Housing gross profit margins

Selling general
and administrative

expense

1911631 2960194 4653920

1642389 2434774 3481882

80833 20589 83536

280120 578778 74397

2003342 3034141 3639815

43900 342 260

250278 351376 440702

2297520 3385175 4080777

385889 424981 573143

7352 10319 15392

3.2% 0.4% 21.8%

13.1% 11.9% 9.5%

New orders
represent

sales contracts that have been signed by the homebuyer and approved by the Company subject to

cancellation The dollar value of new orders decreased $953.0 million or 39.2
percent

to $1.5 billion for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 from $2.4 billion for the
year

ended December 31 2007 The dollar value of new orders declined by

243
percent

to $2.4 billion in 2007 from $3.2 billion for the same period in 2006 This decrease in new orders was

primarily attributable to the softening of demand and to the higher existing and new home inventory levels in most markets

that reflected deteriorating economic environment Additionally market uncertainty and heightened price competition

among homebuilders led to rising cancellation rates by homebuyers and were major factor in these declines Cancellation

rates totaled 35.0
percent

37.0
percent

and 37.1
percent

for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively Unit orders decreased 32.7
percent to 6042 new orders in 2008 compared to 8982 new orders in 2007 Unit

orders declined 19.3 percent to 8982 new orders in 2007 compared to 11134 new orders in 2006

Homebuilding revenues fell 35.4
percent

for 2008 compared to 2007 due to 28.8
percent

decrease in closings and

an 11.6 percent decrease in
average closing price

As result of these same market trends homebuilding revenues fell

36.4 percent for 2007 compared to 2006 due to 33.0 percent decrease in closings and 3.4 percent decrease in
average

closing price

In order to
manage

risk and return of land investments match land supply with anticipated volume levels and monetize

marginal land positions through the carryback of tax losses the Company executed several land and lot sales during the

year Homebuilding revenues for the
year

ended December 31 2008 included $55.0 million from land and lot sales

compared to $21.2 million for 2007 and $94.3 million for 2006 which contributed net loss of $25.8 million to pretax

losses in 2008 compared to net gains of $2.2 million and $24.8 million to pretax earnings in 2007 and 2006 respectively

Housing gross profit margins averaged negative 3.2 percent for 2008 decrease from negative 0.4 percent for 2007 and

21.8 percent for 2006 The decline in 2008 was primarily attributable to increased price concessions and sales incentives as

well as to price reductions that related to home deliveries Housing gross profit margins excluding inventory and joint

venture valuation adjustments and write-offs were 116
percent

17.1
percent

and 23.4
percent

for the
years

ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Gross profit margins from land sales were negative
470

percent
for

December 31 2008 compared to 10.3
percent

and 26.3
percent

for the
years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively Price concessions and sales incentives as percentage
of revenues totaled 150

percent
121

percent
and

7.1
percent

for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The effect of price declines valuation
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adjustments and write-offs was partially offset by
the amortization of valuation allowances based on home closings

which

impacted housing gross profit margins by 6.7 percent 1.7 percent
and 0.1

percent
for the

years
ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 SFAS 144 Accounting for the Impairment

or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets inventory is reviewed for potential
write-downs on an ongoing basis SFAS 144

requires

that in the event that impairment indicators are present impairment charges are required to be recorded if the fair value of

such assets is less than their
carrying amounts For inventory held and used undiscounted cash flow projections are

generated at community level based on estimates of revenues costs and other factors The Companys analysis of these

communities generally assumes current revenues equal to current sales orders for particular or comparable communities The

Companys determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting the estimated cash flows at rate commensurate

with inherent risks that are associated with assets and related estimated cash flow streams When determining the value of

inventory held-for-sale the Company considers recent offers comparable sales and/or estimated cash flows Valuation

adjustments are recorded against homes completed or under construction land under development and improved lots when

events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
values are greater

than the fair values Due to continued
pressure

on home

prices symptomatic of excess home inventories in many markets the Company recorded inventory impairment charges of

$257.4 million $504.0 million and $62.9 million during the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively in order to reduce the
carrying

value of the impaired communities to their estimated fair value Approximately

92
percent

of these impairment charges were recorded to residential land and lots and land held for development while

approximately percent
of these charges were recorded to residential construction in

progress
and finished homes in

inventory
At December 31 2008 the fair value of the Companys inventory subject to valuation adjustments of

$257.4 million during the
year net of impairments was $222.8 million There were 112 communities with write-downs in

2008 compared to 101 communities in 2007 Inventory and other impairment charges and write-offs of deposits and

acquisition costs reduced total housing gross profit margins by 14.8 percent
in 2008 17.5

percent
in 2007 and 16

percent

in 2006 Should market conditions deteriorate or costs increase it is possible that the Companys estimates of undiscounted

cash flows from its communities could decline resulting in additional future inventory impairment charges

The Company periodically
writes off earnest money deposits and feasibility costs related to land and lot

option contracts

that it no longer plans to pursue During the
year

ended December 31 2008 the Company wrote off $21.7 million of

earnest money deposits and $795000 of feasibility costs For the same period in 2007 write-offs of earnest money

deposits and feasibility costs related to land purchase option contracts that the Company would not pursue were

$72.6 million and $4.6 million respectively For the same period in 2006 write-offs of earnest money deposits and

feasibility costs were $10.9 million and $6.9 million respectively Should weak homebuilding
market conditions persist and

the Company be unsuccessful in its efforts to renegotiate certain land option purchase contracts it may write off additional

earnest money deposits and feasibility costs in future periods

Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage
of revenue were 13.1 percent for 2008 11.9 percent

for 2007

and 9.5 percent
for 2006 The

percentage
increase for 2008 compared to 2007 was mainly attributable to decline in

revenues as well as to severance relocation model abandonment and goodwill impairment costs and charges that collectively

totaled $25.9 million partially
offset by lower marketing and advertising costs

per
unit Excluding these costs selling

general and administrative expenses as percentage
of revenue were 11.7 percent 11.0 percent and 9.4

percent
for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Exclusive of the aforementioned one-time charges the

percentage
increase for 2007 compared to 2006 was mainly attributable to lower overhead leverage due to lower volume

levels and to higher marketing and advertising costs
per

unit partially offset by reduced incentive compensation expense

Selling general and administrative
expense

dollars decreased $101.1 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 versus

the same period in 2007 and $89.3 million for the
year ended December 31 2007 versus the same period in 2006

Interest which was incurred principally to finance land acquisitions land development and home construction totaled

$46.9 million $62.0 million and $71.8 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively In 2008 2007 and 2006 the

homebuilding segments capitalized all interest incurred except $604000 in charges related to the reduction of commitments

for the Companys revolving credit facility
in 2008 due to continued development and construction activity See Housing

Inventories within Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies



Homebuilding Segment Information

The Companys homebuilding operations Consist of four geographically determined regional reporting segments North

Southeast Texas and West

Conditions have Continued to be most Challenging in geographical areas that have previously experienced the highest price

appreciation
such as the California Chicago Florida Las Vegas Phoenix and Washington D.C markets As result of

declining affordability decreased demand and changes in buyer perception the excess supply of housing inventory has been

greater
in these areas In an attempt

to maintain market share and reduce inventory investment to better match Current sales

volume levels the Company has increased its use of sales discounting and incentives As result it had to take additional

inventory impairment charges in many markets Of the Companys total lots or homes with valuation adjustments during

2008 28.9
percent

of total lots were impaired in the North 21.4
percent

in the Southeast 2.7 percent in Texas and

470
percent

in the West

The following table provides summary of the Companys inventory
and other impairments taken for the

years
ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

in thousands

NORTH

Total

SOUTHEAST

Inventory
valuation

adjustments

Option deposit
and

feasibility cost write-offs

Joint venture and other5
impairments

_____________________________________________

Total

TEXAS

Inventory
valuation

adjustments

Option deposit
and

feasibility cost write-offs

Joint venture and other5 impairments
_____________________________________________

Total

WEST

Inventory
valuation

adjustments

Option deposit
and

feasibility cost write-offs

Joint venture and other impairments
_____________________________________________

Total

TOTAL

Inventory
valuation

adjustments

Option deposit
and

feasibility cost write-offs

Joint venture and other5 impairments
_____________________________________________

Total

Other includes
impairments

to other assets

New Orders

New order dollars decreased 39.2 percent for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 2007 New orders for 2008

decreased 29.1 percent in the North 334 percent in the Southeast 27.9 percent
in Texas and 441 percent

in the West

New orders for 2007 decreased 16.4 percent in the North 22.2 percent
in the Southeast 27.1 percent

in Texas and

4.6 percent in the West In 2008 and 2007 the decline in new orders was primarily due to softening
of demand and

consumer confidence rising levels of foreclosures and overall housing inventory increasing competition
for diminished

number of buyers and declining community counts resulting from project abandonment and low land acquisition activity in

most markets The cancellation rate was 35.0
percent

for the
year

ended December 31 2008 versus 37.0 percent and

37.1
percent

for 2007 and 2006 respectively

2008 2007 2006

Inventory
valuation

adjustments 99037 86957 3694

Option deposit and feasibility cost write-offs 4906 27337 3853

Joint venture and other
impairments 35903 71

139846 114294 7618

74813 112721 1789

5834 25250 5868

3390 2073 438

84037 140044 8095

11126 2744 100

11319 775 248

227 31

22672 3550 348

72413 301533 57327

392 23805 7886

8922 15520 40

81727 340858 65253

257389 503955 62910

22451 77167 17855

48442 17624 549

328282 598746 81314
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The Company experiences seasonal variations in its quarterly operating results and capital requirements Historically new

order activity
is higher in the spring and summer months As result the Company typically has more homes under

construction closes more homes and has greater revenues and operating income in the third and fourth quarters
of its

fiscal
year

However historical results are not necessarily indicative 0f current or ftiture homebuilding activities

The following table is summary of the Companys new orders units and
aggregate

sales value for the years
ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 CHG 2007 CHG 2006 CHG

UNITS

North 1770 29.I% 2496 16.4% 2987 31.I%

Southeast 1640 33.4 2461 22.2 3164 43.8

Texas 1701 27.9 2359 27.1 3237 12.6

West 931 44.1 1666 4.6 1746 54.7

Total 6042 32.7% 8982 19.3% 11134 36.4%

DOLLARS in millions

North 471 38.5% 765 21.I% 970 28.4%

Southeast 403 38.4 653 29.1 921 43.2

Texas 368 25.5 494 24.3 653 3.9

West 235 54.6 518 22.2 666 55.0

Total 1477 39.2% 2430 24.3% 3210 37.5%

The following table provides the Companys cancellation percentages for the
years

ended December 2008 2007 and

2006

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

North 36.1% 34.8% 31.5%

Southeast
32.0 39.7 39.0

Texas
33.4 35.1 32.2

West 40.1 38.3 48.3

Total
35.0% 37.0% 37.1%

The cancellation rate for the
year

ended December 31 2008 was 35.0 percent compared to 37.0 percent and 37.1 percent

for the
years

ended 2007 and 2006 respectively

Closings

The following table provides the Companys closings and average closing prices
for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006

2008 CHG 2007 CHG 2006 CHG

UNITS

North 2162 19.5% 2687 25.4% 3604 17.5%

Southeast 2187 30.7 3154 38.5 5126 4.9

Texas 1908 29.4 2703 23.8 3546 5.4

West 1095 38.3 1775 43.0 3116 23.1

Total 7352 28.8% 10319 33.0% 15392 7.7%

AVERAGE PRICE in thousands

North 281 II.6% 318 0.6% 320 3.2%

Southeast 253 13.4 292 0.3 293 15.4

Texas 216 2.9 210 8.8 193 9.0

West 258 23.0 335 13.0 385 8.1

Total 252 II.6% 285 3.4% 295 6.1%
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Outstanding Contracts

Outstanding contracts denote the Companys backlog of homes sold but not closed which are generally built and closed

subject to cancellation over the subsequent two quarters At December 31 2008 the Company had outstanding contracts

for 1559 units representing 45.7 percent decrease from year end 2007 The $407.1 million value of outstanding

contracts at December 31 2008 represented decrease of 48.2 percent from December 31 2007 primarily due to

32.7 percent decline in unit orders Average sales price decreases resulted primarily from slowing market trends high

inventory levels for new and resale housing and more competitive sales environment

DECEMBER 31 2008

AVERAGE
DOLLARS PRICE

in millions in thousands

DECEMBER 31 2006

AVERAGE
DOLLARS PRICE

On millions in thousands
UNITS UNITS

DECEMBER 31 2007

AVERAGE
DOLLARS PRICE

in millions in thousands
UNITS

North 574 161 280 966 298 307 1157 387 334

Southeast 399 107 267 946 257 272 1639 526 321

Texas 469 III 238 676 155 230 1020 228 224

West 117 28 242 281 76 269 390 153 391

Total 1559 407 261 2869 786 274 4206 1294 308
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

The following summary provides results for the homebuilding segments
for the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

in thousands

NORTH
Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated joint ventures

Selling general and administrative
expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

SOUTHEAST

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated joint ventures

Selling general and administrative
expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

TEXAS

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures

Selling general
and administrative

expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

WEST
Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated joint ventures

Selling general
and administrative

expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

TOTAL

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures

Selling general
and administrative

expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

689455

35448

71069

795972

156158
I.6%

558194 929168 1522123

577451 886763 1128636

28 215
76192 101852 140582

653643 988587 1269003

95449 59.419 253120

0.I% 4.7% 25.9%

415761 571689 695356

383243 479826 564107

289 24 104
52635 64789 71499

435589 544591

19828 27098

8.8% 16.1%

297862 601889 1240106

353193 860701 1029268

8741 612 579

50382 96159 120726

412316 957472 1150573

1911631 2960194 4653920

2003342 3034141 3639815

43900 342 260

250278 351376 440702

2297520 3385175 4080777

385889 424981 573143

3.2% 0.4% 21.8%

Homebuilding Segments 2005 versus 2007

NorthHomebuilding revenues decreased by 25.4
percent

to $639.8 million in 2008 from $857.4 million in 2007

primarily due to 19.5 percent
decline in the number of homes delivered and an 11.6 percent decrease in

average closing

price Gross margins on home sales were negative 11.6
percent

in 2008 compared to 5.9 percent in 2007 This decrease

was primarily attributable to inventory
and other valuation adjustments and write-offs of $136.2 million as well as to

increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 18.6
percent

in 2008 versus 13.2 percent in 2007 As result

the North region incurred $156.2 million of
pretax

losses in 2008 compared to $37.1 million of pretax losses in 2007

2008 2007 2006

639814 857448 1196335

806851

902
88576

894525

37.077

5.9%

917804

107895

1025699

170636

23.7%

635502

59854

18.5%

114454 355583

8.8% 33.I%

89533

16.8%
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SoutheastHomebuilding revenues were $558.2 million in 2008 compared to $929.2 million in 2007 decrease of

39.9
percent primarily due to 307

percent
decline in the number of homes delivered and 134 percent decrease in

average closing price
Gross margins on home sales were negative

0.1
percent in 2008 compared to 4.7 percent in 2007

This decrease was primarily attributable to inventory
valuation adjustments and write-offs of $69.7 million as well as to

increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 13.3
percent in 2008 versus 12.2 percent

in 2007 In addition

selling general and administrative costs were 13.6
percent

of revenues in 2008 compared to 11.0
percent

in 2007 due in

part to $2.8 million goodwill impairment charge As result the Southeast
region incurred $95.4 million of pretax

losses in 2008 compared to $59.4 million of
pretax

losses in 2007

TexasHomebuilding revenues decreased by 273 percent to $415.8 million in 2008 from $571.7 million in 2007

primarily due to 29.4
percent decline in the number of homes delivered partially offset by 2.9 percent increase in

average
sales price Gross margins on home sales were 8.8

percent
in 2008 compared to 16.1 percent in 2007 This

decrease was primarily attributable to the mix of
product

delivered
during

the
year as well as to inventory valuation

adjustments and write-offs of $21.9 million and to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 9.6 percent

of revenues in 2008 versus 7.4
percent in 2007 As result the Texas

region incurred $19.8 million of
pretax losses in

2008 compared to $27.1 million of
pretax earnings

in 2007

WestHomebuilding revenues decreased by $304.0 million or 505
percent to $297.9 million in 2008 compared to

$601.9 million in 2007 primarily due to 38.3
percent

decline in the number of homes delivered and to 23.0 percent

decrease in
average closing price Gross margins on home sales were negative 8.8

percent
in 2008 compared to negative

33.1
percent

in 2007 This change was primarily attributable to lower
inventory

valuation adjustments and write-offs that

totaled $46.7 million in 2008 compared to $260.7 million in 2007 partially offset
by rise in

price concessions and sales

incentives that totaled 17.3
percent

of revenues in 2008 compared to 14.7
percent

in 2007 As result the West region

incurred $114.5 million of
pretax

losses in 2008 compared to $355.6 million of
pretax

losses in 2007

Homebuilding Segments 2007 versus 2006

NorthHomebuildirig revenues decreased by 28.3
percent to $857.4 million in 2007 from $1.2 billion in 2006 primarily

due to 25.4
percent

decline in the number of homes delivered Gross margins on home sales were 59 percent in 2007

compared to 23.7
percent

in 2006 This decrease was primarily attributable to inventory
valuation adjustments and

write-offs of $111.7 million as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 13.2
percent

of

revenues in 2007 versus 7.9
percent

in 2006 As result the North region incurred $37.1 million of
pretax

losses in

2007 compared to $170.6 million of
pretax earnings in 2006

SoutheastHomebuilding revenues were $929.2 million in 2007 compared to $1.5 billion in 2006 decrease of

39.0
percent primarily due to 385

percent
decline in the number of homes delivered Gross

margins on home sales were

4.7
percent

in 2007 compared to 259
percent in 2006 This decrease was primarily due to inventory valuation adjustments

and write-offs of $138.9 million as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 12.2 percent of

revenues in 2007 versus 5.6
percent in 2006 As result the Southeast

region incurred $59.4 million of
pretax losses in

2007 compared to $253.1 million of
pretax earnings in 2006

TexasHomebuilding revenues decreased by 17.8
percent to $571.7 million in 2007 from $695.4 million in 2006

primarily due to 238
percent

decline in the number of homes delivered partially offset by an 8.8
percent

increase in

average
sales price Gross margins on home sales decreased to 16.1

percent in 2007 compared to 18.5
percent

in 2006

primarily due to the mix of product delivered during the
year as well as to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs

of $3.2 million and increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 7.4
percent

of revenues in 2007 versus

6.3
percent in 2006 As result the Texas

region generated $27.1 million of
pretax earnings in 2007 compared to

$59.9 million of
pretax earnings in 2006

WestHomebuilding revenues decreased $638.2 million or 51.5
percent to $601.9 million in 2007 compared

to $1.2 billion in 2006 primarily due to 43.0
percent

decline in the number of homes delivered and to 13.0

percent
decrease in average closing price

Gross
margins on home sales were negative

33.1
percent

in 2007 compared

to 16.8
percent

in 2006 Gross
margins on home sales decreased in 2007 due to inventory valuation adjustments and

write-offs of $260.7 million as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 147 percent
of

revenues in 2007 compared to 8.7
percent

in 2006 In addition selling general and administrative costs were 16.0
percent

of revenues in 2007 compared to 9.7
percent in 2006 due to declining leverage severance and relocation costs and

feasibility cost write-offs As result the West region incurred $355.6 million of
pretax

losses in 2007 compared with

$89.5 million of
pretax earnings in 2006
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Financial Services

The Companys financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services as well as title escrow and

insurance services to its homebuyers By aligning its operations
with the Companys homebuilding segments

the financial

services segment leverages this relationship to offer its lending services to homebuyers In addition to being valuable asset

to customers the financial services segment generates profit for the Company Providing mortgage financing
and other

services to its customers allows the Company to better monitor its backlog and closing process
The majority

of loans

originated are sold within one business day of the date they close The third party purchaser then services and
manages

the

loans assuming nearly all of the credit risk of borrower default The Company also provided
construction-related insurance

to subcontractors in its western markets through June 2008 Additionally the financial services segment
also offers insurance

for
liability

risks specifically
homeowners structural warranty coverage arising in connection with the homebuilding

business of the Company

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006
in thousands except units

REVENUES

Net
gains on sales of mortgages

28556 31126 44231

Origination
fees

16997 25678 39589

Title/escrow/insurance 17440 33734 41086

Interest and other
1500 1143 1427

TOTAL REVENUES 64493 91681 126333

EXPENSES 41466 50754 58638

PRETAX EARNINGS 23027 40927 67695

Originations units
5634 7653 11744

Ryland Homes
origination capture

rate
82.2% 78.8% 1.9%

Mortgage_backed securities and notes receivable
average

balance 370 446 1707

In 2008 RMCs mortgage origination operations
consisted primarily

of
mortgage

loans originated in connection with the

sale of the Companys homes The number of mortgage originations was 5634 for 2008 compared to 7653 for 2007 and

11744 for 2006 During 2008 total dollar originations were $1.3 billion of which 99.6
percent

was for purchases
of

homes built by the Company and the remaining amount was for either purchases of homes built by others purchases of

existing homes or refinancing of existing mortgage
loans The capture rate of

mortgages originated for customers of the

Companys homebuilding operations was 82.2
percent in 2008 compared to 78.8

percent
in 2007 and 81.9 percent in

2006

The financial services segment reported pretax earnings of $23.0 million for 2008 compared to $40.9 million for 2007

and $67.7 million for 2006 The decrease in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily attributable to 26.4
percent

decline

in the number of mortgages originated due to slowdown in the homebuilding markets 101 percent
decrease in average

loan size and $2.5 million decline in sales of its insurance renewal rights in 2008 compared to 2007 partially offset by

the recognition of $1.7 million gain related to the 2008 implementation of Staff Accounting Bulletin No 109

SAB 109 Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings which requires that servicing rights

related to interest rate lock commitments be recorded at fair value The decrease in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily

attributable to 34.8 percent decline in the number of
mortgages originated due to slowdown in the homebuilding

markets decline in the availability of mortgage products and 1.8 percent decrease in loan size partially offset by

$4.4 million gain on the sale of the segments insurance renewal rights
in 2007

Revenues for the financial services segment
declined 29.7

percent
to $64.5 million for 2008 compared to $91.7 million for

2007 The decrease was primarily attributable to 264
percent

decline in the number of
mortgages originated

and sold

due to slowdown in the homebuilding markets and to the midyear cessation of the subcontractor insurance program
In

2007 revenues for the financial services segment
declined 27.4

percent
to $91.7 million from $126.3 million in 2006 The

decrease in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily
attributable to 34.8 percent

decline in the number of mortgages

originated and sold due to slowdown in the homebuilding markets
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General and administrative
expenses

decreased to $41.5 million for the
year ended December 31 2008 from $50.8 million

for the year ended December 31 2007 primarily due to personnel reductions made in an effort to align overhead with

lower production volumes and lower reserves for the subcontractor insurance
program that was terminated midyear partially

offset by an increase of $3.7 million in indemnification
expense

General and administrative expenses decreased for the
year

ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to personnel reductions made in an effort to align overhead

with lower production volumes partially offset by an increase of $1.6 million in mortgage indemnification expense

In 2007 increased delinquencies of primarily subprime mortgages
in secondary markets resulted in significant decrease

in the availability of these mortgage products During 2008 RMC did not originate mortgage loans that would be

classified as subprime or Alt-A All of the
mortgage

loans originated by RMC during the year were either government

or prime mortgage loans Prime
mortgage

loans are generally defined as agency loans FNMA/FHLMC and
any

nonconforming loans that would otherwise meet agency criteria Generally they are borrowers with FICO scores that exceed

620 Approximately 86 percent of the
mortgage

loans originated by RMC during 2008 were sold to Countrywide Financial

Corporation Countrywide pursuant to their loan purchase agreement with the Company The remaining loans were sold

to investors such as U.S Bank Corporation CitiMortgage Wells Fargo and Freddie Mac or to specialized state bond loan

programs Except in rare circumstances RMC is not required to repurchase mortgage loans Generally the Company is

required to indemnify Countrywide or another investor to which
mortgage loans are sold if there are losses due to

origination errors caused by RMC when it is shown that there has been undiscovered fraud on the part of the borrower or

if the borrower does not make his first payment The Company paid $3.2 million and $375000 in indemnification
expense

during 2008 and 2007 respectively and held reserves of $5.4 million and $2.7 million for future losses as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Corporate

Corporate expenses were $42.3 million for 2008 $35.6 million for 2007 and $66.0 million for 2006 Corporate expenses

for 2008 compared to 2007 increased primarily due to $5.7 million rise in losses within the market value of investments

included in the Companys benefit plans Corporate expenses
for 2007 compared to 2006 declined primarily due to lower

incentive compensation expense
that resulted from declining earnings and stock price

In 2008 the Company recorded an expense
of approximately $604000 that was associated with the reduction of

commitments for its revolving credit facility In 2007 the Company recorded an aggregate expense of approximately

$490000 that was associated with the early redemption of $100.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008

The Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million at stated call prices of 100.2 percent and 100.8 percent of the

principal amount of the notes in August and December of 2007 respectively In 2006 the Company recorded an expense

of $7.7 million that was associated with the early redemption of $150.0 million of its 9.1 percent senior subordinated

notes due June 2011 of which it owned $6.5 million at stated call price of 104.6 percent of the principal amount

Investments in Joint Ventures

At December 31 2008 the Company participated in six active joint ventures in the Austin Chicago Dallas Denver and

Orlando markets These joint ventures exist for the
purpose

of acquisition and co-development of land parcels and lots

which are then sold to the Company its joint venture partners or others at market prices Depending on the number of

joint ventures and the level of activity in the entities annual
earnings

from the Companys investment in joint ventures will

vary significantly The Companys investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $12.5 million at December 31
2008 compared to $30.8 million at December 31 2007 The Companys equity in losses from unconsolidated joint

ventures in 2008 totaled $43.9 million compared to earnings
of $342000 in 2007 and losses of $260000 in 2006 See

Investments in Joint Ventures within Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Income Taxes

The Companys provision for income tax presented an effective income tax benefit rate of 2.3 percent for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to an effective income tax benefit rate of 20.6 percent
for the same period in 2007 and an

effective income tax provision rate of 36.5 percent for the same period in 2006 The decrease in the effective tax rate for

2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to noncash tax charges in 2008 totaling $143.8 million for the Companys
valuation allowance related to its deferred tax assets The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2007 compared to 2006 was

primarily due to noncash tax charge of $75.2 million for valuation allowance related to the Companys deferred tax

assets in accordance with SFAS 109 and to the impact of lower pretax earnings
for the

year See Note Income

Taxes
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

The Company has historically funded its homebuilding and financial services operations
with cash flows from

operating

activities borrowings under its revolving credit facilities and the issuance of new debt securities In light of market

conditions in 2008 the Company continued its efforts toward generating cash reducing debt levels and strengthening its

balance sheet by selling excess or marginal land inventory monetizing tax losses paying off maturing senior note

terminating or renegotiating land option contracts consolidating or exiting underperforming markets and downsizing and

restructuring operating groups
As result of this strategy the Company lowered its total debt in 2008 by $48.7 million

ending the
year

with $423.3 million in cash and cash equivalents and $160.7 million in current taxes receivable

NET

STOCKHOLDERS DEBT-TO-CAPITAL

in millions
EQUITY DEBT RATIO

2006 1511 950 32.7%

2007 1125 839 34.6%

2008 725 790 33.6%

At December 31 2008 the Companys net debt-to-capital ratio was 33.6 percent decrease from 34.6 percent at

December 31 2007 This decrease was primarily due to debt
repayments

in 2008 and an increase in cash The Company

remains focused on maintaining its liquidity so that it can be flexible in reacting to changing market conditions

The following table summarizes the Companys cash flow activities for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

in thousands
2008 2007 2006

Operating activities 248426 228140 14637

Investing activities 9826 31397 51589

Financing activities 58955 168166 209394

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

179645 28577 246.346

During 2008 the Company generated $248.4 million 0f cash from its operations The Company invested $9.9 million in

property plant and equipment and used $59.0 million in financing activities including debt repayments
of $70.8 million

and dividends of $20.5 million partially offset by borrowings of $22.1 million from credit facilities The net cash flow

generated during the
year

ended December 31 2008 was $179.6 million

During 2007 the Company generated $228.1 million of cash from its operations The Company invested $32.1 million in

property plant and equipment and used $168.2 million in financing activities including debt repayments of $111.0 million

stock repurchases of $59.3 million and dividends of $20.4 million The net cash flow generated during the year ended

December 31 2007 was $28.6 million

During 2006 the Company generated $14.6 million of cash from its operations The Company invested $53.8 million in

property plant and equipment and used $209.4 million in financing activities including net debt proceeds of $28.1 million

outflows for stock repurchases of $250.1 million and dividends of $21.7 million The net cash used during the year ended

December 31 2006 was $246.3 million

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Board of Directors approved reduction of the Companys common stock dividend

by 75.0 percent to $0.03 per share from $0.12 per
share in the previous quarters Dividends declared totaled $0.39 $0.48

and $0.48 per share for the annual periods ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company decreased by 37.8 percent to $1.1 billion at December 31 2008 from

$1.7 billion at December 31 2007 The Company attempts to maintain projected four- to five-year supply
of land At

December 31 2008 it controlled 23555 lots with 19239 lots owned and 4316 lots or 18.3 percent under option As

result of its efforts to match controlled inventory with current unit volume levels lots controlled declined by 41.0
percent

at December 31 2008 compared to 39900 lots under control at December 31 2007 See Housing Inventories within

Note Summary 0f Significant Accounting Policies The Company continues to evaluate its
option contracts for

changes in the viability of communities and abandonment potential
In an effort to increase liquidity models have been sold

and leased back on selective basis for generally to 18 months The Company owned 865
percent

and 761
percent

of

its model homes at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The homebuilding segments borrowings include senior notes an unsecured revolving credit
facility

and nonrecourse secured

notes payable

Senior Notes

Senior notes outstanding totaled $746.0 million and $800.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively During

2008 the Companys $50.0 million of 5.4
percent

senior notes matured and were repaid and the Company repurchased

$4.0 million of its 5.4
percent senior notes due January 2015 See Note Debt

During the first
quarter

of 2009 the Company repurchased $47.6 million of its senior notes for $35.9 million in the
open

market See Note Subsequent Events

The Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4
percent senior notes due June 2008 in August and

December 2007 respectively The redemption prices were 1002
percent

and 100.8
percent

of the principal amount of the

notes outstanding respectively plus accrued interest as of the redemption dates The Company recognized an aggregate
loss

of approximately $490000 related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007

The $250.0 million of 5.4
percent senior notes due May 2012 the $250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due June

2013 and the $246.0 million of 5.4
percent senior notes due January 2015 are subject to certain covenants that include

among other things restrictions on additional secured debt and the sale of assets At December 31 2008 the Company

was in compliance with these covenants

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In February and June of 2008 the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility The credit
facility

is used for

general corporate purposes
and contains affirmative negative and financial covenants including minimum consolidated

tangible net worth requirement permitted leverage ratio and limitations on unsold home units unsold land lot inventory

investments and senior debt The amendments included among other things decrease in the Companys borrowing

availability from $750.0 million to $550.0 million reduction in the base amount for the minimum consolidated

tangible net worth covenant an increase in the pricing grid which is based on the Companys leverage ratio and public

debt rating ci an adjustment in the permitted leverage ratio to no less than 55.0 percent for the fourth quarter of 2008

and the first quarter of 2009 52.5 percent for the second third and fourth quarters of 2009 and 50.0 percent thereafter

an increase in the borrowing base by adding restricted cash
up

to $300.0 million change in the definition of

material indebtedness to $20.0 million and change in the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to

I.15x its consolidated tangible net worth

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement the Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Agent and the lenders listed therein which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys borrowing availability

from $550.0 million to $200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant default limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to be no more than 55.0 percent ci agreed to establish certain

liquidity reserve accounts in the event the Company fails to satisfy an interest
coverage

test and an adjusted cash flow from

operations to interest incurred test changed the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to .20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing base to allow for 100.0 percent use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less
any

drawn balances on the revolving credit facility established requirement for the Company to

cash collateralize
pro

rata share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and swing line exposure established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit 0f $10.0 million and increased the pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage ratio and public debt
rating as well as the interest

coverage
ratio The credit facilitys maturity date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million subject to the

availability of additional lending commitments The revolving credit
facility

includes $75.0 million swing-line facility
and

the ability to issue standby letters of credit Amounts borrowed under the credit agreement are guaranteed on joint and

several basis by substantially all of the Companys IOU percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries Such guarantees are flill

and unconditional Interest rates on outstanding borrowings under the amended
facility are determined either by reference to

LIBOR or an alternative base rate with
margins

determined based on changes in the Companys leverage ratio and credit

ratings plus if the Companys interest
coverage ratio is less than 2.0 to 1.0 an interest premium is determined based on

changes in the Companys interest
coverage ratio The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit

facility
to finance
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increases in its homebuilding inventory and working capital
when

necessary See Note Debt and Note Subsequent

Events

There were no borrowings outstanding under the
facility

at December 31 2008 or 2007 Under the facility the Company

had letters of credit outstanding that totaled $95.7 million and $157.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Unused borrowing capacity under the facility as then in effect totaled $454.3 million and $592.2 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
At December 31 2008 the $550.0 million facility then in effect was subject

to borrowing base limitation covenant that restricted its borrowing capacity to $338.1 million of which $242.4 million

was available The Company was in compliance with its covenants at December 2008 The reduction in the revolving

credit facilitys
commitments during 2008 resulted in an expense

of $604000 which represented write-off of pro rata

portion
of unamortized debt costs and is included within Expenses

related to early retirement of debt in the Consolidated

Statement of Earnings See Note Debt

Nonrecourse Secured Notes Payable

To finance its land purchases the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes payable At

December 31 2008 such notes payable outstanding amounted to $22.3 million compared to $39.1 million at

December 31 2007

Finance Subsidiaries

In January 2008 RMC entered into
mortgage

warehouse line of credit agreement
with Guaranty Bank the RMC Credit

Agreement The RMC Credit Agreement matured in January 2009 and provided for borrowings up
to $40.0 million to

fund RMCs mortgage
loan origination operations It was secured by underlying mortgage

loans and by other assets of

RMC Facility balances were repaid as loans funded under the agreement were sold to third parties The RMC Credit

Agreements interest rate was set at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent
with commitment fee of 0.125 percent on the unused

portion of the facility The RMC Credit Agreement
contained representations warranties covenants and provisions defining

events of default The covenants required RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios The

Company was in compliance
with these covenants and outstanding borrowings against this credit facility

totaled

$22.1 million at December 31 2008

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facility $60.0 million repurchase facility with Guaranty Bank

and Buyers The facility
became effective January IS 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired in January

2009 The agreement
contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margin of 1.75 percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0 percent
The

facility contains representations warranties covenants and provisions defining events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios See Note Subsequent Events

Other

On February 2009 the Company filed shelf registration with the SEC The registration statement provides that

securities may be offered from time to time in one or more series and in the form of senior subordinated or convertible

debt preferred stock preferred
stock represented by depository shares common stock stock purchase contracts stock

purchase units and warrants to purchase both debt and
equity

securities The Companys previous shelf registration

statement expired in 2008 pursuant to the provisions of the SECS Securities Offering Reform As of the date of this

Annual Report on Form JO-K the Company has not issued any securities under its shelf registration statement In the

future the Company intends to continue to maintain effective shelf registration statements that will facilitate access to the

capital markets The timing and amount of future offerings if
any

will depend on market and general business conditions

See Note Subsequent Events

During 2008 the Company did not repurchase any
shares of its outstanding common stock The Company had

existing authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase approximately 8.1 million additional shares at cost of

$142.3 million based on the Companys stock price at December 31 2008 Outstanding shares were 42754467 and

42151085 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively an increase of 1.4 percent
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The following table provides summary of the Companys contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments at

December 31 2008 and the effect such obligations are expected to have on its future liquidity and cash flow

CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

AFTER
2013in thousands TOTAL 2009 2010201 20122013

Debt principal maturities 790399 32716 11683 500000 246000

Interest on debt 201865 43848 87695 56549 13773

Operating leases 35650 9594 15793 5916 4347

Land option contracts1 5659 5659

Total at December 31 2008 1033573 91817 115171 562465 264120

Represents ohlgations
under

option contracts with
specific performance provisions net of

cash
deposits

While the Company expects challenging economic conditions to continue it is focused on managing overhead land

acquisitions development and construction activity in order to generate
cash flow and maintain debt levels commensurate

with its business Absent more severe deterioration in market conditions the Company believes that it will be able to

continue to fund its homebuilding and financial services
operations plus any

future cash needs including debt maturities

through its existing cash resources for the foreseeable future

OffBalance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into land and lot option purchase contracts in order to procure

land or lots for the construction of homes Land and lot option purchase contracts enable the Company to control

significant lot positions with minimal capital investment thereby reducing the risks associated with land ownership and

development At December 31 2008 the Company had $31.0 million in cash deposits and letters of credit to purchase

land and lots with an aggregate purchase price of $276.5 million Only $5.7 million of the $276.5 million in land and lot

option purchase contracts contain specific performance provisions Additionally the Companys liability
is generally limited

to forfeiture of the nonrefundable deposits letters of credit and other nonrefundable amounts incurred

Pursuant to Interpretation No 46 FIN 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities as amended the Company

consolidated $15.2 million of inventory not owned at December 31 2008 of which $14.4 million pertained to land and

lot option purchase contracts representing the fair value of the optioned property
and $799000 pertained to one of its

homebuilding joint ventures See Variable Interest Entities and Investments in Joint Ventures within Note Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had outstanding letters of credit under its revolving credit
facility

totaling $95.7 million and $157.8 million respectively Additionally it had development or performance bonds totaling

$199.0 million at December 31 2008 issued by third parties to secure performance under various contracts and

obligations relating to land or municipal improvements compared to $313.2 million at December 31 2007 The Company

expects that the obligations secured by these letters of credit and performance bonds will generally be satisfied in the

ordinary course of business and in accordance with applicable contractual terms To the extent that the obligations are

fulfilled the related letters of credit and performance bonds will be released and the Company will not have
any continuing

obligations

The Company has no material third-party guarantees other than those associated with its revolving credit facility senior

notes and investments in joint ventures See Investments in Joint Ventures within Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies and Note Supplemental Guarantor Information

Critical Accounting Policies

Preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements requires the use of judgment in the application of

accounting policies and estimates of inherently uncertain matters Listed below are those policies that management believes

are critical and require the use of complex judgment in their application

Management has discussed the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of its Board of Directors and the

Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure There are items within the financial statements that require estimation but are

not considered critical
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Use of Estimates

In budgeting land acquisitions development
and homebuilding construction costs associated with real estate projects the

Company evaluates market conditions material and labor costs buyer preferences construction timing and provisions for

insurance and warranty obligations The Company accrues its best estimate of the probable cost for resolution of legal

claims Estimates which are based on historical experience
and other assumptions are reviewed continually updated when

necessary
and believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Management believes that the timing

and
scope

of its

evaluation procedures are proper and adequate Changes in
assumptions relating to such factors however could have

material effect on the Companys results of operations for particular quarterly or annual period

Income Recognition

In accordance with SFAS 66 revenues and cost of sales are recorded at the time each home or lot is closed title and

possession are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement from the homebuilder In order

to match revenues with related
expenses land land development interest taxes and other related costs both incurred and

estimated to be incurred in the future are allocated to the cost of homes closed based upon the relative sales value basis of

the total number of homes to be constructed in each community in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 67 SFAS 67 Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects Estimated

land common area development and related costs of planned communities including the cost of amenities are allocated

to individual parcels or communities on relative sales value basis Changes to estimated costs subsequent to the

commencement of the delivery 0f homes are allocated to the remaining undelivered homes in the community Home

construction and related costs are charged to the cost 0f homes closed under the specific-identification
method

Inventory Valuation

Housing projects and land held for development inventory and sale are stated at either the lower of cost or net realizable

value Inventory includes land and development costs direct construction costs capitalized indirect construction costs

capitalized interest and real estate taxes It may take one to three
years

to develop sell and deliver all of the homes in

typical community The Company assesses these assets for recoverability in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144

SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets and assets held-for-sale be reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of housing inventories is

measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by

that asset or by the sales of comparable assets Assets held-for-sale are carried at the lower 0f cost or fair value less cost to

sell These evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates 0f revenues costs and
expenses as well as by

other factors In addition land or costs related to future communities whether owned or under option are reviewed to

determine if the Company will proceed with development and if all related Costs are recoverable If these assets are

considered to be impaired the impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the
carrying

amount of the assets

exceeds the fair value of the assets and is recognized within the same period that it is identified Management believes its

processes are designed to properly assess the market and carrying
values of assets

Warranty Reserves

The Companys homes are sold with limited third-party warranties Warranty reserves are established as homes close on

house-by-house
basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during

warranty periods
Certain factors are considered in determining

the reserves including the historical range
of amounts paid

per house experience with
respect

to similar home designs and geographical areas the historical amount paid as

percentage
of home construction costs any warranty expenditures not considered to be normal and recurring and

conditions that may affect certain subdivisions Improvements
in quality control and Construction techniques expected to

impact
future

warranty expenditures are also considered Accordingly the
process

of determining
the Companys warranty

reserves balance necessarily requires estimates associated with various assumptions each of which can positively or negatively

impact
this balance

Generally warranty reserves are reviewed monthly to determine the reasonableness and adequacy of both the
aggregate

reserve and the
per

unit reserve amount originally included in home cost of sales as well as the
timing

of
any

reversals of

the original reserve General warranty reserves not utilized for particular house are evaluated for reasonableness in the

aggregate on both market-by-market and consolidated basis Warranty payments for an individual house may exceed

the related reserve Payments in excess of the reserve are evaluated in the aggregate to determine if an adjustment to

the
warranty reserve should be recorded which could result in corresponding adjustment to home cost of sales



The Company continues to evaluate the adequacy of its warranty reserves and believes that its existing estimation process

is materially accurate Because the Companys warranty reserves can be impacted by significant number of factors it is

possible that changes to the Companys assumptions could have material
impact on its

warranty reserve balances

Variable Interest Entities VIE
FIN 46 requires VIE to be consolidated by company if that company is subject to majority of the risk of loss from

the VIEs activities and/or entitled to receive majority of the VIEs residual returns FIN 46 also requires disclosure about

VIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in which it has significant though not primary variable

interest The Company enters into joint ventures from time to time for the
purpose

of acquisition and co-development of

land parcels and lots Its investment in these joint ventures may create variable interest in VIE depending on the

contractual terms of the arrangement Additionally in the ordinary course of business the Company enters into lot
option

purchase contracts in order to
procure

land for the construction of homes Under such lot option purchase contracts the

Company funds stated deposits in consideration for the right to purchase lots at future
point in time usually at

predetermined prices
In accordance with the requirements of FIN 46 certain of the Companys lot

option purchase

contracts may result in the creation of variable interest in VIE The Company believes the
accounting

for joint ventures

and land option purchase contracts
using

the variable interest consolidation methodology is critical accounting policy

because compliance with FIN 46 requires the use of complex judgment in its application

Income Taxes

The Company calculates provision for its income taxes by using the asset and
liability method under which deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recognized by identifying the temporary differences
arising

from the different treatment of items for

tax and accounting purposes The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets on quarterly basis to determine whether

valuation allowance is required In accordance with SFAS 109 the Company assesses whether valuation allowance should

be established based on its determination of whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax

assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends primarily on the
generation

of future

taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible Judgment is required in

determining the future tax
consequences

of events that have been recognized in the Companys consolidated financial

statements and/or tax returns Differences between the amounts recognized in its financial statements and/or tax returns

and actual outcomes may arise upon issuance of regulations and final guidance from federal and state taxing
authorities

These differences could have material impact on the Companys consolidated results of
operations or financial

position

Share-Based Payments

Effective
January 2006 the Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R

SFAS 123R Share-Based Payment which requires that compensation expense
be measured and recognized at an

amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments granted under compensation arrangements The Company calculates

the fair value of stock options by using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model The determination of the fair value

of share-based awards at the grant date
requires judgment in developing assumptions which involve number of variables

These variables include but are not limited to expected stock-price volatility over the term of the awards expected dividend

yield and expected stock option exercise behavior Additionally judgment is also required in estimating the number of share-

based awards that are expected to forfeit If actual results differ significantly from these estimates stock-based
compensation

expense and the Companys consolidated results of operations could be materially impacted The Company believes the

accounting for stock-based compensation is critical accounting policy because it requires the use of complex judgment in

its
application

Outlook

In 2008 the Company experienced decline in sales orders for new homes compared to the same period last
year

due to

severe economic conditions and broader market trends that contributed to soft demand for residential housing as well as to

lower number of active communities resulting from Company initiatives to react to such trends Nearly all markets have

been affected
by reductions in the affordability of homes the availability of mortgage products and consumer demand for

homes leading to persistent high levels of new and resale home inventories The Company is prepared for prices and

margins
to remain under

pressure
for an extended period of time knowing that additional volume declines inventory

impairments and land option contract abandonment could result though potentially less in magnitude At December 31

2008 the Companys backlog of orders for new homes totaled 1559 units or projected dollar value of $407.1 million

reflecting 48.2 percent decrease in dollar value from December 31 2007 Recent activity by the federal
government

designed to stimulate the economy could improve demand but the Company is unable to predict when or whether this will

occur As long as the imbalance of housing supply and demand continues the Company will not only remain focused on its
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liquidity and balance sheet while seeking to optimize
its operating performance but also on positioning itself for return

to more favorable economic environment

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Summary
The following table provides information about the Companys significant financial instruments that are sensitive to changes

in interest rates For debt obligations the table
presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by

expected maturity dates For other financial instruments weighted-average rates are based on implied forward rates as of the

reporting date

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Principal Amount by Expected Maturity

FAIR

THERE- VALUE

in thousands
2009 2010-2012 2013 AFTER TOTAL 12/31/2008

Senior notes fixed rate 250000 250000 246000 746000 559851

Average
interest rate 5.4% 6.9% 5.4% 5.9% 5.9%

Other financial instruments

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments

Notional amount 88824 88824 2175

Average
interest rate 5.6% 5.6%

Forward-delivery contracts

Notional amount 103435 103435 1400

Average interest rate 5.4% 5.4%

Options on futures contracts

Notional amount 9000 9000 121

Investor financing commitments optional

Notional amount 1489 1489 19

Interest rate risk is primary market risk facing
the Company Interest rate risk arises principally in the Companys financial

services segment and also in respect to the homebuilding segments revolving credit facility The Company enters into

forward-delivery contracts and may at times use other hedging contracts to mitigate its
exposure

to movements in interest

rates on mortgage interest rate lock commitments IRLCs In managing interest rate risk the Company does not

speculate on the direction of interest rates See Note Derivative Instruments
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

REVENUES

Homebuilding

Financial services

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated joint ventures

Selling general and administrative

Financial services

Corporate

Expenses related to early retirement of debt

TOTAL EXPENSES

EARNINGS LOSS
Earnings loss before taxes

Tax
expense benefit

NET EARNINGS LOSS

in thousands except
share

data

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

1911631 2960194 4653920

64493 91681 126333

1976124 3051875 4780253

2003342 3034141 3639815

43900 342 260

250278 351376 440702

41466 50754 58638

42298 35554 66035

604 490 7695

2381888 3471973 4213145

405764 420098 567108

9179 86572 207166

396585 333526 359942

NET EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic 9.33 7.92 8.14

Diluted 9.33 7.92 7.83

AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING

Basic 42496796 42136315 44228502

Diluted 42496796 42136315 45944448

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE 0.39 0.48 0.48

See Notes it Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED I3ALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31

in thousands except
share

data

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Housing inventories

Homes under construction

Land under development and improved lots

Inventory
held-for-sale

Consolidated
inventory

not owned

Total housing inventories

Property plant
and equipment

Current taxes receivable

Net deferred taxes

Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued and other liabilities

Debt

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock $1.00
par

value

AuthorizedI0000 shares Series
Junior

Participating Preferred none outstanding

Common stock $1.00
par

value

AuthorizedI 99990000 shares

Issued42754467 shares at December 31 2008

42151085 shares at December 31 2007

Retained
earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1096317 1813677

41558 75538

160681 9141

158065

141173 251285

1862988 2551320

73464 114050

259947 404545

790399 839080

1123810 1357675

13816 68919

42754 42151

679317 1078521

3291 4054

725362 1124726

1862988 2551320

2008 2007

423259 243614

464810

547318

68971

15218

717992

949726

69225

76734
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CONSOLIDATEI STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

ACCUMULATED
OTHER

COMMON RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
STOCK EARNINGS INCOME

TOTAL
STOCKHOLDERS

EQUITYin thousands
except per

share
data

BALANCE AT JANUARY 2006 46368 1326689 2964 1376021

Comprehensive income

Net
earnings 359942 359942

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Change in net unrealized
gain on cash flow hedging

instruments and mortgage-backed securities net of taxes

of $1154 1863 1863

Total comprehensive income 361805

Common stock dividends per share $0.48 21214 21214

Repurchase of common stock 4700 245418 250118
Stock-based

compensation
and related income tax benefit 944 43728 44672

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 2006 42612 1463727 4827 1511166

Comprehensive income loss

Net
earnings loss 333526 333526

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Change in net unrealized
gain on cash flow hedging

instruments and available-for-sale securities net of taxes

of $479 773 773

Total comprehensive income loss 334299
Common stock dividends per share $0.48 20286 20286

Repurchase of common stock 1265 58016 59281
Stock-based compensation and related income tax benefit 804 26622 27426

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 2007 42151 1078521 4054 1124726

Comprehensive income loss

Net
earnings loss 396585 396585

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Change in net unrealized
gain

on cash flow hedging

instruments and available-for-sale securities net of taxes

of $473 763 763

Total comprehensive income loss 397348
Common stock dividends per share $0.39 16719 16719
Stock-based

compensation
and related income tax benefit 603 14100 14703

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 2008 42754 679317 3291 725362

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net
earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net
earnings loss to net cash

provided by operating
activities

Depreciation
and amortization

Stock-based compensation expense

Inventory
and other asset impairments and write-offs

Deferred tax valuation allowance

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in inventories

Net change in other assets payables
and other liabilities

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Other
operating activities net

Net cash
provided by operating

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property plant
and equipment

Other investing activities net

Net cash used for
investing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash
proceeds

of long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt

Net borrowings against revolving
credit facilities

Decrease increase in short-term borrowings

Common stock dividends

Common stock
repurchases

Issuance of common stock under stock-based compensation

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Net cash used for
financing activities

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

396585 333526 359942

52215

9048

325480

143784

383237

239388

3138
26227

54494

12257

583363

75166

273355

412984

6714
17271

46731

25593

81314

263444

217488

14632

3379

248426 228140 14637

9866 32147 53839

40 750 2250

9826 31397 51589

250000

54000 100000 243500

22125

16806 11037 21647

20510 20365 21666

59281 250118

7098 15803 19611

3138 6714 14632

58955 168166 209394

179645 28577 246346

243614 215037 461383

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 215037

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash
paid

for interest net of
capitalized interest

76 1097 1295

Cash
paid refunds received for income taxes 20111 25569 258205

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES

Decrease increase in consolidated inventory not owned related to land
options 54283 104415 9139

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

423259 243614
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Basis
of

Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Ryland Group Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the 2008
presentation

Use
of

Estimates

The
preparation

of financial statements in conformity
with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes Actual results could differ from these estimates

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

At December 31 2008 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $423.3 million of which $30.0 million was

restricted The Company considers all
highly liquid short-term investments and cash held in escrow to be cash equivalents

Cash equivalents totaled $364.6 million and $193.6 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Per Share Data

Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing net
earnings by the weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding Additionally diluted net earnings per common share give effect to dilutive common stock equivalent

shares For the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the effect of outstanding restricted stock units and stock options

was not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive due to the

Companys net loss for the
year

StockBased Compensation

Effective January 2006 the Company complies with the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R by using the

modified-prospective transition method Under that transition method compensation cost recognized in 2008 2007 and

2006 includes
compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior

to January 2006 but not yet vested

based on the
grant-date

fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting

Standards No 123 SFAS 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and compensation cost for all share-

based
payments granted subsequent to January 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the

provisions
of SFAS 123R

Homebuilding Revenues

In accordance with SFAS 66 homebuilding revenues are recognized when home and lot sales are closed title and possession

are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement from the homebuilder Sales incentives offset

revenues and are expensed when homes are closed

Housin Inventories

Housing inventories consist principally of homes under construction land under development and
improved lots and

inventory held-for-sale Inventory includes land and development costs direct construction costs capitalized indirect

construction costs capitalized interest and real estate taxes The costs of acquiring and
developing land and constructing

certain related amenities are allocated to the parcels to which these costs relate Interest and taxes are capitalized during

active development and construction Inventories to be held and used are stated at cost unless
community

is determined

to be impaired in which case the impaired inventories are written down to fair value Inventories held-for-sale are stated at

the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable
Recoverability

of these assets is

measured by comparing
the

carrying
amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows

expected to be generated by

that asset or by the sales of comparable assets For inventory held and used undiscounted cash flow projections are

generated at community level based on estimates of revenues costs and other factors The Companys analysis of these

communities generally assumes current revenues equal to current sales orders for particular or comparable communities The

Companys determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting estimated cash flows at rate commensurate with

inherent risks that are associated with assets and related estimated cash flow streams When determining the value of

inventory held-for-sale the Company considers recent offers comparable sales and/or estimated cash flows Inventories to

be held and used or disposed of are reported net of valuation reserves Write-downs of impaired inventories to fair value are

recorded as adjustments to the cost basis of the respective inventory Valuation reserves related to impaired inventories

amounted to $445.2 million and $488.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The net carrying values of
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the related inventories amounted to $378.6 million and $388.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Inventory costs include direct costs of land and land development material acquisition and home construction expenses

The costs of acquiring and developing
land and constructing certain related amenities are allocated to the parcels to which

these costs relate Interest and taxes are capitalized during the land development and construction stages

The following table is summary of capitalized
interest

in thousands
2008 2007

Capitalized interest at January
119267 98932

Interest capitalized
46889 62024

Interest amortized to cost of sales 61146 41689

Capitalized
interest at December 31 105010 119267

The following table summarizes each reporting segments
total number 0f lots owned and lots controlled under option

agreements
DECEMBER 31 2008 DECEMBER 31 2007

LOTS LOTS LOTS LOTS

OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL

North 4381 2755 7136 5999 5787 11786

Southeast 7969 749 8718 9957 3192 13149

Texas 4833 440 5273 5784 3434 9218

West 2056 372 2428 4907 840 5747

Total 19239 4316 23555 26647 13253 39900

Variable Interest Entities

FIN 46 requires VIE to be consolidated by company if that company is subject to majority 0f the risk of loss from

the VIEs activities and/or entitled to receive majority of the VIEs residual returns FIN 46 also
requires

disclosures

about VIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in which it has significant though not primary
variable

interest

The Company enters into joint ventures from time to time for the purpose 0f acquisition and co-development
of land

parcels and lots Its investment in these joint ventures may create variable interest in VIE depending on the contractual

terms of the arrangement Additionally in the ordinary course of business the Company enters into lot option purchase

contracts in order to procure
land for the construction of homes Under such lot option purchase contracts the Company

funds stated deposits in consideration for the right to purchase lots at future
point in time usually at predetermined

prices
In accordance with the requirements

of FIN 46 certain of the Companys lot option purchase contracts may result

in the creation of variable interest in \IE

In compliance with the provisions of FIN 46 the Company consolidated $15.2 million of inventory not owned at

December 31 2008 of which $14.4 million pertained to land and lot option purchase contracts representing the fair value

of the optioned property and $799000 pertained to one of its homebuilding joint ventures See further discussion that

follows under Investments in Joint Ventures While the Company may not have had legal title to the optioned land or

guaranteed
the sellers debt associated with that

property
under FIN 46 it had the primary variable interest and was

required to consolidate the particular VIEs assets under option at fair value Additionally to reflect the fair value of the

inventory
consolidated under FIN 46 the Company eliminated $845000 of its related cash deposits

for lot option

purchase contracts which are included in Consolidated inventory not owned Minority interest totaling $13.6 million was

recorded with
respect to the consolidation of these contracts representing

the selling entities ownership
interests in these

VIEs At December 31 2008 the Company had cash deposits and letters of credit totaling $2.1 million relating to lot

option purchase contracts that were consolidated representing its current maximum
exposure

to loss Creditors of these

VIEs if
any

have no recourse against
the Company At December 31 2008 the Company had cash deposits and/or letters

0f credit totaling $20.4 million that were associated with lot option purchase contracts having an aggregate purchase price

of $184.6 million and related to VIEs in which it did not have primary
variable interest

Service Liabilities

Service warranty and completion costs are estimated and accrued at the time home closes and updated as experience

requires
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Investments in
Joint

Ientures

The Company enters into joint ventures from time to time for the
purpose

of
acquisition

and
co-development of land

parcels and lots Currently the Company participates in six active homebuilding joint ventures in the Austin Chicago

Dallas Denver and Orlando markets It
participates in number of joint ventures in which it has less than

controlling

interest The Company recognizes its share of the respective joint ventures earnings or losses from the sale of lots to other

homebuilders It does not however recognize earnings or losses from lots that it purchases from the
joint ventures Instead

it reduces its cost basis in these lots
by

its share of the
earnings

from the lots

The following table summarizes each
reporting segments total estimated share of lots owned and controlled by the

Company under its joint ventures

DECEMBER 31 2008 DECEMBER 31 2007

LOTS LOTS LOTS LOTS
OWNED OPTIONED OWNED OPTIONEDTOTAL TOTAL

North 578 578 681 681

Southeast 45 45

Texas 145 145 189 189

West 166 1209 1375 410 1209 1619

Total 889 1209 2098 1325 1209 2534

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Companys investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $12.5 million and

$30.8 million respectively and were classified in the consolidated balance sheets under Other assets For the
year

ended

December 31 2008 the Companys equity in losses from unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $43.9 million compared to

earnings of $342000 and losses of $260000 for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively The increased loss in

2008 compared to 2007 was primarily attributable to an $8.7 million
impairment of inventory within two joint ventures

in the West
region and $35.8 million impairment of inventory within joint venture in the Companys North region

partially offset
by earnings from its other unconsolidated joint ventures The

aggregate debt of the unconsolidated joint

ventures in which the Company participated totaled $1.3 million and $508.4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

One of the Companys unconsolidated joint ventures had recorded assets of $644.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at

December 31 2007
During 2008 the debt related to this joint venture was declared in default and the administrative

agent
for the lenders foreclosed on the real estate securing the loan in non-judicial foreclosure proceeding The Company

and its partners in the
joint venture provided limited Repayment Guarantee of the outstanding debt that can only be

pursued upon the occurrence of certain bankruptcy events with
respect to the

joint venture which have not occurred In

addition Completion Guarantee was also provided that pertained to development and improvement costs estimated by the

banks at $358.0 million certain interest and other obligations The Company has 3.3 percent interest in this joint

venture and its obligation with
respect

to the Repayment Guarantee and Completion Guarantee is limited to its
pro rata

percentage
of the

guarantee and/or costs as applicable The administrative
agent under the loan documents filed

complaint against the Company and certain other
partners in the

joint venture during the fourth quarter of 2008 seeking

enforcement of the
Completion Guarantees including damage claim for an alleged failure of performance The Company

wrote off its $7.2 million investment in this joint venture during the first
quarter 0f 2008

The Company had an interest in another joint venture in which the Company had an investment of $2.9 million and

$13.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The decrease was primarily due to $35.9 million impairment

of the Companys share of inventory within the venture In addition during 2008 an appraisal generated lender demand

for
repayment

of debt in the amount of $39.3 million of which the Company paid its pro rata share of $19.6 million At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the actual borrowings against the
revolving credit

facility
for this joint venture were

$1.3 million and $50.6 million respectively of which the Companys pro rata share of debt under payment guarantee was

$646000 and $25.3 million respectively

At December 31 2008 one of the joint ventures in which the Company participated was consolidated in accordance with

the
provisions

of FiN 46 as the Company was determined to have the
primary variable interest in this entity In association

with this consolidated joint venture the Company eliminates
any pretax earnings or losses if

any
sales are made by the joint

venture to the Company The Company did not record
any pretax earnings or losses for the

year
ended December 31

2008 in association with this consolidated joint venture For the year ended December 31 2007 the Company recorded

pretax earnings of $108000 in connection with its consolidated joint ventures The Company consolidated approximately
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$810000 of assets which included $799000 of consolidated inventory not owned $968000 of total liabilities and

approximately $242000 of minority interest at December 31 2008 Total assets of approximately $782000 including

consolidated inventory not owned and minority interest of $1.1 million were consolidated at December 31 2007

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment
which included model home furnishings of $38.6 million and $69.6 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization Depreciation

is provided for principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Model home

furnishings which are amortized over the life of the community as homes are closed are included in selling general and

administrative expenses

Purchase Price in Excess
of

Net Assets Acquired

Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 142 SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets requires

that

goodwill and certain intangible assets no longer be amortized but be reviewed for impairment at least annually Intangible

assets with Linite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives SFAS 142 also requires that goodwill

included in the
carrying

value 0f equity-method
investments no longer be amortized

Goodwill is allocated to the reporting
unit from which it originates The Company performs impairment tests of its

goodwill annually as of March 31 or as needed The Company tests goodwill
for

impairment by using the two-step process

prescribed in SFAS 142 The first
step

identifies potential impairment
while the second

step measures the amount of

impairment
The Company evaluated the recoverability of its goodwill at December 2008 which resulted in an

impairment of its remaining goodwill that totaled $2.8 million and reported it under Selling general and administrative

expenses This impairment related to the 1998 acquisition
of The Regency Organization Inc in the Companys Southeast

region There was no goodwill remaining at December 31 2008

The Company recorded $15.4 million goodwill impairment charge which was reported under Selling general and

administrative expenses during the first
quarter

of 2007 This impairment was related to the 1986 acquisition of MJ

Brock Sons California homebuilder based in the Companys West
region

As result of the Companys application
of the nonamortization

provisions
of SFAS 142 no amortization of goodwill was

recorded in 2008 2007 or 2006

Income Taxes

The Company files consolidated federal income tax return Certain items of income and
expense are included in one

period for financial
reporting purposes

and in another for income tax purposes
Deferred income taxes are provided in

recognition of these differences Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on enacted tax rates and are

subsequently adjusted for changes in these rates An allowance against
the Companys deferred tax assets may be established

if it is more likely
than not that all or some portion

of the deferred tax assets will not be realized change in deferred

tax assets or liabilities results in charge or credit to deferred tax
expense See Note Income Taxes

Loan Orgination Fees Costs Mortgage Discounts and Loan Sales

Loan origination fees net of loan discount points were recognized in earnings upon the sale of related
mortgage

loans

prior to January 2008 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 140 SFAS 140
Accounting

for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities and Statement of Financial

Accounting
Standards No 91 SFAS 91 Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or

Acquiring
Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases Beginning January 2008 upon the implementation of Statement of

Financial Accounting
Standards No 159 SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities loan origination fees net 0f loan discount points were recognized in earnings upon
the origination of related

mortgage loans in accordance with SFAS 159

Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business and pursuant to its risk-management policy the Company enters as an end user into

derivative instruments including forward-delivery contracts for loans options on forward-delivery contracts futures contracts

and options on futures contracts to minimize the impact of movements in market interest rates on IRLCs Major factors

influencing the use of various hedging contracts include general market conditions interest rates types
of

mortgages

originated and the percentage
of IRLCs expected to fund The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of

nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging contracts Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company



is in net unrealized gain position It
manages

this credit risk by entering into
agreements

with counterparties meeting its

credit standards and by monitoring position limits The Company elected not to use hedge accounting treatment with

respect to its economic hedging activities Accordingly all derivative instruments used as economic hedges are carried in the

consolidated balance sheets in Other assets or Accrued and other liabilities at fair value with changes in value recorded

in current earnings The Companys mortgage pipeline includes IRLCs which
represent

commitments that have been

extended by the Company to those borrowers who have applied for loan funding and have met certain defined credit and

underwriting criteria Additionally RMC periodically purchases investor financing commitments IFCs from third
party

These commitments enable RMC to sell loans at fixed rate for stipulated period of time The Company determined

that its IRLCs and IFCs meet the definition of derivatives under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133

SFAS 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended

Advertising
Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred Advertising costs totaled $14.4 million $28.7 million and

$34.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net earnings or losses and the increase or decrease in unrealized
gains or losses on the

Companys available-for-sale securities as well as the decrease in unrealized
gains associated with the

treasury locks net of

applicable taxes Comprehensive losses totaled $397.3 million compared to losses of $334.3 million and income of

$361.8 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

New Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS 157

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 157 SFAS 157 Fair-Value

Measurements SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for
measuring

fair value in
generally accepted

accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair-value measurements SFAS 157 is effective as of the beginning of

an entitys fiscal
year

that begins after November 15 2007 In
February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position No

FAS 57-2 which partially defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities except for items that

are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis until fiscal
years beginning after

November IS 2008 The partial adoption of SFAS 157 did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the remaining provisions of SFAS 157

however it is not expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

SFAS 158

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting

Standards No 158 SFAS 158 Employers

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plansan Amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88

106 and 132R SFAS 158
requires

that the funded status of defined benefit
pension plans and other

postretirement

plans be recognized in the balance sheet along with corresponding after-tax adjustment to stockholders equity The

recognition of the funded status provision
of SPAS 158 applies prospectively and is effective December 31 2007

SFAS 158 also
requires measurement of plan assets and benefit obligations at the entitys fiscal year-end effective

December 31 2008 SFAS 158 did not and is not expected to have material effect on the Companys financial condition

or results of
operations

SFAS 160

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 160 SFAS 160 Noncontrolling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an Amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 establishes accounting and

reporting standards pertaining to ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties
other than the

parent
the amount of

net income attributable to the
parent

and to the
noncontrolling interest changes in parents ownership interest and the

valuation of
any retained noncontrolling equity investment when subsidiary is deconsolidated SFAS 160 also establishes

disclosure
requirements

that
clearly identify

and
distinguish

between the interests of the
parent

and the interests of the

noncontrolling owners SFAS 160 is required to be adopted prospectively for the first annual reporting period beginning

after December 15 2008 The Company is currently reviewing this statement and has not yet determined the impact if

any on its consolidated financial statements
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SFAS 161

In March 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 161 SFAS 161 Disclosures About

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesan amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SEAS 161 expands the

disclosure requirements
in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities SFAS 161 is effective for the Companys fiscal year beginning January 2009 The Company does

not expect
the adoption of SFAS 161 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

SFAS 162

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 162 SFAS 162 The Hierarchy of

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for

selecting the principles to be used in the preparation of financial statements for nongovernmental entities that are presented

in conformity with GAAP SFAS 162 will be effective 60 days following the SECS approval 0f the Public Company

Accounting Oversight
Boards amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present Fairly

in Conformity with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does not expect
the adoption of SFAS 162 to have material

impact on its consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

SFAS 163

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 163 SFAS 163 Accounting for

Financial Guarantee Insurance Contractsan Interpretation
of FASB Statement No 60 SFAS 163

requires
that an

insurance entity recognize claim
liability prior

to an event of default insured event when there is evidence that credit

deterioration has occurred in an insured financial obligation
SFAS 163 also clarifies the application

of SFAS 60

Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises to financial
guarantee

insurance contracts and expands disclosure

requirements surrounding such contracts SFAS 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years

and interim

periods beginning after December 15 2008 The Company is currently reviewing this statement and has not yet
determined

the impact
if

any on its consolidated financial statements

FSP 157-3

In October 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 157-3 FSP 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of

Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active The staff position clarifies the application of SFAS 157

to market that is not active FSP 157-3 became effective upon issuance including prior periods
for which financial

statements have not been issued The Company adopted FSP 157-3 as of September 30 2008 and it did not have

material impact on its consolidated financial position results 0f
operations

or cash flows

Note Segment Information

The Company is leading national homebuilder and mortgage-related financial services firm As one of the largest single-

family on-site homebuilders in the United States it

operates
in IS states and 19 homebuilding divisions across the country

The Company consists of six segments
four geographically determined homebuilding regions financial services and

corporate
The Companys homebuilding operations

consist of four regional reporting segments
referred to as North

Southeast Texas and West The homebuilding segments specialize in the sale and construction of single-family attached and

detached housing Its financial services
segment

includes RMC RHIC LPS and CNRRG The Companys financial services

segment provides loan origination
and offers

mortgage
title escrow and insurance services Corporate is nonoperating

business segment with the sole
purpose

of
supporting operations Certain corporate expenses are allocated to the

homebuilding and financial services
segments

while certain assets relating to employee benefit plans are attributed to other

segments
in order to best reflect the Companys financial position and results of

operations

The Company evaluates performance
and allocates resources based on number of factors including segment pretax

earnings and risk The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note Summary of

Significant Accounting
Policies
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Selected Segment Information

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

in thousands 2008 2007 2006

REVENUES

Homebuildmg

North 639814 857448 1196335
Southeast 558194 929168 1522123

Texas 415761 571689 695356

West 297862 601889 1240106

Financial services 64493 91681 126333

Total 1976124 3051875 4780253

EARNINGS LOSS BEFORE TAXES

Homebuilding

North 156158 37077 170636

Southeast 95449 59419 253120

Texas 19828 27098 59854

West 114454 355583 89533

Financial services 23027 40927 67695

Corporate and unallocated 42902 36044 73730

Total 405764 420098 567108

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Homebuilding

North 10079 9080 9620

Southeast 16566 8252 10913

Texas 8589 6856 7366

West 15415 27552 15981

Financial services 361 1054 1225

Corporate and unallocated 1205 1700 1626

Total 52215 54494 46731

DECEMBER 31

in thousands 2008 2007

IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS

Homebuilding

North 520969 724105

Southeast 476633 693532

Texas 378625 421359

West 197814 379640

Financial services 98540 93200

Corporate and unallocated 190407 239484

Total 1862988 2551320

Note
Earnings Per Share Reconciliation

The
following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per

share

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

in thousands except
share data 2008 2007 2006

NUMERATOR
Net

earnings loss 396585 333526 359942

DENOMINATOR
Basic

earnings per share_weighted-average shares 42496796 42136315 44228502

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock
options 1294237

Equity incentive plan 421709

Dilutive
potential

of common shares 1715946

Dilutive
earnings per shareadjusted weightedaverage shares and assumed conversions 42496796 42136315 45944448

NET EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic 9.33 7.92 8.14

Diluted 9.33 7.92 7.83
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For the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the effect of outstanding restricted stock units and stock options was

not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive due to the Companys

net loss for the
year Options to purchase 1.1 million shares of common stock at various prices were outstanding at

December 31 2006 but were not included in the computation
of diluted earnings per share because their effect would have

been antidilutive since their exercise prices were greater
than the

average
market price of the common shares

Note Derivative Instruments

The Company which uses derivative financial instruments in Its normal course of operations has no derivative financial

instruments that are held for trading purposes

The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments at December 31 were as follows

in thousands
2008 2007

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments 88824 66126

Hedging contracts

Forward-delivery contracts 103435 47500

Options on futures contracts 9000 21000

Investor financing commitments 1489 32534

IRLCs represent loan commitments with customers at market rates generally up to 180 days before settlement IRLCs

expose
the Company to market risk as result of increases in mortgage

interest rates IRLCs had interest rates generally

ranging from 5.0 to 7.0 percent at December 31 2008 and 2007

Hedging contracts are regularly entered into by the Company for the
purpose

of mitigating its
exposure

to movements in

interest rates on IRLCs The selection of these hedging contracts is based upon the Companys secondary marketing

strategy which establishes risk-tolerance level Major factors influencing the use of various hedging contracts include

general market conditions interest rates types
of mortgages originated

and the
percentage

of IRLCs expected to fund The

market risk assumed while holding the hedging contracts generally mitigates
the market risk associated with IRLCs The

Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging contracts

Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company is in net unrealized gain position
The Company manages

this credit risk by entering
into

agreements
with counterparties meeting its credit standards and by monitoring position

limits

During the second quarter
of 2006 the Company terminated its $100.0 million treasury

lock at 4.2
percent

and its

$150.0 million treasury
lock at 4.1

percent
These hedges were entered into to facilitate the replacement of higher-rate

senior and senior subordinated debt in 2006 which were evaluated and deemed to be highly effective at the inception of

the contracts The Company accounted for the treasury
locks as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS 133 As

result of changes in the timing of the Companys debt issuance and in the term 0f debt issued in the second quarter
of

2006 gain of $9.2 million was recognized during that period reflecting the ineffective portion of those cash flow hedges

For the
year

ended 2006 the Company recognized pretax gains of $9.9 million from the termination of these treasury

locks The $8.4 million effective portion
of the settlement value of the $150.0 million treasury lock was recorded net of

income tax effect in Accumulated other comprehensive income and will be amortized over the seven-year
life of the

related debt instrument The Company recorded amortization of $1.2 million for the years ended December 2008 and

2007 and approximately $704000 for the
year

ended December 31 2006 related to the effective portion of this

termination

Note Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Companys financial instruments are held for purposes
other than trading The fair values of these financial instruments

are based on quoted market prices where available or are estimated
using

other valuation techniques Estimated fair values

are significantly affected by the assumptions used
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The table below sets forth the
carrying

values and fair values of the Companys financial instruments at December 31 2008

and 2007 It excludes nonfinancial instruments and accordingly the
aggregate

fair value amounts presented do not represent

the underlying value of the Company

2008 2007

CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUEin thousands

OTHER ASSETS

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 26291 26291 12557 12813

DEBT

Senior notes 746000 559851 800000 751885

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Mortgage interest tate lock commitments 2175 2175 298 298

Forward-delivery contracts I400 1400 181 181
Options on futures contracts 121 12I 298 298

Investor financing commitments 19 19 15 15

The
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and secured notes payable are reported in the balance sheet and

approximate
their fair values The fair values of the senior notes mortgage loans held-for-sale forward-delivery contracts

and IRLCs are based on either quoted market
prices or market

prices
for similar financial instruments Beginning in 2008

the fair values of the IRLCs include amounts associated with the future servicing of loans in accordance with SAB 109

The fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices where available or are estimated using other

valuation
techniques Estimated fair values are significantly affected by assumptions used SFAS 157 categorizes fair value

measurements as level level or level based on the type of inputs used in estimating fair value The table below sets

forth information
regarding

the Companys fair value measurement methods and values

DECEMBER 31 2008

FAIR VALUE

QUOTED VALUATION VALUATION
PRICES UTILIZES UTILIZES

LOWER OF IN ACTIVE OBSERVABLE UNOBSERVABLE
COST OR MARKETS INPUTS INPUTS

MARKET LEVEL LEVEL LEVELin thousands TOTAL

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 195 26096 26291

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments 2175 2175

Forward_delivery contracts 1400 1400
Options on futures contracts 121 121

Investor
financing

commitments 19 19

Loans originated prior
to january 2008

Options on futures contracts are exchange-traded and are valued based on quoted market exit prices level Loans

held-for-sale and forward delivery contracts are based on quoted market prices of similar instruments level As of

December 31 2008 contractual principal amounts of loans held-for-sale totaled $25.8 million IRLCs are valued at their

aggregate market price premium or deficit plus servicing premium multiplied by the projected close ratio The market price

premium or deficit is based on quoted market prices of similar instruments level the servicing premium is based on

contractual investor guidelines for each product level and the projected close ratio is determined utilizing an external

modeling system used widely within the industry to estimate customer behavior at an individual loan level level Investor

financing commitments are valued based on their intrinsic value which is determined with reference to movements in market

interest rates level plus time value factor that is extrapolated from current market
prices

of similar contracts level

In 2008 the Company implemented SAB 109 which revises and rescinds portions of Staff Accounting Bulletin No 105

SAB 105 Loan Commitments Accounted for as Derivative Instruments and requires that expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of loan be included in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are

accounted for at fair value through earnings
The provisions of SAB 109 were applicable to written loan commitments

issued or modified beginning on January 2008 when SAB 109 was adopted At December 31 2008 servicing rights of

$1.7 million were included in net
gains on the sale of mortgages and mortgage servicing rights in accordance with

SAB 109
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The Company adopted SFAS 159 on prospective
basis for

mortgage
loans held-for-sale effective January 2008

Accordingly mortgage
loans held-for-sale that originated subsequent to January 2008 are measured at fair value Loans

originated prior to that date are held at the lower of cost or market on an aggregate basis in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard No 65 Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities The application of

SFAS 159 to loans held-for-sale improves the consistency of loan valuation between the date of borrower lock and the date

of loan sale As of December 31 2008 the difference between the
aggregate

fair value and the
aggregate unpaid principal

balance for mortgage loans held-for-sale measured at fair value was $704000 Consequently this amount has been

recognized as gain in current earnings within financial services revenues The Company held two loans with payments

90 days or more past due as of December 31 2008 that had an aggregate carrying value of $145000

While recorded fair values represent managements best estimate based on data currently available future changes in interest

rates or in market prices for mortgage loans among other factors could have material impact on the value of these items

The following table represents reconciliation of changes in fair values of level items included in revenues under

Financial services within the Consolidated Statements 0f Earnings

in thousands
IRLCs IFCs

Fair value at January 2008 298 15

Gain loss
recognized on conversion to loans 6475

Additions 9346 1.497

Change in valuation of items held 994 1.493

Fair value at December 31 2008 2175 19

Note Debt

Debt consisted of the following at December 31

in thousands
2008 2007

Senior notes 746000 800000

Secured notes payable 22274 39080

RMC warehouse line of credit 22125

Total debt 790399 839080

At December 31 2008 maturities of debt are scheduled as follows

in
thousands

2009 32716

2010 6130

2011 5553

2012 250000

After 2012 496000

Total debt 790399

At December 31 2008 the Company had outstanding $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012

$250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013 and $246.0 million of 54
percent

senior notes due

January 2015 Each of the senior notes pays interest semiannually and may be redeemed at stated redemption price at the

option of the Company in whole or in part at any time

During 2008 the Companys $50.0 million of 54 percent senior notes due June 2008 matured and were repaid and the

Company repurchased $4.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due January 2015 See Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Financial Condition and Liquidity

The senior notes and indenture agreements are subject to certain covenants that include among other things restrictions on

additional secured debt and the sale of assets The Company was in compliance with these covenants at December 31

2008
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In February and June of 2008 the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility The credit facility
is used for

general corporate purposes
and contains affirmative negative and financial covenants including minimum consolidated

tangible net worth requirement permitted leverage ratio and limitations on unsold home units unsold land lot inventory

investments and senior debt The amendments included among other things decrease in the Companys borrowing

availability from $750.0 million to $550.0 million reduction in the base amount for the minimum consolidated

tangible net worth covenant an increase in the
pricing grid which is based on the Companys leverage ratio and public

debt rating an adjustment in the permitted leverage ratio to no less than 55.0 percent for the fourth quarter
of 2008

and the first
quarter

of 2009 52.5 percent for the second third and fourth quarters of 2009 and 50.0 percent thereafter

an increase in the borrowing base by adding restricted cash
up

to $300.0 million change in the definition of

material indebtedness to $20.0 million and change in the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to

I.I5x its consolidated tangible net worth

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement the Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Agent and the lenders listed therein which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys borrowing availability

from $550.0 million to $200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant default limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to be no more than 55.0 percent agreed to establish certain

liquidity reserve accounts in the event the Company fails to satisfy an interest coverage test and an adjusted cash flow from

operations to interest incurred test changed the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to .20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing base to allow for 100.0 percent use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less
any

drawn balances on the revolving credit facility established requirement for the Company to

cash collateralize
pro rata share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and swing line exposure established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit of $10.0 million and increased the
pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage
ratio and public debt rating as well as the interest coverage

ratio The credit facilitys maturity date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million subject to the

availability of additional lending commitments The revolving credit
facility

includes $75.0 million swing-line facility and

the
ability to issue standby letters of credit Amounts borrowed under the credit agreement are guaranteed on joint and

several basis
by substantially all of the Companys 100 percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries Such guarantees are full

and unconditional Interest rates on outstanding borrowings under the amended
facility

are determined either by reference to

LIBOR or an alternative base rate with margins determined based on changes in the Companys leverage ratio and credit

ratings plus if the Companys interest
coverage ratio is less than 2.0 to 1.0 an interest premium is determined based on

changes in the Companys interest
coverage ratio See Note Subsequent Events

There were no borrowings outstanding under the
facility

at December 31 2008 or 2007 Letters of credit aggregating

$95.7 million and $157.8 million were outstanding under the
facility

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Under

the
facility

the unused borrowing capacity as then in effect totaled $454.3 million and $592.2 million at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2008 the $550.0 million facility then in effect was subject to borrowing

base limitation covenant which restricted its borrowing capacity
to $338.1 million of which $242.4 million was available

The Company was in compliance with its covenants at December 31 2008 The reduction in the facilitys commitments

during 2008 resulted in an expense
of $604000 which represented the write-off of pro rata portion of unamortized

debt costs and is included within Expenses related to early retirement of debt in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Financial Condition and

Liquidity

At December 31 2008 the Companys obligations to
pay principal premium if any and interest under its unsecured

revolving
credit facility 54

percent senior notes due May 2012 6.9 percent senior notes due June 2013 and 5.4 percent

senior notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on joint and several basis by substantially all of its 100 percent-owned

homebuilding subsidiaries Such
guarantees are full and unconditional See Note Supplemental Guarantor

Information

To finance its land purchases the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes payable At

December 31 2008 and 2007 outstanding
seller-financed nonrecourse notes payable were $22.3 million and $39.1 million

respectively
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RMC had mortgage
warehouse line of credit with Guaranty Bank which matured in January 2009 and provided for

borrowings up to $40.0 million to fund RMCs mortgage
loan origination operations The RMC Credit Agreement is

secured by underlying mortgage loans and by
other assets of RMC Facility balances were repaid as loans funded under the

agreement were sold to third parties
The RMC Credit Agreements interest rate was set at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent

with

commitment fee of 0.125 percent
The RMC Credit Agreement contained representations warranties covenants and

provisions defining events of default The covenants required RMC to maintain certain financial ratios including tangible

net worth minimum of $13.0 million an adjusted tangible net worth minimum of $5.0 million ratio of total

indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth of 121 and consolidated net income for the four preceding fiscal quarters

The Company was in compliance
with these covenants and outstanding borrowings against

this credit
facility

totaled

$22.1 million at December 31 2008 See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Financial Condition and Liquidity

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facility $60.0 million repurchase facility with Guaranty
Bank

and Buyers The
facility

became effective January 15 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired in January

2009 The agreement contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margin
of 175

percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0 percent The
facility

contains representations warranties covenants and provisions defining events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios

Note Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for estimated tax effects that are attributable to deductible temporary differences and tax

carryforwards related to tax credits and operating losses They are realized when existing temporary differences are carried

back to profitable years and/or carried forward to future years having taxable income Deferred tax assets are reduced by

valuation allowance if an assessment of their components
indicates that it is more likely

than not that some portion of the

deferred tax asset will not be realized This assessment considers among other things the nature frequency and
severity

of

current and cumulative losses forecasts of future profitability
the duration of the statutory carryforward periods the

Companys experience with loss carryforwards not expiring unused and tax planning alternatives The Company generated

additional deferred tax assets in 2008 and 2007 due to inventory impairments In light of these additional impairments the

continued downturn in the housing market and the uncertainty as to its duration which limits the Companys ability to

predict
future taxable income the Company determined that an allowance against its deferred tax assets was required

Therefore in accordance with SFAS 109 the Company recorded valuation allowances totaling $143.8 million and

$75.2 million against its deferred tax assets during
2008 and 2007 respectively which were reflected as noncash charges to

income tax expense
The valuation allowance taken in 2008 was comprised of $13.3 million of net state taxes and

$130.5 million of federal taxes which related to tax benefits generated in 2008 The valuation allowance taken in 2007 was

comprised of net state taxes of $21.7 million and federal taxes of $53.5 million For the year
ended December 31 2006

no valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset was required The net increase in the valuation allowance was

$143.8 million and the balance of the deferred tax valuation allowance was $219.0 million as of December 31 2008 For

federal
purposes

net operating losses can be carried forward 20
years

and for state purposes can generally be carried

forward JO to IS
years depending on the taxing jurisdiction To the extent that the Company generates

sufficient taxable

income in the fliture to utilize the tax benefits of related deferred tax assets it expects to experience
reduction in its

effective tax rate as the valuation allowance is reversed

As result of the noncash tax charges the Companys effective income tax benefit rate was 2.3 percent for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 compared to an effective income tax benefit rate of 20.6
percent

and an effective provision rate of

36.5 percent for the
years

ended 2007 and 2006 respectively
The decrease in effective income tax benefit rate in 2008

compared to 2007 was primarily due to its noncash tax charges that related to its deferred tax assets The decrease in the

effective tax rate for 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to noncash tax charge of $75.2 million for valuation

allowance related to its deferred tax assets and the impact
0f lower

pretax earnings
for 2007 The Company had net

current tax receivable of $160.7 million and $9.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The following table reconciles the
statutory

federal income tax rate to the Companys effective income tax rate for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

Income taxes at federal
statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes net of federal tax 3.2 3.2 3.2

Domestic production activity
deduction 0.9

Resolution of tax contingency 2.0 1.0
Goodwill 0.3 1.4
Deferred tax asset allowance 35.4 17.8

Other 0.2 0.4 0.2

Effecove tax rate 2.3% 20.6% 36.5%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes Significant components of the

Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were as follows

in thousands 2008 2007

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Warranty legal
and other accruals 21813 23801

Employee benefits 28678 48574

Noncash
charge

for impairment of longlived assets 170.5 17 187385

Joint ventures 12725 154

State net operating
loss

carryforwards 17560 1755

Other 1418 4281

Total 252711 265950

Valuation allowance 218950 75166

Total deferred tax assets 33761 190784

DEFERRED TAX UABILITIES

Deferred
recognition

of income and
gains 3.065 2224

Capitalized expenses 27708 27605
Other 2988 2890

Total deferred tax liabilities 33761 32719

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET 158065

The Companys expense
for income taxes for the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is summarized as

follows

in thousands 2008 2007 2006

CURRENT EXPENSE BENEFIT
Federal 167244 14323 206635

State 1617 32799

Total current expense benefit 167244 12706 239434

DEFERRED EXPENSE BENEFIT
Federal 158065 84872 27848
State 11006 4420

Total deferred
expense benefit 158065 73866 32268

Total
expense benefit 9179 86572 207166

The Company accounts for unrecognized tax benefits under Interpretation No 48 FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes The Company accounts for Interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits through its provision for

income taxes As of December 31 2008 the Companys liability
for

gross unrecognized tax benefits was $7.0 million of

which $4.7 million if recognized will affect the Companys effective tax rate The Company had $5.8 million and

$2.6 million in accrued interest and
penalties at January and December 31 2008 respectively As of December 31 2007

the Companys liability
for

gross unrecognized tax benefits was $11.8 million of which $8.3 million if recognized will

affect the Companys effective tax rate The Company estimates that within 12 months $2.0 million of
gross state

unrecognized tax benefits will reverse due to the
anticipated expiration of time to assess tax
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The Companys summary of accounting
for tax uncertainties at December 31 2008 and 2007 and for the periods then

ended follows

in thousands

2008 2007

Balance at January
11844 15555

Additions related to current year positions
634 1947

Reductions additions related to
prior year positions

2448 1898

Reductions due to settlements 1017 300

Reductions due to expiration
of the statute of limitations 2059 7256

Balance at December 31 6954 11844

As of December 31 2008 the 2005 through 2008 tax years
remain open

for examination

Note Employee Incentive Stock and Shareholder Rights Plans

Retirement
Savings Opportunity

Plan RSOP
All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the RSOP Part-time employees are

eligible
to participate in the RSOP

following the completion
of 1000 hours of service within the first 12 months of employment or within

any plan year after

the date of hire Pursuant to Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code the plan permits
deferral 0f portion of

participants
income into variety of investment options Total compensation expense related to the Companys matching

contributions for this plan amounted to $6.9 million $10.0 million and $12.0 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP
All full-time employees of the Company with the exception of its executive officers are eligible to participate in the ESPP

Eligible employees
authorize payroll deductions to be made for the purchase of shares The Company matches portion of

the employees
contribution by donating an additional 20.0 percent

of the employees payroll
deduction Stock is purchased

by plan administrator on regular monthly basis All brokerage and transaction fees for purchasing the stock are paid for

by the Company The Companys expense
related to its matching contribution for this plan was approximately $233000

$354000 and $495000 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans

The Company has supplemental nonqualified retirement plans which generally vest over five-year periods beginning in 2003

pursuant to which it will
pay supplemental pension benefits to key employees upon retirement In connection with these

plans the Company has purchased cost-recovery
life insurance on the lives of certain employees Insurance contracts

associated with the plans are held by trusts established as part of the plans to implement and carry out their provisions and

finance their related benefits The trusts are owners and beneficiaries 0f such contracts The amount of coverage
is designed

to provide sufficient revenue to cover all costs of the plans if assumptions
made as to employment term mortality

experience policy earnings
and other factors are realized At December 31 2008 and 2007 the cash surrender value of

these contracts was $23.8 million and $28.5 million respectively and is included in Other assets The net periodic

benefit cost of these plans
for the

year
ended December 31 2008 was $13.9 million and included service costs of

$4.1 million interest costs 0f $1.9 million and investment losses of $7.9 million The net periodic
benefit cost of these

plans for the year ended December 31 2007 was $5.7 million and included service costs of $4.5 million interest costs of

$1.4 million and investment earnings of $217000 The $29.7 million and $24.0 million projected
benefit obligations at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively were equal to the net liability recognized in the balance sheet at those dates

The weighted-average discount rate used for the plans was 7.8 and 7.7 percent
for 2008 and 2007 respectively

Shareholder
Rights

Plan

On December 23 2008 the Company announced that the Board of Directors adopted shareholder rights plan the

Rights Plan designed to preserve
shareholder value and the value of certain tax assets primarily associated with net

operating loss carryforwards NOLs under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code The Companys ability to use its

NOLs would be limited if there was an ownership change under Section 382 This would occur if stockholders owning

or deemed under Section 382 to own 5.0 percent or more of the Companys stock increased their collective ownership of

the aggregate amount of outstanding shares of the Company by more than 50.0 percentage points over defined period
of

time The Rights
Plan was adopted to reduce the likelihood of an ownership change occurring as defined by Section 382



The Rights Plan is intended to act as deterrent to any person or
group acquiring 49

percent or more of the Companys

outstanding common stock an Acquiring Person without the approval of its Board of Directors Under the
Rights Plan

one right was distributed for each share 0f common stock outstanding as of the close 0f business on December 29 2008

The rights initially are attached to and trade with the Companys common stock Subject to the terms provisions and

conditions of the Rights Plan if the rights become exercisable each right would
initially represent

the right to purchase

from the Company one ten-thousandth of share of its Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock for purchase price

of $90.00 the Purchase Price After the
rights become exercisable and there is an Acquiring Person each holder of

right other than rights beneficially owned by the
Acquiring Person which will thereupon become void will thereafter have

the right to receive upon
exercise of right and payment of the Purchase Price that number of shares of common stock as

the case may be having market value of two times the Purchase Price

Existing stockholders who
currently own 4.9 percent or more of the outstanding shares of common stock will trigger

dilutive event only if they acquire additional shares The Companys Board of Directors may in its sole discretion exempt

any person or group
from being deemed an Acquiring Person for

purposes
of the Rights Plan The

Rights Plan may be

terminated by the Board at any time prior to the rights being triggered The Rights Plan will continue in effect until

December 18 2018 unless it is terminated or redeemed earlier by the Board of Directors The Company plans to submit

the continuation of the Rights Plan to stockholder vote at its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the failure to

obtain this approval will result in termination of the
Rights Plan on December 18 2009

Note Stock-Based Compensation

The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan the Plan permits the granting of stock options restricted stock

awards stock units or any
combination of the

foregoing to employees Stock
options granted in accordance with the Plan

generally have maximum term of five
years and vest in equal annual installments over three

years
Certain

outstanding

stock options granted under predecessor plans have maximum term of ten years Outstanding restricted stock units

granted under predecessor plans generally vest in three equal annual installments or one year period with performance

criteria At December 31 2008 and 2007 stock options or other awards or units available for
grant totaled 2446606 and

1587725 respectively

The Ryland Group Inc 2006 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan the Director Plan provides for stock award of

3000 shares to each non-employee director on May of each
year

New non-employee directors will receive pro-rata

stock award 30 days after their date of
appointment or election based on the remaining portion of the

plan year in which

they are appointed or elected Stock awards are fully vested and non-forfeitable on their applicable award dates At

December 31 2008 and 2007 there were 72000 and 93000 stock awards available for future
grant

in accordance with

the Director Plan respectively Previously The Ryland Group Inc 2004 Non-Employee Director
Equity Plan and its

predecessor plans provided for automatic grants of
non-statutory

stock options to directors These stock options are fully

vested and have maximum term of ten years

All outstanding stock options stock awards and restricted stock awards have been granted in accordance with the terms of

the applicable Plan Director Plan and their respective predecessor plans all of which were approved by the Companys
stockholders Certain option and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is change in control as defined in

the plans

The Company recorded $9.0 million $12.3 million and $25.6 million of stock-based
compensation expense for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Stock-based compensation expenses
have been allocated to the

Companys reportable segments and are reported in Corporate Financial services and Selling general and

administrative
expenses

SFAS 123R requires cash flows attributable to tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of
compensation cost

recognized for those stock options excess tax benefits be classified as financing cash flows Excess tax benefits of

$3.1 million $6.7 million and $14.6 million for the 12 months ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

have been classified as financing cash inflows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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summary of stock option activity
in accordance with the Companys plans as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

and changes for the years then ended follows

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
EXERCISE

PRICE

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL

AGGREGATE
INTRINSIC

VALUE

in thousands

The total intrinsic values of stock options
exercised during the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were

$9.3 million $17.8 million and $38.5 million respectively The intrinsic value of stock
option

is the amount by which

the market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option

The Company has determined the grant-date
fair value 0f stock options using

the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing

formula Expected volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the Companys common stock The expected
dividend

yield is based on an annual dividend rate of $0.48 per common share The risk-free interest rate for periods within the

contractual life 0f the stock option award is based upon
the

zero-coupon
U.S Treasury bond on the date the stock option

is granted
with maturity equal to the expected option life of the stock option granted The expected option

life is

derived from historical experience under the Companys share-based payment plans
and

represents
the period

of time that

stock option awards granted are expected to be outstanding

SHARES LIFE in years

Options outstanding at January
2006 4654570 25.91 5.7

Granted 374500 62.31

Exercised 798218 12.34

Forfeited 66710 56.83

Options outstanding at December 31 2006 4164142 31.29 5.0 106250

Available for future
grant

360645

Total shares reserved 4524787

Options exercisable at December 31 2006 3365335 25.54 5.0 102729

Options outstanding
at January

2007 4164142 31.29 5.0

Granted 658500 43.60

Exercised 638232 12.62

Forfeited 150.244 53.07

Options outstanding at December 31 2007 4034166 35.44 4.3 23744

Available for future
grant

1680725

Total shares reserved 5714891

Options exercisable at December 31 2007 3103087 31.22 4.4 23744

Options outstanding at January 2008 4034166 35.44 4.3

Granted 503000 31.88

Exercised 541720 8.25

Forfeited 340545 46.21

Options outstanding at December 31 2008 3654901 37.97 3.8 4347

Available for future grant
2518606

Total shares reserved 6173507

Options exercisable at December 31 2008 2719574 37.53 3.8 4347

summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 2008 follows

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

RANGE OF AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

EXERCISE NUMBER REMAINING EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE

PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE in years
PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

4.11 to 18.30 596340 2.0 10.41 596340 12.05

20.99 to 27.38 600903 4.0 22.39 495903 21.39

33.14 to 40.12 903741 4.7 36.94 473741 39.81

44.32 to 57.54 863918 4.1 45.18 546599 56.28

61.40 to 83.13 689999 3.3 65.06 606991 65.41
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The
following table presents the weighted-average inputs used and fair values determined for stock options granted during

the
years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility

Expected dividend
yield

Expected term in years

Risk-free rate

WTeighted-average grant-date fair value

44.4% 35.8% 38.0%

1.5% 1.1% 0.8%

3.9 3.4 3.2

2.8% 4.6% 5.0%

10.60 12.70 19.17

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to stock options of $4.5 million $4.9 million and

$10.4 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

summary of the Companys non-vested
options as of and for the

years
ended December 2008 2007 and 2006

follows

2008 2007

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

GRANT-DATE GRANT-DATE GRANT-DATE
SHARES FAIR VALUE SHARES FAIR VALUE SHARES FAIR VALUE

As of December 31 2008 there was $7.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock

option awards granted under the Companys plans That cost is expected to be recognized over the next 2.8 years

The Company has made several restricted stock awards to senior executives under the Plan and its predecessor plans

Compensation expense recognized for such awards was $3.9 million $6.1 million and $13.3 million for the
years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The following is summary of activity relating to restricted stock awards

2008 2007 2006

Restricted shares at January 242000 435664 441000
Shares awarded 370000 25000 133000
Shares vested 81331 182664 138336
Shares forfeited 50667 36000

Restricted shares at December 31 480002 242000 435664

At December 31 2008 the outstanding restricted shares will vest as follows 2009246672 2010136665 and

201196665

The Company has granted stock awards to its
non-employee directors pursuant to the terms of the Director Plan The

Company recorded stock-based
compensation expense related to such grants in the amount of $700000 $1.2 million and

$1.9 million during the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Note Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In the normal course of business the Company acquires rights under option agreements to purchase land or lots for use in

future homebuilding operations
At December 31 2008 and 2007 it had cash deposits and letters of credit outstanding

that totaled $31.0 million and $74.7 million respectively for land options pertaining to land
purchase contracts with an

aggregate purchase price of $276.5 million and $721.4 million respectively At December 31 2008 the Company had

2006

Nonvested
options outstanding at January 931079 14.67 798807 16.40 1294035 13.40

Granted 503000 10.60 658500 12.70 374500 19.17

Vested 344002 15.22 375984 14.57 803018 12.82

Forfeited 154750 15.16 150244 15.54 66710 16.82

Nonvested
options outstanding at December 31 935327 12.19 931079 14.67 798807 16.40
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commitments with respect to option contracts having specific performance provisions of approximately $5.7 million

compared to $24.2 million at December 31 2007

Rent expense primarily relates to office facilities model homes furniture and equipment

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006
in thousands

Total rent
expense

22270 26760 23232

Less income from subleases 681 246 950

Net rent
expense

21589 26514 22282

At December 2008 future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable leases with remaining terms in excess of

one year are as follows

in thousands

2009
9594

2010 9044

2011
6749

2012
4314

2013
1602

Thereafter
4347

Less sublease income 1606

Total lease commitments
34044

RMC purchases
IFCs from third parties for the purpose

of mitigating its
exposure

to movements in interest rates on

customer-financing
commitments RMC

pays
the investor fixed One-time premium for these commitments In return

RMC receives the option
of selling loan at fixed rate in the commitment for stipulated period of time IFCs are

non-transferable and RMCs risk is limited to the initial premium paid IFCs are valued based on their intrinsic value

which is determined with reference to movements in market interest rates plus time value factor that is extrapolated from

current market prices
of similar contracts The outstanding commitments at December 31 2008 and 2007 were

$1.5 million and $32.5 million respectively with fair values of approximately $19000 and $15000 respectively

Contingencies

As an on-site housing producer the Company is often required by some municipalities to obtain development or

performance bonds and letters of credit in
support

of its contractual obligations At December 31 2008 total development

bonds were $199.0 million while performance-related cash deposits and letters of credit were $54.3 million In the event

that
any

such bonds or letters of credit are called the Company would be required to reimburse the issuer however it does

not expect
that

any currently outstanding bonds or letters of credit will be called

One of the Companys unconsolidated joint ventures had recorded assets of $644.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at

December 31 2007 During 2008 the debt related to this joint venture was declared in default and the administrative

agent
for the lenders foreclosed on the real estate securing the loan in non-judicial foreclosure proceeding The Company

and its
partners

in the joint venture provided
limited Repayment Guarantee of the outstanding debt that can only be

pursued upon the occurrence of certain bankruptcy events with respect to the joint venture which have not occurred In

addition Completion Guarantee was also provided that pertained to development
and improvement costs estimated by the

banks at $358.0 million certain interest and other obligations The Company has 3.3
percent

interest in this joint

venture and its obligation with respect to the Repayment Guarantee and Completion
Guarantee is limited to its pro rata

percentage
of the

guarantee and/or costs as applicable
The administrative agent

under the loan documents filed

complaint against the Company and certain other
partners

in the joint venture during the fourth quarter of 2008 seeking

enforcement of the Completion Guarantees including damage claim for an alleged failure 0f performance The Company

wrote off its $7.2 million investment in this joint venture during the first
quarter

of 2008

The Company had an interest in another joint venture in which the Company had an investment of $2.9 million and

$13.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The decrease was primarily due to $35.9 million impairment

of the Companys share of inventory within the venture In addition during 2008 an appraisal generated lender demand

for repayment of debt in the amount of $39.3 million of which the Company paid its pro rata share of $19.6 million At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the actual borrowings against
the revolving credit

facility
for this joint venture were
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$1.3 million and $50.6 million respectively of which the Companys pro rata share of debt under payment guarantee was

$646000 and $25.3 million respectively

IRLCs represent loan commitments with customers at market rates generally up to 180 days before settlement The

Company had outstanding IRLCs totaling $88.8 million and $66.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Hedging contracts are utilized to mitigate the risk associated with interest rate fluctuations on IRLCs See Note

Derivative instruments

Under certain circumstances RMC is required to indemnify loan investors for losses incurred on sold loans In general this

obligation arises if the losses are due to origination errors made by RMC if the borrower does not make their first

payment or if there is undiscovered fraud on the
part of the borrower Reserves for losses related to future indemnification

or repurchase of sold and held loans were $5.4 million and $2.7 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Aggregate indemnification and repurchase expense was $5.9 million and $2.2 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

The Company provides product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one year
certain mechanical

systems for

two years and structural systems for ten years
The Company estimates and records warranty liabilities based upon historical

experience and known risks at the time home closes and in the case of unexpected claims upon
identification and

quantification of the obligations Actual future
warranty costs could differ from current estimates

Changes in the Companys product liability reserve during the period are as follows

in thousands 2008 2007

Balance at January 36557 44102

Warranties issued 5693 11820

Settlements made 12473 19365

Balance at December 31 29777 36557

The Company requires substantially all of its subcontractors to have general liability insurance which includes construction

defect
coverage

and workmans compensation insurance These insurance policies protect the Company against portion
of

its risk of loss from claims subject to certain self-insured retentions deductibles and other
coverage

limits However with

fewer insurers participating general liability
insurance for the

homebuilding industry had become more difficult to obtain

over the past several
years

As result RHIC provided insurance services to the homebuilding segments subcontractors in

certain markets RHIC ceased providing such services effective June 2008 At December 31 2008 RHIC had

$37.1 million in cash and cash equivalents of which $28.5 million was restricted as collateral for letters of credit for the

same amount and $28.3 million irs subcontractor product liability reserves which are included in the consolidated balance

sheet under Cash and cash equivalents and Accrued and other liabilities respectively At December 31 2007 RHIC had

$34.1 million in cash and cash equivalents of which $13.5 million was restricted and $28.3 million in subcontractor

product liability reserves which are included in the consolidated balance sheet

Changes in the Companys insurance reserves during the period are as follows

in thousands 2008 2007

Balance at
January 28293 22521

Insurance
expense provisions 40 5772

Balance at December 31 28333 28293

The Company is party to various legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses Litigation reserves have been

established based on discussions with counsel and the Companys analysis of historical claims The Company has and

requires the majority of its subcontractors to have general liability
insurance to protect it against portion of its risk of

loss and cover it against construction-related claims The Company establishes reserves to cover its self-insured retentions

and deductible amounts under those policies Due to the high degree of judgment required in determining these estimated

reserve amounts and the inherent variability in predicting future settlements and judicial decisions actual future litigation

costs could differ from the Companys current estimates At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had legal reserves

of $15.2 million and $15.3 million respectively See Item Legal Proceedings
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Note Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Companys obligations to pay principal premium if any and interest under its $550.0 million unsecured revolving

credit facility 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012 6.9 percent
senior notes due June 2013 and 5.4

percent
senior

notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on joint and several basis by substantially all of its TOO percent-owned

homebuilding subsidiaries the Guarantor Subsidiaries Such guarantees are full and unconditional

In lieu of providing separate
financial statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries the accompanying

condensed consolidating

financial statements have been included Management does not believe that
separate

financial statements for the Guarantor

Subsidiaries are material to investors and are therefore not presented

The following information presents the consolidating statements of earnings
financial position and cash flows for the

parent company
and issuer The Ryland Group Inc TRG Inc the Guarantor Subsidiaries the non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries and the consolidation eliminations used to arrive at the consolidated information for The Ryland

Group Inc and subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

NON-
GUARANTOR

SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING
ELIMINATIONS

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAL

in thousands TRG INC

REVENUES 1158775 784712 64493 31856 1976124

EXPENSES

Corporate general
and administrative 1441054 930620 41466 31856 2381284

Expenses related to early retirement of debt 604 604

TOTAL EXPENSES 1441658 930620 41466 31856 2381888

Earnings loss before taxes 282883 145908 23027 405764

Tax
expense benefit 11782 6077 8680 9179

Equity in net earnings loss of subsidiaries 125484 125484

NET EARNINGS LOSS 396585 139831 14347 125484 396585

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2007

REVENUES 1863482 1147957 93282 52846 3051875

EXPENSES

Corporate general
and administrative 2034125 1437849 52355 52846 3471483

Expenses related to early retirement of debt 490
490

TOTAL EXPENSES 2034615 1437849 52355 52846 3471973

Earnings loss before taxes 171133 289892 40927 420098

Tax
expense benefit 37985 64344 15757 86572

Equity in net earnings loss of subsidiaries 200378 200378

NET EARNINGS LOSS 333526 225548 25170 200378 333526

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006

REVENUES 2859744 1908416 140379 128286 4780253

EXPENSES

Corporate general
and administrative 2450382 1810670 72684 128286 4205450

Expenses related to early
retirement of debt 7695 7695

TOTAL EXPENSES 2458077 1810670 72684 128286 4213145

Earnings before taxes 401667 97746 67695 567108

Tax
expense

145125 36655 25386 207166

Equity in net earnings
of subsidiaries 103400 103400

NET EARNINGS 359942 61091 42309 103400 359942
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

12021

705365

140

705505

349082

375734

705

376439

62156

14373

14373

DECEMBER 31 2008

DECEMBER 31 2007

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Consolidated inventories owned

Consolidated inventories not owned

Total inventories

Investment In subsidiaries/intercompany

receivables

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts
payable and other accrued liabilities

Debt

Intercompany payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

243614

1736943

76734

1813677

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED

in thousands TRG INC SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Consolidated inventories owned

Consolidated inventories not owned

Total inventories

Investment in subsidiaries/intercompany

receivables

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIUTIES

Accounts
payable and other accrued liabilities

Debt

Intercompany payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

423259

1081099

15218

1096317

738127 3194 741321
247629 58868 36915 343412

1703282 784389 116638 741321 1862988

209684 71941 51786 333411

768236 39 22124 790399

438119 438119

977920 510099 73910 438119 1123810

13816 13816

725362 274290 28912 303202 725362

1703282 784389 116638 741321 1862988

12908 172363 58343

1166824 570119

1179 6940 68615

1168003 577059 68615

758282 758282
362697 95239 36093 494029

2301890 844661 163051 758282 2551320

342090 114842 61663 518595

835074 4006 839080

311692 4428 316120

1177164 430540 66091 316120 1357675

68919 68919

1124726 414121 28041 442.162 1124726

2301890 844661 163051 758282 2551320
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net
operating earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings loss to

net cash provided by operating
activities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other
operating activities net

Net cash provided by used for operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to property plant
and equipment

Other
investing activities net

Net cash used for provided by investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Decrease increase in debt

Common stock dividends repurchases and

stock-based compensation and other

Intercompany balances

Net cash used for provided by financing activities

Net decrease increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents

at beginning of
year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net operating earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings loss to

net cash
provided by operating

activities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other
operating

activities net

Net cash provided by used for operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to property plant
and equipment

Other
investing

activities net

Net cash used for provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Decrease in debt

Common stock dividends repurchases
and

stock-based compensation and other

Intercompany balances

Net cash used for provided by financing activities

Net decrease increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents

at beginning of
year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2007

NON-

GUARANTOR GUARANTOR
TRG INC SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING
ELIMINATIONS

396585 139831 14347

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAL

410777 118764 986

214476 80909 26052

29365

125484 396585

530527

125484 143849

29365

199303 59842 10719 248426

4272 5583 II 9866
40 40

4272 5583 29 9826

66839 3967 22125 48681

10274 10274

118805 126427 7622

195918 122460 14503 58955

887 176719 3813 179645

12908 172363 58343 243614

12021 349082 62156 423259

333526 225548 25170 200378 333526

439486 284210 1584 725280

26332 63056 28639 139629

23985 23985

200378

108307 121718 1885 228140

17939 14256 48 32147

750 750

17939 14256 798 31397

106025 5012 111037

57124 57129

42560 59166 16606

120589 64178 16601 168166

30221 43284 15514 28577

43129 129079 42829 215037

12908 172363 58343 243614
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006

in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net
operating earnings

Adjustments ro reconcile net
earnings

to

net cash
provided by operating activities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other
operating activities net

Net cash used for provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to property plant
and equipment

Other
investing activities net

Net cash used for provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Increase decrease in debt

Common stock dividends repurchases
and

stock-based compensation and other

Intercompany balances

Net cash
provided by used for financing activities

Net decrease increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents at beginning of

year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

NON-
GUARANTOR GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED

TRG INC SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

359942 61091 42309 103400 359942

62606 89040 1992 153638

438743 116944 28645 103400 480932

18011 18011

34206 33187 15656 14637

31280 21372 1187 53839
2250 2250

31280 21372 1063 51589

33363 5216 28147

237493 48 237541
230850 237229 6379

26720 242445 6331 209394

38766 230630 23050 246346
81895 359709 19779 461383

43129 129079 42829 215037
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Note Subsequent
Events

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facility $60.0 million repurchase facility with Guaranty Bank

and Buyers
The

facility
became effective January 15 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired

in January

2009 The
agreement

contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margin 0f 1.75 percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0
percent

The
facility

contains
representations warranties covenants and provisions defining events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement the Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Agent and the lenders listed therein which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility
The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys borrowing availability

from $550.0 million to $200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed
the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant default limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to be no more than 55.0 percent agreed to establish certain

liquidity reserve accounts in the event the Company fails to satisfy an interest coverage test and an adjusted cash flow from

operations to interest incurred test changed the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to .20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing base to allow for 100.0 percent use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less
any

drawn balances on the revolving credit facility
established

requirement
for the Company to

cash collateralize
pro

rata share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and swing
line

exposure
established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit of $10.0 million and increased the
pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage ratio and public debt rating as well as the interest coverage
ratio The credit facilitys maturity

date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the uncommitted accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million

During the first quarter
of 2009 the Company repurchased $47.6 million of its senior notes for $35.9 million in the

open

market

In January 2009 the Company and Oaktree Capital formed limited liability company the Venture to acquire and

develop residential real estate projects Combining the Companys operational proficiency as production homebuilder with

Oaktrees expertise in investing in distressed assets allows the Venture to take advantage 0f the current dislocation in the

residential real estate market An executive committee comprised of representatives
from both firms will make purchase

decisions The Venture will then provide the improvements and permits necessary to ultimately sell the projects as finished

lots The Company will have the right to option
all lots sold by the Venture

Supplementary Data

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

2008 2007

thoevrnds xpi share data isasditd DEC SEPT 30 JUN 30 MAR DEC 31 SEPT 30 JUN 30 MAR 31

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenues 528233 543844 487881 416166 859790 737237 743734 711114

Earnings loss before taxes 89148 80679 189771 46166 206111 94521 88825 30641

Tax
expense benefit 29236 14961 51868 16850 4201 39.781 36394 6196

Net
earnings loss 59912 65718 241639 29316 201910 54740 52431 24445

Net
earnings loss per

common share

Basic 1.40 1.54 5.70 0.69 4.80 1.30 1.25 0.58

Diluted 1.40 1.54 5.70 0.69 4.80 1.30 1.25 0.58

Weighted-average common

shares outstanding

Basic 42726 42607 42422 42232 42096 41958 42011 42485

Diluted 42726 42607 42422 42232 42096 41958 42011 42485
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Report of Management

Management of the Company is responsible for the integrity and
accuracy

of the financial statements and all other annual

report
information The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and

include amounts based on managements judgments and estimates

The accounting systems which record summarize and
report

financial information are supported by internal control

systems designed to provide reasonable assurance at an appropriate cost that the assets are safeguarded and that transactions

are recorded in accordance with Company policies and procedures Developing and maintaining these systems are the

responsibility of management Proper selection training and development of personnel also contribute to the effectiveness of

the internal control systems For the purpose
of evaluating and documenting its

systems
of internal control management

elected to use the integrated framework promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO The Companys systems evaluation and test results were documented The Companys internal

auditors regularly test these systems Based on its evaluation management
believes that its systems

of internal control over

financial reporting were effective and is not aware of
any

material weaknesses

The Companys independent registered public accounting
firm also reviewed and tested the effectiveness of these systems to

the extent it deemed necessary to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and systems of internal

control

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically meets with management the internal auditors and the

independent registered public accounting firm to review accounting auditing and financial matters Both internal auditors

and the independent registered public accounting firm have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee

/s/ Cordon Mime

Gordon Milne

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

/s/ David Fristoe

David Fristoe

Senior Vice President Controller and

Chief Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

The Ryland Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule

listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered

in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material
respects

the information set forth

therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States The Ryland Group Incs internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission and our report dated February 23 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 23 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

The Ryland Group Inc

We have audited The Ryland Group Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Ryland Group Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of
any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion
The Ryland Group Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2008 and 2007

and the related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated February 23 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 23 2009
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Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

The Company has procedures in place for accumulating and evaluating
information that enable it to prepare

and file reports

with the SEC At the end of the period covered by the report on Form 10-K an evaluation was performed by the

Companys management including the CEO and CFO of the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15e promulgated under the Exchange Act Based on that evaluation the Companys

management including the CEO and CFO concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective

as of December 31 2008

The Company has committee consisting of key officers including the chief
accounting

officer and general counsel to

ensure that all information required to be disclosed in the Companys reports
is accumulated and communicated to those

individuals responsible for the preparation of the reports as well as to all principal executive and financial officers in

manner that will allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

The Companys management including the CEO and CFO has evaluated
any changes in the Companys internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during
the quarterly period ended December 31 2008 and has concluded that there

was no change during this period that has materially affected or is reasonably likely
to materially affect the Companys

internal control over financial reporting

At December 2008 the Company completed detailed evaluation of its internal control over financial
reporting

including the assessment documentation and testing of its controls as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 No

material weaknesses were identified The Companys management
summarized its assessment

process
and documented its

conclusions in the Report of Management which
appears in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data

NYSE Certification

The NYSE requires that the chief executive officers of its listed companies certify annually to the NYSE that they are not

aware of violations by their companies
of NYSE

corporate governance listing
standards The Company submitted

non-qualified certification by
its Chief Executive Officer to the NYSE last

year in accordance with the NYSES rules

Further the Company files certifications by its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with the SEC in

accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 These certifications are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item JO Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company

Position date elected to position

Name Age Prior Business
Experience

Chad Dreier 61 Chairman of the Board of Directors since 1994 President of the

Company 1993-2008 Chief Executive Officer of the Company

since 1993

Larry Nicholson SI President of the Company since 2008 Chief Operating Officer of

the Company since 2007 Senior Vice President of the Company

and President of the Southeast Region
of

Ryland
Homes

2005-2007 President of the Orlando Division of
Ryland Homes

1999-2005

Gordon Milne 57 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the

Company since 2002 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company 2000-2002

Keith Bass 44 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the South

Region
of

Ryland Homes sInce 2008 Senior Vice President of

the Company and President of the Southeast Region of Ryland

Homes 2007-2008 President of the Orlando Division of
Ryland

Homes 2004-2007 Vice President of Land Resources for the

Southeast Region of Ryland Homes 2003-2004

Robert Cunnion III 53 Senior Vice President Human Resources of the Company since

1999

Eric Elder SI Senior Vice President Marketing and Communications of the

Company since 2000

David Fristoe 52 Senior Vice President Controller and Chief
Accounting

Officer of

the Company since 2005 Senior Vice President Controller Chief

Accounting Officer and Chief Information Officer of the Company

2000-2005

Timothy
Geckle 56 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of the

Company since 1997

Daniel Schreiner SI Senior Vice President of the Company since 1999 President of

Ryland Mortgage Company since 1998

Peter Skelly 45 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the North

West Region of Ryland Homes since 2008 Senior Vice President

of the Company and President of the North Region of Ryland

Homes 2006-2008 President of the Chicago Division of Ryland

Homes 1999-2006
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The Board of Directors elects all officers

There are no family relationships between
any

director or executive officer or arrangements or understandings pursuant to

which the officers listed above were elected For description of the Companys employment and severance arrangements

with certain of its executive officers see the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders the 2009

Proxy Statement which is filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act

Information as to the Companys directors executive officers and corporate governance
is incorporated by reference from the

Companys 2009 Proxy Statement including the determination by the Board of Directors with respect to the Audit

Committees financial expert and the identity of each member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

The Company has adopted code of ethics that is applicable to its senior officers directors and employees To retrieve the

Companys code of ethics visit www.iyland.com select Investors and scroll down the page to Code of Ethics

Item II Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement The Compensation

Committee Report to be included in the 2009 Proxy Statement shall be deemed furnished in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act as

result of such furnishing in this Item II

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is set forth on page
13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated

by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

Page No

Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Earningsyears ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 34

Consolidated Balance SheetsDecember 31 2008 and 2007 35

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equityyears ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 36

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsyears ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 37

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 38

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule TIValuation and Qualifying Accounts 71

Schedules not listed above have been omitted either because they are inapplicable or because the required

information has been provided in the financial statements or notes thereto
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Exhibits

The following exhibits are included with this report or incorporated
herein

by
reference as indicated below

3.1 Articles of Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form I0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2005

3.2 Bylaws of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996

4.1 Senior Notes dated as of January II 2005

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No 333-12 1469

4.2 Articles Supplementary of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No 333-157170

4.3 Senior Notes dated as of May 2005

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration
No 333-124000

4.4 Senior Notes dated as of May 30 2006

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration
No 333-124000

45 Rights Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc and American

Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-A filed December 29 2008

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of January 12 2006 between The Ryland Group Inc and certain financial

institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed January 13 2006

10.2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 17 2007 between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed October 17 2007

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated February 15 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain financial institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed February 15 2008

10.4 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated June 27 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed July 2008

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 22 2009 between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain financial institutions

Filed herewith

10.6 Credit Agreement dated January 24 2008 between Ryland Mortgage Company and Guaranty
Bank

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed January 29 2008

10.7 RMC Repurchase Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Ryland Mortgage Company and

Guaranty Bank and Buyers

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed January 15 2009

10.8 2002 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Form I0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002

10.9 Amendment and Restatement of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Filed herewith

10.10 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

Filed herewith

10.11 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

Filed herewith
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Exhibits continued

10.12 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 29 2005

10.13 Form of Amended and Restated Stock Unit Agreement

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 18 2006

10.14 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Executive Officers

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.15 Amendment No to Form 0f Stock Unit Agreement for Executive Officers

Filed herewith

10.16 Non-Employee Directors Stock Unit Plan effective January 2005

Filed herewith

10.17 2000 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2000

10.18 2004 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Form 0-Q for the
quarter

ended March 31 2004

10.19 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan effecrive April 26 2006

Incorporated by
reference from Form 8-K filed April 27 2006

10.20 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of April 20 2005 between The Ryland

Group Inc and Chad Dreier

Incorporated by
reference from Form 8-K/A filed May 2005

10.21 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between The Ryland

Group Inc and Chad Dreier effective January 2005

Filed herewith

10.22 The Ryland Group Inc Dreier Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Incorporated by
reference from Form I0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2003

1023 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Dreier Supplemental
Executive Retirement

Plan II

Filed herewith

10.24 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Chad Dreier

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.25 Amendment No to Form 0f Stock Unit Agreement
for Chad Dreier

Filed herewith

10.26 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Supplemental Retirement

Plan

Filed herewith

10.27 Form of Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain executive officers of the Company

Incorporated by reference from Form I0-Q for the quarter
ended September 30 2000

10.28 Form of Amendment No to Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain executive officers of the Company

Filed herewith

10.29 Form of 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement
between The Ryland Group Inc and certain

executive officers 0f the Company

Incorporated by reference from Form JO-K for the
year

ended December 31 2006

10.30 Form of Amendment No to 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland

Group Inc and certain executive officers of the Company

Filed herewith
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Exhibits continued

10.31 The Ryland Group Inc Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan II effective

January 2005

Filed herewith

10.32 TRG Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective January 2005

Filed herewith

10.33 The Ryland Group Inc Performance Award Program

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.34 Amendment No to The Ryland Group Inc Performance Award Program

Filed herewith

10.35 The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Performance Plan

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.36 Amendment No to The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Performance Plan

Filed herewith

10.37 Lease Agreement dated as of December 29 1999 by and between The Ryland Group Inc and

Kilroy Reaky Group

Incorporated by reference from Form JO-K for the year ended December 31 1999

1038 First Amendment to Office Building Lease dated August 26 2005 by and between

The Ryland Group Inc and Kilroy Realty L.P

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

10.39 Lease Agreement dated February 28 2006 by and between The Ryland Group Inc and

PCCP HC Kierland LLC

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed March 2006

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Filed herewith

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Filed herewith

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Filed herewith

24 Power of Attorney

Filed herewith

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith
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The Ryland Group Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying
Accounts

BALANCE AT
BEGINNING

OF PERIOD

CHARGED TO
COSTS AND

EXPENSES

DEDUCTIONS
AND

TRANSFERS

BALANCE AT

END OF
PERIOD

in thonsands

Valuation allowances

Homebuilding inventories

2008 488106 257389 300307 445188

2007 59735 503955 75584 488106

2006 486 62910 3661 59735

Other real estate assets

2008 2381 45640 14451 33570

2007 670 2241 530 2381

2006 263 549 142 670

Deferred tax assets

2008 75166 143784 218950

2007 75166 75166



Signatures

Pursuant to the
requirements

of Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the Company has duly caused this
report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

The Ryland Group Inc

By

/s/ Chad Dreier

Chad Dreier February 25 2009

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act this
report

has been
signed

below
by

the
following persons on behalf of

the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Chad Dreier

Chad Dreier February 25 2009

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer

/s/ Gordon Mime

Gordon Milne
February 25 2009

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ David Fristoe

David Fristoe February 25 2009

Senior Vice President Controller and

Chief Accounting Officer

majority of the Board of Directors Chad Dreier Leslie Frbcon Roland Hernandez William Jews

Ned Mansour Robert Mellor Norman Metcalfe and Charlotte St Martin

By

/s/ Timothyj Geckle

Timothy Geckle February 25 2009

As Attorney-in-Fact
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Index of Exhibits

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement
dated January 22 2009 between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

10.9 Amendment and Restatement of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

10.10 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2007 Equity
Incentive Plan

10.11 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity
Incentive Plan

10.15 Amendment No to Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Executive Officers

1016 Non-Employee Directors Stock Unit Plan effective January 2005

10.21 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between The Ryland

Group Inc and Chad Dreier effective January 2005

10.23 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Dreier Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan II

10.25 Amendment No to Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Chad Dreier

10.26 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan

10.28 Form of Amendment No to Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain executive officers 0f the Company

10.30 Form of Amendment No to 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain executive officers of the Company

10.31 The Ryland Group Inc Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan II effective January 2005

10.32 TRG Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective January 2005

10.34 Amendment No to The Ryland Group Inc Performance Award Program

10.36 Amendment No to The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Performance Plan

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Power of Attorney

31.1 Certification 0f Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit 12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Exhibit 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

As of December 31 2008 the following subsidiaries
represent the significant subsidiaries of the Registrant

Ryland Homes of California Inc Delaware corporation

Ryland Homes of Texas Inc Texas corporation

The Ryland Corporation California corporation

Ryland Organization Company California corporation

in thousands except ratio 2004 2005

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2006 2007 2008

Consolidated
pretax

income loss 521212 721051 567108 420098 405764

Share of distributed loss income of 50%-or-less-owned affiliates net

of
equity pickup 5.772

Amortization of
capitalized interest 41764

Interest 53242

Less interest capitalized during the period 52015
Interest

portion
of rental

expense
5639

EARNINGS LOSS

Interest 53242

Interest
portion

of rental
expense

5639

FIXED CHARGES 58881

Ratio of
earnings loss to fixed charges

564070

315
45483

66697

65959

5678

772635

66697

5678

72375

260

48708

71955

71750

7736

624017

71955

7736

79691

342
41689

62122

62024

8911

369742

62122

8911

71033

43900

61146

47109

46889
7416

293082

47109

________
7416

54525

9.58 10.68 7.83 5.21 5.38



Exhibit 23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-100167 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group Inc

Registration
Statement Form S-3 No 333-113756 and related Prospectus

of The Ryland Group Inc

Registration
Statement Form S-3 No 333-121469 and related Prospectus

of The Ryland Group Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-124000 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-157170 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group Inc

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 33-32431 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc Retirement Savings

Opportunity Plan

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-68397 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc Executive and Director

Deferred Compensation
Plan and The Ryland Group Inc Non-Employee Directors Stock Unit Plan

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-133602 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc 2006 Non-Employee

Director Stock Plan and

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-150465 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity Incentive

Plan

of our reports
dated February 23 2009 with

respect
to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of The Ryland

Group Inc and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
of The Ryland Group Inc included in this

Annual Report Form JO-K for the year
ended December 31 2008

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 25 2009



Exhibit 24 Power of
Attorney

The
undersigned directors of The Ryland Group Inc Maryland corporation constitute and appoint Timothy Geckle

the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said
agent

and

attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned in their
respective names as directors of The Ryland Group Inc the Annual

Report on Form JO-K of The Ryland Group Inc for the fiscal
year ended December 31 2008 and

any
amendments

thereto to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Exchange Act as amended

Dated
February 25 2009

/s/ Chad Dreier

Chad Dreier Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Leslie FrIcon

Leslie FrØcon Director

/s/ Roland Hernandez

Roland Hernandez Director

/s/ William Jews

William Jews Director

/s/ Ned Mansour

Ned Mansour Director

/s/ Robert Mellor

Robert Mellor Director

/s/ Norman
Metcafe

Norman Metcalfe Director

/s/ Charlotte St Martin

Charlotte St Martin Director



Exhibit 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a

Under the Exchange Act

Chad Dreier certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc the Company

Based on my knowledge this report
does not contain

any
untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material
respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The Companys other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial reporting

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the Company and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the Company including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered

by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the Companys most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting and

The Companys other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the Companys auditors and the audit committee of the Companys board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Companys ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves
management or other employees who have significant role in

the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Date February 25 2009 /s/ Chad Dreier

Chad Dreier

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOx1ey Act of 2002

Certification of
Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

Under the Exchange Act

Gordon Milne certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc the Company

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contain
any

untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material
respects the financial condition results of

operations and cash flows of the Company as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The Companys other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- I5e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting

as defined in Exchange Act Rules I3a-15f and 15d-15f for the Company and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the Company including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by
others within those entities particularly during the

period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial
reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial
reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered

by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the Companys most recent fiscal
quarter

that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial
reporting and

The Companys other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the Companys auditors and the audit committee 0f the Companys board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the Companys ability to record process

summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves
management or other employees who have significant role in

the Companys internal control over financial
reporting

Date February 25 2009 /s/ Cordon Mime

Gordon Milne

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

Chad Dreier Chairman and Chief Executive Officer principal executive officer of The Ryland Group Inc the

Company certify to the best of my knowledge based upon review of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company the Report that

The Report fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13a of the Exchange Act as amended and

The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents in all material respects

the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

/s/ Chad Dreier

Chad Dreier

February 25 2009



Exhibit 32.2 Certification of
Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

Certification of
Principal

Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

Gordon Mime Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer principal financial officer of The Ryland

Group Inc the Company certify to the best of my knowledge
based upon review of the Annual

Report on

Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company the Report that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a of the
Exchange Act as amended and

The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents
in all material respects

the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

/s/ Cordon Mi/ne

Gordon Mime

February 25 2009
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PART

Item business

\Vith headquarters in Southern Califbrnia The Ryland Group Inc Maryland corporation the Company is one of

the nations largest
homebuilders and mortgage-finance company The Company is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE under the symbol RYL Founded in 1967 the Company has built more than 280000 homes In

addition Ryland Mortgage Company and its subsidiaries RMC have provided mortgage financing and related services

for more than 235000 hornebuvers The Company consists of six operating
business segments four geographically

determined homebuilding regions
financial services and

corporate

The Companys operations span
all significant aspects

of the homcbuying processfrom design construction and sale to

mortgage origination title insurance escrow and insurance services The homebuilding operations are by far the most

substantial part
of its business comprising approximately 97 percent of consolidated revenues in fiscal

year
2008 The

homebuilding segments generate nearly all of their revenues from the sale of completed homes with lesser amount from

the sale of land and lots In addition to building single-family detached homes tile homebuilding segments
also build

attached homes such as town homes condominiums and some mid-rise buildings that share common walls and roofs The

Company builds homes for entry-level buyers as well as for first- and second-time move-up buyers Its
prices generally range

from $100000 to more than $500000 with the average price
of honie closed during 2008 being $252000 The

financial services segment
offers

mortgage title escrow and insurance services to the Comparws homeowners and

subcontractors

The Company has traditionally concentrated on expanding its operations by investing its available capital in both
existing

and new markets The Company focuses on achieving high return on invested capital and establishing profitable operations

in every one of its markets New and existing communities are evaluated based on return profitability and cash flow

benchmarks and both senior and local management are incentivized based on their ability to achieve such returns

Management monitors the land acquisition process
sales revenues margins and returns achieved in each of the Companys

markets as part
of its capital evaluation process See discussion in Part item IA Risk Factors

The Company is highly diversified throughout the United States and attempts to have no more than 10 percent of its

deployed capital allocated to any given market It believes diversification not only minimizes its exposure to economic and

market fluctuations hut also enhances its growth potential Capital is strategically
allocated to avoid concentration in any

given geographic area and to reduce the risk associated with excessive dependence on local market anomalies Subject to

macroeconomic and local market conditions the Company generally tries to either
manage its exposure or to expand its

presence in its existing
markets in an effort to be among the

largest
builders in each of those markets It

may
continue

diversification by selectively entering new markets primarily through establishing start-up or satellite operations in markets

near its existing divisions

The Companys national scale has provided opportunities for negotiation of volume discounts and rebates from material

suppliers Additionally it has access to lower cost of capital due to the strength and
transparency

of its balance sheet as

well as to its banking and capital markets relationships While the Companys operating margins
have suffered significantly

in the current economic climate the Company believes that economies of scale and diversification have contributed to

improvements in its operating margins during periods of growth and mitigated its overall risk in most periods of declining

housing demand

Committed to product innovation the Company conducts ongoing research into consumer preferences and trends It is

constantly adapting and improving its house plans design features customized options and mortgage programs It strives to

offer value selection location and
qtiality to all homcbuycrs

The Company is dedicated to building quality homes and customer relationships With customer satisfaction as major

priority it continues to make innovative enhancements designed to attract homchuyers The Company continues to develop

its ability to collect customer feedback via its \Veb sire which includes online systems for tracking requests processing

issues and improving ctistomcr interaction in addition it uses third parry to analyze customer feedback in order to better

serve its homebuyers needs

The Company enters into land development joint ventures from time to time as means of building lot
positions

reducing its risk profile and enhancing its return on capital It periodically partners
with developers other homebuilders or

financial investors to develop finished lots for sale to the joint
ventures members or other third parties



Aside from being an added value to customers the financial services segment generates profit for the Company while

reducing its risk competitively high capture rate for mortgage financing and otiser services allows the Company to

monitor its backlog and closing process
Risk is further reduced because the majority of loans originated arc sold within

one business day of the date they close The third party purchaser then services and manages
the loans assuming nearly all

of the credit risk of borrower default

Homebuilding

General

The Companys homes are built on-site and marketed in four major geographic regions or segments The Company

operated in the following metropolitan areas at December 31 2008

Region/Segment Major Markets Served

North Baltimore chicago Delaware Indianapolis Minneapolis
and FFAhinton DC

Southcast Atlanta Charleston charlotte Jacksonville Myrtle Beach Orlando and Tampa

Texas Austin Dallae Houston and San Antonio

West californias Central Tllley Calforiiias
Coachella

l1illey Gzlfornifi
Inland

Empire Denvee Las
Vegas

and

Phoenix

The Company has decentralized operations to provide more flexibility to its local division presidents and management

teams Its homebuilding divisions across the country generally consists of division president conttoller and other

management personnel focused on land entitlement acquisition and development sales construction customer service and

purchasing as well as accounting
and administrative personnel The Companys operations in each of its homebuilding

markets may differ due to number of niarket-specific factors These factors include regional economic conditions and job

growth land availability
and local land development consumer preferences competition from other homehuilders and home

resale activir The Company not only considers each of these factors
upon entermg into new markets but also in

determining the extent of its operations
and capital allocation in existing markets The Companys local

management teams

are familiar with these factors and their market experience and expertise are critical in making decisions regarding local

operations

The Company provides oversight and centralizes key elements of its homnehuilding business through its corporate and

regional offices The Company has two regional offices each generally consisting of region president vice president of

financial operations and additional management personnel focused on human resources real estate legal support marketing

and operations Regional offices provide oversight and standardization where appropriate The staff in these offices monitors

activities by using various operational metrics in order to achieve Company return benchmarks

The Company markets attached and detached single-family homes which are
gener.llly targeted to entry-level and first- and

second-time move-tip buyers Its diverse product
line is tailored to the local styles and preferences found in each of its

geographic markets The product line offered in particular community is determined in conjunction with the land

acquisition process and is dependent upon
number of factors including consumer preferences competitive product

offerings and development costs Architectural services are generally outsourced to increase
creativity

and to ensure that the

Companys home designs are consistent with local market trends

Homehuyers are able to customize certain features of their homes by selecting from numerous options and upgrades

displayed in the Companys model homes and design centers These design centers which are conveniently located in most

of the Companys markets also
represent an increasing source of additional revenue and profit fbr the Company Custom

options contributed approximately 17.0 percent of revenues in 2008 and resulted in significantly higher margins in

comparison to base homes

Land Acquisition and Development

The Companys longterm objective is to control portfolio of building
lots sufficient to meet its anticipated homehuilding

requirements for period
of approximately four to five

years
The Company acquires

land only after completing due

diligence and feasibility studies The land acquisition process
is controlled by corporate land approval committee to help

ensure that transactions meet the CompanVs standards for financial performance and risk In the ordinary course of its

homehuilding business the Company utilizes both direct
acquisition

and csption contracts to control budding lots for use in

the sale and construction of homes The Companys direct land
acquisition activities include the purchase Csf finished lots

from developers and the purchase of undeveloped entitled land from third
parties

The Company generally does not

purchase
unentitled or unzoned land



Although control of lot inventory through the use of option contracts minimizes the Companys investment such strategy

is not viable in certain markets due to the absence of thirdparty land developers In othet markets competitive conditions

nsav prevent the Company from controlling quality lots solely through the use of option contracts In such situations the

Company may acquire undeveloped entitled land and/or finished lots on bulk basis The Company utilizes the selective

development of land to gain access to prime locations increase margins and position itself as leader in the area through

its influence over communitys character layout and amenities After determining the size style price range density layout

and overall design of community the Company obtains governmental and other approvals necessary to begin the

development process
Land is then graded roads utilities amenities and other infrastructures are installed and the

individual home sites are created

Materials Costs

Substantially all materials tised in construction are available from number of sources but may fluctuate in price
due to

various factors To increase purchasing efficiencies the Company not only standardizes certain building materials and

products
hut also

acquires
such products through national supply contracts The Company has on occasion experienced

shortages of certain materials If shortages were to occur in the future such shortages could result in longer construction

times and higher costs than those experienced in the
past

Construction

Substantially all onsite construction is performed for fixed price by independent subcontractors selected on

competitive-bid basis The Company generally requires
minimum of three competitive bids for each phase

of construction

Construction activities are supervised by the Companys production team which schedules and coordinates subcontractor

work monitors quality and ensures compliance
with local

zoning
and building codes The Company requires substantially

all of its subcontractors to have workmans
compensation

insurance and general liability insurance including construction

defect
coverage

Construction time for homes depends on weather availability of labor or subcontractors materials home

size geological conditions and other factors The duration of the home construction process is generally between three and

six months The Company has an integrated financial and homehuilding management system that assists in scheduling

production and controlling costs Through this system the Company monitors construction status and job costs incttrred

for each home during each phase
of construction The

system provides for detailed budgeting and allows the Company to

track and control actual costs versus construction bids for each community and subcontractor The Company has on

occasion experienced shortages of skilled labor in certain markets If shortages were to occur in the future such shortages

could result in longer construction times and higher costs than those experienced in the
past

The Compan its subcontractors and its suppliers maintain insurance subject to deductibles and self-insured amounts to

protect against various risks associated with homebuilding activities including among others general hability all-risk

property workmans compensation
automobile and employee fldelit1 The Company accrues for its expected costs associated

with the deductibles and self-insured amounts when appropriate

Marketing

The Conspany generally markets its homes to entry-level and first- and second-time move-up buyers through targeted

product offerings in each of the communities in which it operates
The Companys marketing strategy is determined during

the land acquisition and feasibility stage
of communitys development Employees and independent real estate brokers sell

the Companys homes generally by showing furnished models new order is reported when customers sales contract has

been signed by the homebuver approved by the Company and deposit is taken subject to cancellation The Company

normally starts constrtiction of home when customer has selected lot chosen floor plan and received preliminary

mortgage approval However construction may begin prior to this in order to satisfy market demand for completed homes

and to facilitate construction scheduling and/or cost savings Homebuilding revenues are recognized when home sales are

closed title and possession are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement from the

homebuilder

The Company advertises directly to potential homebuyers through
the internet and in newspapers

and trade publications as

well as with marketing brochures and newsletters It also uses billboards radio and television advertising and its \Veh site to

market the location price range
and

availability
of its homes The Company also

attempts to operate in conspicuously

located communities that permit it to take advantage of local traffic
patterns

Model homes play significant role in the

Companys marketing efforts by nor only creating an attractive atmosphere but also by displaying options
and upgrades

The Companys sales contracts typically require an earnest money deposit The amount of earnest money required varies

between markets and conimunities Additionally buyers arc generally required to pay additional deposits when they select



options or upgrades for their homes Most of the Companys sales contracts stipulate that when homehuyers cancel their

contracts with the Company it has the right to retain the homehuyers earnest money and option deposits however its

operating
divisions may choose to refund

portion
of such deposits The Companys sales contracts may also include

contingencies that permit homehuyers to cancel and receive refund of their deposits if they cannot obtain mortgage

financing at prevailing or specified interest rates within specified time period The Companys contracts ma also include

other contingencies
such as the sale of an existing home The length of time between the

signing
of sales contract for

home and delivery of the home to the buyer may vary depending on customer preferences permit approval and

construction cycles

Customer Service and Warranties

The Companys operating divisions are responsible for pre-closing quality control
inspections

and responding to homehuyers

post-closing needs The Company believes that prompt and courteous acknowledgment of its homehuyers needs during and

after construction reduces post-closing repair costs enhances its
reputation

for quality and service and ultimately leads to

repeat and referral business

The Company provides each homeowner with product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one year certain

mechanical systems for two years and structural
systems

for ten years from the time of closing The Company believes its

warranty program meets or exceeds terms customarily offered in the homehuilding industry The subcontractors who

perform most of the actual construction also provide warranties on workmanship

Seasonalitv

The Company experiences
seasonal variations in its quarterly operating

results and capital requirements Historically new

order
activity

is higher during the spring and summer months This is primarily dtie to the preference of many homebuyers

to act during those periods As result the Company typically has more homes tinder construction closes more homes and

has greater revenues and better operating restilts in the third and fourth quarters
of fiscal

year However historical results

are not necessarily indicative of current or future homebtulding activities

Financial Services

The Companys financial services segment provides mortgage-related products and services as well as title escrow and

insurance services to Its homehuyers The Companys financial services segment
includes RMC RH Insurance Company

Inc RHIC LPS Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries LPS and Columbia National Risk Retention Group Inc

CNRRG By aligning its operations with the Companys homehuilding segments the financial services segment leverages

this relationship to offer its lendmg services to homehuyers In addition to being valuable asset to customers the financial

services segment generates profit for the Company Providing mortgage financmg and other services to its customers allows

the Company to better monitor its backlog and closing process
The ma of loans originated are sold within one

business day of the date they close The third
party purchaser then services and manages the loans assuming nearly all of

the credit risk of borrower default In 2008 the Company entered into
mortgage

warehouse
facility in order to finance its

mortgage loans and increase the number of investors to which it sells the loans it originates The Company also provided

construction-related insurance to subcontractors in its western markets through June 2008 Additionally the financial

services segment also offers insurance for liability risks specifically
homeowners structural warranty coverage risug in

connection with the homehuilding business of the Company

Loan Origination

In 2008 RMCs mortgage origination operations consisted primarily of the Companys homehuilder loans which were

originated in connection with the sale of the Companys homes During the year mortgage operations originated 5634

loans totaling $1.3 billion of which 99.6
percent was for purchases of homes built by the Company and the

remaining

amount was for either purchases of homes btnlt by others purchases
of

existing
homes or the refinancing of existing

mortgage loans

RMC arranges variotis types
of

mortgage financing including conventional Federal Housing Administration FHA and

Vterans Administration VA mortgages
with various fixed- and adjustable-rate

features RMC is approved to originate

loans that conform to the guidelines established by
the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC and the

Federal National Mortgage
Association FNMA The Company sells the loans it originates along with the related

servicing rights to others



Title and Escrow Services

Cornerstone Title Company whollyowned subsidiary of RMC doing business as Ryland Title Compan provides title

services and acts as title insurance agent primarily for the Companys homebuycrs At December 31 2008 it provided

title services in Arizona Colorado Delaware Florida Illinois Indiana Maryland Minnesota Nevada Texas and Virginia

The Company also operated Ryland Escrow Company until February 2008 which performed escrow and closing
functions

for the Companys homebuyers in California During 2008 Ryland Title Company and land Escrow Company provided

these services to 97.3 percent
of the Companys homebuvers in the markets in which they operate compared to

96.8 percent during 2007

Insurance Services

Ryland Insurance Services RISa wholly-owned subsidiary of RMC provides insurance services to the Companys

homebuyers At December 31 2008 RIS was licensed to operate in all of the states in which the Companys homcbuilding

segments operate During 2008 it provided insurance services to 49.5 percent
of the Companys homebuyers compared to

54.2 percent during 2007

RHIC is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that provided insurance services to the homebuilding segments

subcontractors in certain markers RHIC ceased providing such services effective lime 2008 RHIC is registered and

licensed under Seetion 431 Article 19 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes and is required to meet certain mimnium capital
and

surplus requirements Additionalis no dividends may be paid withcut prior approval
of the Hawaii Insurance Commissioner

CNRRG is whollyowned subsidiary of the Company and some of its affiliates CNRRG was established to directly

insure liability risks specifically homeowners structural warranty coverage arising in connection with ihe homebuilding

business of the Company and its affiliates

Corporate

Corporate is nonoperating
business

segment
whose purpose is to support operations Corporate de1artnicnts are

responsible for establishing operational policies and internal control standards implementing strategic initiatives and

monitoring compliance
with policies and controls throughout the Companys operations Corporate acts as an internal

source of capital and provides financial human resource information technologt insurance legal marketing national

purchasing and tax compliance services In addition it performs administrative functions associated with publicly traded

entit

Real Estate and Economic Conditions

The Company is significantly affected by fluctuations in economic activity interest rates and levels of consumer confidence

The effects of these fluctuations differ among the various geographic markets in which the Company operates Higher

interest rates and the
availability

of homeowner financing may affect the ability of buyers to quali for
mortgage financing

and decrease demand for new homes As result rising interest rates generally will decrease the Companys home sales and

mortgage originations In addition continued decline in the
availability

of mortgage products due to the continued

tightening of credit standards negatively impacted the Companys ability to attract homehuyers duruig 2008 The

Companys business is also affected by local economic conditions such as employment rates consumer confidence and

housing demand in the markets in which it operates All of the Companys markers have experienced significant decline in

housing demand

Inventory risk can be substantial for homcbuilders The market value of land lots and housing inventories fluctuates as

result of changing market and economic conditions The Company must continuously locate and
acquire

land not only for

expansion into new markets but also for replacement and expansion
of land inventory within current markets The

Company employs various measures designed to control inventory risk including corporate
land approval process

and

continuous review by senior
management

It cannot however assure that these measures will avoid or eliminate this risk and

the Company has experienced substantial losses from inventory valuation adjustments
and write-offs in recent periods

Competition

The Company competes
in each of its markers with large number of national regional and local homnebuilding companies

The strength and expanded presence
of national homcbuilders plus the viability of regional and local homebuilders impacts

the level of competition in many markets The Company also competes
with other housing alternatives including existing

homes and rental properties Principal competitive
factors in the homebtulding industry include price design quality

reputation relationships with developers accessibility of subcontractors availability and location of lots and availability of

customer financing The Companys financial services segment ctmpetes
with other mortgage bankers io arrange financing



for hornebuvers Principal competitive
factors include interest rates fees and other features of

mortgage
loan products

available to the consumer

Employees

Ar December 31 2008 the Company had 1303 emplovees.The Company considers its employee relations to be good No

employees arc represented by collective bargaining agreement

Web Site Access to Reports

The Company files annual quarterly and special reports proxy statements and other information with the U.S Securities

and Exchange Commission SEC under the Exchange Act and the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities

Act Any document the Company files may be read at the SECs public
reference room Room 1580 at 100 Street NE

Washington D.C 20549 Please call the SEC toll-free at I-800-SEC-0330 for information regarding its public reference

room The Company files information electronically with the SEC The Companys SEC
filings are available from the SECs

VVeh site at www.sec.ov Reports proxy and information statements and other informnauon regarding issuers that file

electronically arc readily
obtainable there

Stockholders securities analysts and others seeking information about the Companys business operations and financial

performance can receive copies of its 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current

Reports on Form 8-K all amendments to those reports and other documents filed with the SEC without charge by

contacting the Company Corporate Secretarys office at 818 223-7500 by writing to The Ryland Group Inc Investor

Relations 24025 Park Sorrento Suite 410 Calabasas California 91302 or via e-mail at investcrsIOrylandcom In addition all

filings
with the SEC news releases and quarterly earnings announcemenis including live audio and replays

of the most

recent c1uarterly earnings conference calls can be accessed free of charge on the Companys Web site at www.rjvland.com

Information on the Companys Web site is not pan
of this

report
The Company makes its Annual Report on Form 10K

Quarterly Reports on Form l0Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section or 15d of the Exchange Act available on its Web site as soon as possible after it electronically

files such material with or furnishes it to the SEC To retrieve any of this information visii wwwryland.ceni select

Investors and scroll down the
page to SEC Ftlmgs The Company uses its Web site as one method for distributing

information about the Company to the securities marketplace

Item IA Risk Factors

The
hoinehuilding jndustrk is cyclical in nature and has

experienced
downturns which have in the

past
and ma iii the

future cause the Company to

incur losses in inancial and
operatin

results

The Company is affected by the
cyclical nature of the homehuilding industry which is sensitive to many factors including

fluctuations in general and local economic conditions interest rates housing demand employment levels levels of new and

existing homes for sale demographic trends availability
of homeowner financmg and levels of consumer confidence In

2008 the markets served by the Company and the U.S homehuilding mdusrry as whole continued to experience

significant and sustained decrease in demand for new homes and an oversupply of new and existing
homes available for sale

The homehuilding industry has been impacted by lack of consumer confidence housing affordability and large supplies of

resale and new home inventories which has resulted in an industry-wide softening of demand for new homes In addition

an oversupply of alternatives to new homes such as rental properties and exlstmg homes has depressed prices and reduced

margins for the sale of new homes These trends resulted in overall fewer home sales greater cancellations of home purchase

agreements by buyers higher inventories of unsold homes and the increased usc by homehuilders of discounts incentives

price concessions and other marketing efforts to close home sales in 2008 compared to the past
several

years Reflecting

these demand and supply trends the Company experienced large drop in nOt orders decline in the
selling price

of new

homes sold and reduction in margins in 2008 relative to
prior years The Company cannot predict how long these market

conditions will continue and what affect they might have on the Companys financial and operating performance

Because almost all of the Goinpanvi hoinebuvers finance
the

purchase of
their homes the terms and availaliliiy

of lnor1age financing
can affect

ihe

demand for and the ability to complete
the

purchase of home as well as I/sc Companyi future operating
and

financial
results

The Companys business and earnings depend on the ability of its homebuyers to obtain financing for the purchase of their

homes Many of the Companys homcbuyers must sell their existing homes in order to buy home from the Company

During 2008 the
mortgage lending industry experienced significant instability

due to among other things defaults on

suhprime loans and resulting decline in the market value of such loans In
light

of these developments lenders mvestors

regulators and other third parties questioned the adequacy of lending standards and other credit requirements
for several

loan programs made available to borrowers in recent years This has led to tightened credit
requirements

and reduced



liquidity Deterioration in credit quality among subprime and other nonconforming loans has caused most lenders to

eliminate subprime mortgages
and most other loan products that do not conform to Fannie Mae Freddie Mac FHA or

VA standards Fewer loan products and righter loan qualifications in turn make it more difficult for some categories
of

borrowers to finance the purchase of new homes or the purchase of exisrmg homes from potential move-up buyers who

wish to purchase one of the Companys homes in general these developments have resulted in reduction in demand for

the homes sold by the Company and have delayed any general improvement in the housing market Furthermore they have

resulted in reduction in demand for the mortgage
loans that the Company originates through RMC If the Companys

potential homebuvers or the buyers of the homebuyers existing homes cannot obtain suitable financing the result will have

an adverse effect on the Companys operating and financial results and performance

The company is
subject

to inventorS risk for its land options for land building
lots and

housing inventop

The market value of the Companys land huildmg lots and housing inventories fluctuates as result of changing market and

economic conditions in addition inventory carrying costs can result in losses in poorly performing projects or markets

Changes in economic and marker conditions have caused the Company to dispose of land options
for land and housing

inventories on basis that has resulted in loss and required the Company to write down or reduce the carrying value of

its inventory During the 12-month period ended December 31 2008 the Company decided not to pursue development

and construction in certain areas where it held land or had made option deposits which resulted in $22.5 million in

recorded writeoils of option deposits and preacquisition costs In addition market conditions led to recorded land-related

impairments on communities and land in the
aggregate amount of $257.4 million during

the same period The Company

can 1rovide no assurance that it will not need to record additional writeohs in the future

In the course of its business the Company makes acquisitions
of land Although it employs various measures including its

land approval OCCSS and continued review by senior management designed to manage inventory risks the Company cannot

assure that these measures will enable it to avoid or eliminate its inventory risk

constrin-tion costs can fluctuate and
impact

the Csnipanys margins

The homehuilding industry has from time to time experienced significant difficulties including shortages of qualified trades

people reliance on local subcontractors who may be inadequately capitalized shortages of materials and volatile increases in

the cost of materials particularly increases in the
price

of lumber drywall and cement which are significant components
of

home construction costs The Company may not be able to recapture increased costs by raising prices
either because of

market conditions or because it fixes its prices at the time home sales contracts are signed

Fluctuations in interest rates can
ffect

the
Coinpaiiy

business and
profitability

Interest rates can significantly affect the Companys lines of business Higher interest rates affect the
ability

of buyers to

qualii for mortgage financing
and decrease demand for new homes As result rising interest rates can decrease the

Companys home sales and
mortgage originations Any of these factors could have an adverse impact on the Companys

results of operations or financial position

Because the
honiehuilding industry

is
competitive

the business
practices

of other honiebuilders can have an
impact

on the company financial results

and cause these results to decline

The residential housing industry is highly competitive The Company competes
in each of its markers with large number

of national regional and local homebuilding companies
In 2008 this competition caused the Company to adfust selling

prices in response to competitive conditions in the markets in which it operates
and required the Company to increase

selling
incenrives We cannot predict whether these measures will he sticcessfiil or if additional incentives will be made in

the future The Company also competes with other housing alternatives including existing homes and rental housing

Principal competitive factors in homebuilding are home
price

availability of customer financing design quality reputation

relationship wirh developers accessibility of stibconrractors and availability and location of homesires Any of the foregoing

factors could have an adverse impact on the Companys financial performance and results of operations

The Companys financial services segment competes
with other

mortgage
bankers to arrange financing for homehuyers

Principal competitive factors include interest rates fees and other features of
mortgage

loan products available to the

consumer

Because the Conmpanyc business is subject to various regulatory
and environmental limitations it may not he able to conduct its business as planned

The Companys homebtulding segments are subject to various local state and federal laws statutes ordinances rules and

regulations concerning zoning building design construction stormwater permitting and discharge and similar matters as

well as open space wetlands and environmentally protected areas These include local regulations
that

impose restrictive
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zoning arid density requirements in order to limit the number of homes that can be built within the boundaries of

particular area as well as other municipal or city land planning restrictions requirements or limitations The Company may

also experience periodic delays in homehuilding projects
due to regulatory compliance mumcipal appeals and other

government planning OCCSSCS in any of the areas in which it operates

\Vith
respect to originating processing selling

and servicing mortgage loans the Companys financial services segment is

subject to the rules and regulations of the FHA FHLMC FNIvIA VA and U.S Department of Housing and Urban

Development Mortgage origination activities are further subject to the Equal Credit Opportunity Act Federal

Truth-inLending Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and their associated regulations These and other

federal and state statutes and regulations prohibit discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines which include

provisions for audits inspections and appraisals require
credit

reports on prospective borrowers fix maximum loan amounts

and require
the disclostire of certain information concerning credit and settlement costs The Company is required to

submit audited financial statements annually and each
agency

or other entity has its own financial
requirements

The

Companys affisirs are also subject to examination by these entities at all times to assure compliance with applicable

regulations policies and procedures

The Cosnpanvs ability to grow
the business and

operations of the Conipany depends to significant degree upon the ompanrl ability to access

capital on javorable
terms

The ability to access capital on favorable terms is an important factor in growing
the Companys business and operations in

profitable manner In December 2007 Moodys lowered the Companys debt rating to non-Investment grade with

negative outlook and Standard Poors also reduced the Companys investment grade rating to non-investment grade in

May 2008 The Company has received additional downgrades from these
agencies

and remains on negative
watch The loss

of an investment grade rating
affects the cost of borrowing capacity and covenants under the Companys revolving credit

facility and makes it more difficult and costly for the Company to access the debt capital markets for funds that may he

required to implement the Companys business plans and achieve growth objectives

Natural disasters
niay

have
sinificant impact

on the Cornpanyi
business

The climates and geology of many of the states in which the Company operates present
increased risks of natural disasters

To the extent that hurricanes severe storms tornadoes earthquakes droughts floods widflres or other natural disasters or

similar events occur its business in those states may he adversely affected

The Cmnpanvi net
operating

loss carryforwards
could he

substantially
limited it

experiences an ownership change as defined in the Internal Reeenuc

Code

The Company bias experienced
and continue to experience

substantial operating losses including realized losses for tax

purposes
from sales of inventory and land previously written down for financial statement purposes

which would produce

net operating
losses and unrealized losses that may reduce potential future federal ulcome tax obligations It may also

generate net operating
loss carryforwards us future years

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code contains rules that limit the
ability

of company that undergoes an ownership

change which is generally any change in ownership of more than 50.0 percent of its stock over three-year period to

utilize its net operating loss carryforwards and certain built-in losses recognized in years after the ownership change These

rules generally operate by focusing on ownership changes among stockholders owning directly or indirectly 5.0 percent or

more of the stock of
company

and any change in ownership arising
from new issuance of stock by the company

If the Company undergoes an ownership change for
purposes

of Section 382 as result of future transactions involving its

common stock including purchases or sales of stock between 5.0 percent stockholders the Companys ability to use its net

operating loss carryforwards and to recognize certain built-in losses would be subject to the limitations of Section 382

Depending on the resulting limitation significant portion
of the Companys net operating

loss catryforwards could expire

before it would be able to use them The Companys inability to utilize its net operating
loss carryforwards could have

negative impact on its financial
position

and results of operations

II



In December 2008 the Company announced that its Board of Directors adopted
stockholder rights plan designed to

preserve
stockholder value and the value of certain tax assets primarily

associated with net loss carryforwards and built in

losses under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code The Company can provide no assurance that the rights plan will

protect
the Companys ability to use its net operating losses and unrealized losses to reduce potential future federal income

tax obligations See Note Employee Incentive Stock and Shareholder Rights Plans

Because this
report

contains forward Iookiig statements
it

ntay
not

prove
to he accurate

This report arid other Company releases and filings
with the SEC may contain forward-looking statements The Company

generally identifies forward-looking statements using
words like believe intend expect may should plan

project contemplate anticipate target estimate foresee goal likely will or similar statements Because these

statements reflect its current views concerning future events they involve risks uncertainties and
assumptions including the

risks and uncertainties identified in this
report

Actual results may
differ significantly from the results discussed in these

forward-looking statements The Company does not undertake to update its forward-looking statements or risk factors to

reflect future events or circumstances

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The Company leases office
space

for its
corporate headquarters in Calabasas California and for its IT Department and

RMCs operations center in Scottsdale Arizona In addition the Company leases office space in the various markets in

which it operates

Item Legal Proceedings

Contingent liabilities may arise from obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business or from the usual obligations of

onsite housing producers for the completion of contracts

The Company is party to various other
legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses Based on evaluation of these

matters and discussions with counsel management
believes that liabilities arising from these matters will not have material

adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter
of the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 there were no nsatters subnutted to vote of

security holders

PART IT

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market for Common Equity Common Stock Prices and Dividends

The Company lists its common shares on the NYSE trading tinder the symbol RYL The latest reported sale price of

the Companys common stock on February 12 2009 was $17.49 and there were approximately 2087 common

stockholders of record

The table below presents high and low market
prices

and dividend information for the Company

DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS

DECLARED DECLARE
LOW PER SHARE LOW PER SHARE

2008 HIGH 2007 HIGH

First
quarter

35.64 20.25 0.12 Firsi
quarter

60.13 41.96 0.12

Second
quarter

37.85 21.81 0.12 Second
1uartcr

4861 37.22 0.12

Third
quarter

30.00 18.11 0.12 Third
quarter

39.33 20.19 0.12

Fourth quarter
27.75 9.95 0.03 Fourth

quarter
29.67 19.51 0.12
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not purchase any
of its own equitY

securities during the
year

ended December 31 2008

On December 2006 the Company announced that it had received authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase

shares totaling $175.0 million or approximately 3.1 million shares hascd on the Companys stock price on that date

During 2007 approximately 747000 shares had been repurchased in accordance with this authorization At December 31

2008 there were approximately 8.1 million additional shares available for purchase in accordance with this authorization

based on the Companys stock price on that date This authorization does not have an expiration
date

Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or he filed with the

SEC nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing
under the Securities Act or the

Exchange Act except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates
it by reference into such filing

The following graph compares
the Companys cumulative total stockholder returns since December 31 2003 to the Dow

Tones U.S Home Construction and SP 500 indices for the calendar years ending December 31

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among The Ryland Group Inc The SP 500 Index

And The Dow lones US Home Construction Index

The Ryland Group Inc SP 500 Dow Jones U.S Home Construction

$100 invested 2/3 /0.5 In stock or lndcxrncludlnd rrnrcstnient rf
dividends

NUMBER OF SECURITIES TO
BE ISSUED UPON EXERCISE

OF OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
WARRANTS AND RIGHTS

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE OF

OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
WARRANTS AND RIGHTS

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

REMAiNING AVAILABLE FOR
FUTURE ISSUANCE UNDER

EQUTTY COMPENSATION
PLANS EXCLUDING

SECURITIES REFLECTED IN

COLUMN

$200-

$150

$100

$50

12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation
Plans

The Companys equitY compensation plan information as of December 31 2008 is summarized as follows

PLAN CATEGORY

I0uity consprnsation plans approved
6v

stockholders 4134.903 37.97 2518.606

Espni iv ccm1ensaron plans nor approved

hr stockholders1

The Company 2oes not have
any c/uS

con qensaton p/ails
have not bee approved hr stodiholders
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Item Selected Financial Data

Iii no/lions excqit per
share data uttaitdtted 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

ANNUAL RESULTS

REVENUES

Homebuilding

linanctal services

TOTAL REVENUES

Cost of Sk

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures

Selling genera
and admintstranve

Expenses
related to early retirement of debt

Earnsngs loss before taxes

Tax
expense benefit

NET EARNINGS LOSS

YEAR-END POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Housing insentortes

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Debt

Other liabi/ities and minority interest

TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

PER COMMON SHARE DATA

NET EARNINGS LOsS
Basic

Diluted

DIVIDENDS DECLAREI

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Adjusted
EBITDA

Adjttsted EB1TDA/tnterest incttrted2

Return on beginning equity

Net
debt_to_capital1

1912 2960 4.654

64 92 126

33 260 744

0.7X 4.2X 10.3X

35.3% 22.154 26.2%

33.6% 34.6% 32.7%

4726 3867

117 107

814 604

12.2X 1I.4X

42.3% 38.9%

25.1% 3/8%

Larnngs
before

sttrrctt taxes depreciation ansi amortization and
impairments .Slslusted EBITDA measure centnonlv uses

iii
the

homebutldig utduo9
and

to pr050ntid to

afoul in uidcrstanduo the alit/nv of the opeslton5 Cf
the Compass to

generate
each l0ond that which is

needed to terrIer extstinn interest requirettteultu
atd

ongoing
tax oh/ga/un

Adjust EBJTT3A nunI ear vi /c bolero nile
opt

tse sl capita/I
ed tore am 17 at

oj
ale ii otn tax si

lepre tat is

antorti_atios and el iiiteittey
and other asset tntpairuneiit chargesitttd write_of/s Adjusted LBITLA to tiCs linandal ntcastre recoginred in accordance with generally accepted

accounting petite/p/eu OAAP Ae/fnsted EBTTIA thou/el neither be cent/tiered all alternative to tot earn tugs
deternnted ii accorolautec with /4J0 no an indicator of operating

perfornistiice nor all alteruastee to cash flouts frssnt

eperattlih
activities detenuiutcd in accordstuice with C4AP as measure of liquidity

.4s1nsted EBJTDA/unicrcst ncttrrcd
us

csiloulated as Ad EJ3TZDA drfiind aboor divided by
total interest ntciurrsA which

is
the smut of interest

expense
stud cstpitalued stereos

1ev tI/c period

Rettini on beopnitng eoputty is
ealczilates/ as uuet earnuugs

lose divided by to/al nec/holders eqniiy
the

legume5 yf
the

period

Yes debtto_capital is
estlculaiod as dcls no

of
cash dtiided is the sitti of

dl autd total stockholders
equitY

me eJ cash The Jottipans
believes the in debt tocapital rsttie is nsf it vi

ssidorstandnig the lsiirags entplovsd iv tt operations
atsd is

comparing
it ivith other heumteluumlders

1976 3052 4.780 4.843 3974

2003 3034 3640 3538 2.970

44 6s

334 438 565 576 489

406 420 567 721 521

86 207 274 201

397 334 .5 360 447 320

423 244 215 461 88

1096 1813 2.772 258/ 2.024

344 494 430 346 313

1.863 2551 3.417 3.387 2425

790 839 950 922 559

348 587 956 1089 809

1138 1426 1.906 2.011 1.368

725 1125 1.511 1376 1057

9.33 702 8.14 t5 6.72

9.33 7.92 7.83 9.03 6.3o

0.39 0.48 0.48 0.30 0.21

16.97 26.6$ 35.46 29.68 2232
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The following table sets forth the computation
of Adjusted EB1TDA for each period presented

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

thoinands
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Earnings
loss before taxes 405764 420098 567108 721.051 521.212

Inventory and othet asset inspairnients
and write-offs 325480 583363 81314 3798 1588

Interest
expense

220 98 205 738 1227

Capitalized
interest amortized to cost of sales 61146 41689 48703 45.483 41764

Depreciation
and amoruzanon 52215 54494 46731 43166 38.519

Adjusted EBITDA 33297 259546 744066 814.236 604.310

reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided by operations
the most directly comparable GAAP measure is

provided below for each period presented

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

thousands
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net cash provided by used fbr operating activates 248426 228140 14637 216264 78.471

Decrease increase in inventories 383237 273.355 263.444 494769 587.150

Tax
expense

benehii 9179 86572 207166 27999 200.667

Deferred tax valuation alloivance 143784 75166

Interest
expense

220 98 205 738 1227

Ctpitslized
interest tniortized to cost of sales 61146 41689 48708 45483 41.764

Net change ni other assets pavables
and other liabilities 239388 412984 217.488 175358 104424

Stock-based compensation expense 9048 12.257 25.593 18.862 5208

Excess ax heneflt from exercise of stock options
and

vesting
o1

restricted stock 3138 6714 14.632 30505 17475

Other 26227 17.271 3.379 7.708 l0.920t

Adjtisted EBITDA 33297 259546 744066 814236 604310

15



Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

IVote Certain statements in this Annual Report may he
regarded as forward_looking statements within the meaning of

the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 199.5 and may qual jfy for the safe harbor prcrvidea for in Section 2/k of the Exchange Act These forwardlooking

statements
represent

the Comnpanys expectations
amid

beliefs concerning future events
and no assurance can be

given
that the results described in this

Annual Report
will be achieved These forwardlooking statements can generalh he

identified
by the use of

statements that include words such as

anticipale believm estitnats expect foresee goal intend likely may vlan project should target will or ether similar words

or phrases Al/forward_looking statements contained herein are based upon information
available to the

Comnpaijy
on the date of

this Annual Report

Except as niam he
required

under applicable law i/se company does not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forwardlooking statements

whether as result
oj new information future events or otherwise

These forward_looking statements are subject
to risks uncertainties and other

flictors many of which arc outside
of

the Companys contro4
that could

cause actual results to
dffrr materially irons

the results discussed in the forwardlooking statements The flictors
and

assumptions upon
which any

forwardlooking statements herein are based are subject
to risks and uncertainties which include among

others

economic changes miationally or in the Gmmpinvs local markets including volatility and increases in interest
rates inflation continued weakness

in coitsumer demand and confidence levels and the state of
the market for homes in general

instability and uncertainty iii
the

mortgage lending market including
revisions to underwriting

standards for borrowers

the availability and cost
of

land and the future
value

of
land he/cl or tinder development

increased land
development costs on projects

under development

shortages of skilled labor or raw materials used in the
production of houses

increased
prices

for labor land and raw materials used in the
production of houses

imicreased
conipetitiomi

failure to
anticipate

or react to changing consumer preferences in home desgn

imicreased costs and
delays

in laud
development

or honie construction resulting from adverse weather conditions

potential delays or increased costs in ohtaiiting necessary permits as result
of changes

to laws regulations or governmental policies mmicludntg

these that
affect zoning density Luilding

standards and the environment

delays in
obtaining approvals from applicable regulatory agencies

and others in connection with the company comnniunties and land
activities

changes in the companys effective tax rate and
assumptions

and valuations related to its tax accounts

the risk
factors set forth

in this Annual
Report

on Form 10K and

other fsctors over which the company has little or no control

Results of Operations

Overview

Operating conditions became progressively worse during 2008 as the economys decline accelerated late in the ear

extending the industrys downturn which began in 2006 Since the latter half of 2007 lack of availability of
mortgage

products resulting
from an industry-wide increase in loan delinquency and foreclosure rates as well as the related tightening

of credit standards has impacted the housing industry and the Companys ability
to attract qualified homehuyers These

factors have exacerbated already high inventory levels of new and resale homes increased cancellation levels and weakened

consumer confidence Demand pressure from foreclosures and unsettled credit markets continued through 2008 while rising

unemployment and declining consumer confidence slowed the decline in existing and new housing inventories Consequently

the Company continued to report
declines in the volume of homes sold decreases in prices high sales contract cancellation

rates and as result recorded additional valuation adjustments In an effort to compensate for these developments it has

continued its operating strategy focusing on cash generation and debt reduction through increased sales
price

discounts and

other incentives opportunistic land sales monetization of its deferred tax assets through consummation of transactions

creating
loss carrybacks to 2006 reductions in excess inventory and existing commitments to purchase land through

contract renegotiations and cancellations controlled development spending renegotiations
of contracts with subcontractors

and suppliers reductions in overhead
expense

to more closely match projected volume levels and repayment or repurchase

of debt at discount .As result the Company operated from 31 .6
percent

fewer active cornmumties in 2008 than in

2007 and its inventory
of lots controlled as of December 31 2008 was down 41.0

percent
from year ago The Company

believes that access to traditional capital will be constrained in the early stages
of recovery and that lenders will migrate to

homehuildets with the
strongest

balance sheets To insure that the Company participates in the initial stages of recovery it

has formed limited liability company with Oaktree Capital the
purpose

of which will be to jointly acquire
and develop

distressed and other residential real estate assets The Company believes that its cash balances low net debt-to-capital ratio

manageable inventory pipelines and early access to liquidity and land will allow it to ultimately take advantage
of

opportunities
that

may
arise

facilitating
accelerated growth and market share as conditions improve
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Due to increased price reductions and sales incentives evaluation of the Companys inventory through quarterly impairment

analyses during 2008 resulted in $257.4 million of inventory valuation adjustments Charges 0f $22.5 million related to the

abandonment of land purchase option contracts reflect the deterioration of specific related returns and the
assumption

that

recent price reductions ate indicative of price levels for the foreseeable future In addition the Company recorded valuation

allowances totaling $143.8 million against its deferred tax assets in accordance with Statement of Fmancial Accounting

Standards No 109 SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes These assets were largely the result of inventory

impairments taken during
the year and reflect

uncertainty
with regard to the dtiration of current conditions in housing

markets Should the Company generate significant taxable income in future
years it wi11 reverse the allowance in the form of

lower effective income tax rate Additionally the Company evaluated the recoverability of its goodwill which resulted in

$2.8 million impairment charge during 2008 There was no remaining goodwill at Decembet 31 2008

For the
year

ended December 31 2008 the Company reported consolidated net loss of $396.6 million or $9.33

per diluted share compared to net loss of $333.5 million or $7.92 per diluted share for 2007 and earnings
of

$359.9 million or $7.83
pet

diluted share for 2006 The decrease in earnings over the
past two ears was due to decline

in revenues inventory valuation adjustments and other write-offs resulting from deteriorating market conditions as well as

from more competitive sales environment in most markets

Total revenues were $2.0 billion 6r the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $3.1 billion for the same period in

207 decrease of $1.1 billion or 35.2 percent This decrease was primarily due to decline in closings average closing

price and mortgage originations Total revenues for 2007 decreased from 2006 levels by 81.7 billion or 36.2 percent

primarily due to decline in closing volume average closing price and mortgage originations Homebuilding pretax

operating margins were negatIve 20.2 perceni
for 2008 compared to negative

14.4
percent

for 2007 and 12.3 percent for

2006 The decreases in margms were primarily due to increased
price

concessions and sales incentives in most markets as

well as to inventory and other valuation adjustments
and write-offs

Adjusted EBITDA was $33.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $259.5 million and

$744.1 million for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively The Companys ratio of Adjusted EP4TDA to interest

incurred was 0.7 for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 4.2 for 2007 and 10.3 for 2006 In an effort to

itself for conipetitive industry conditions in 2009 the Company generated cash flow from its
operations in part

reducing land acquisitions development activity and its obligations to take down land in the future At December 31

2008 it had 16345 fewer lots tinder control or 41.0 percent decrease from year-end 2007

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company which include homes under construction land under development and

improved lots and inventory held-for-sale declined 37.8
percent to $1.1 billion at December 31 2008 from $1.7 billion

at December 31 2007 Homes under construction decreased by 35.3 percent to $464.8 million at December 31 2008

conspared to $718.0 million at December 31 2007 Land under development and improved lots decreased by 42.4 percent

to $547.3 million at December 31 2008 compared to $949.7 million at December 31 2007 Inventory held-for-sale

decreased 0.4
percent

and totaled $69.0 million at December 31 2008 compared to $69.2 million at December 31 2007

The Companys balance sheet continues to reflect its conservative strategy and transparency The Company ended the
year

with $423.3 million in cash $1 60.7 million in current taxes receivable no borrowings against its revolving credit facility

and no debt maturities until 2012 In January 2009 it gained access to additional capital through tIie formation of
joint

venture for the acquisition and development of new projects The Company was nor significant participant in offbalance

sheet financing outside of traditional option contracts with land developers and its investments in joint ventures at

December 31 2008 was not significant The Companys net debt-to-capital ratio was 33.6 percent at December 31 2008

compared to 34.6
percent

and 32.7 percent for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively As result of the

revaluation of significant portion
of inventory and deferred tax assets and balancing of cash flow with inventory

management
and leverage objectives stockholders equity per

share declined by 36.4
percent to $16.97 in 2008 compared

to $26.68 in 2007 and $35.46 in 2006 The Companys book value at December 31 2008 was 100.0
percent tangible
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Homebuilding Overview

The combined homehuilding operations reported pretax losses of $385.9 million and S425.0 million for 2008 and 2007

respectively compared to earnings of $573.1 million for 2006 Homehuilding results in 2008 improved from 2007

primarily due to lower inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs partially offset by decline in closings and margins

and higher losses from land sales Hornebuilding results in 2007 decreased from 2006 due to decline in closings and

margins and to the impact
of inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENDE DECEMBER 31

iv hoiisaid rxeep unas
2008 2007 2016

REVENUES

Housing 1856647 2.937435 4545.594

Land and other 54984 22.759

TOTAL REVENUES 1911631 2960104 4653.921

EXPENSES

C0t of sales

Housing 1642389 2.434774 3451.882

Land and other
80.833 20589 83536

Valuation acl1ustnent
and vr1tcofLs 280120 578778 74.397

Total cost of sales 2003342 3034.141 3.639815

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

ventures 43900 342 260

Selling general
and adnnnistrattvc 250278 351376 440702

TOTAL EXPENSES 2297520 3385175 4080.777

PRETAX EARNINGS LOSS 385889 424.98I 573.143

Closings uniO 7352 10319 15392

Housing gross profit margins 3.2% 0.4% 21.8%

Selling general
and administrative

expense
13.1% 11.9% 9.5%

New orders
represent

sales contracts that have been signed by the hoinehuyer and approved by the Company subject to

cancellation The dollar value of new orders decreased $953.0 million or 39.2 percent to $1.5 billion for the year ended

December 31 2008 from $2.4 billion for the year ended December 31 2007 The dollar value of new orders declined by

24.3
percent

to $2.4 billion in 2007 from 83.2 billion for the same period in 2006 This decrease in new orders was

primarily attributable to the softening of demand and to the higher existing
and new home inventory levels in most markets

that reflected deteriorating economic environment Additionally market uncertainty and heightened price competition

among homebuilders led to rising cancellation rates by homebuyers and were major factor in these declines Cancellation

rates totaled 35.0 percent
37.0

percent
and 37.1

percent
for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively Unit orders decreased 32.7 percent to 0.042 new orders in 2008 compared to 8982 new orders in 2007 Unit

orders declined 19.3 percent to 8982 new orders in 2007 compared to 11134 new orders in 2006

Homebuilding revenues fell 35.4
percent

for 2008 compared to 2007 due to 28.8 percent decrease in closings and

an 11.6
percent

decrease in average closing price j\S result of these same market trends homebuilding revenues fell

36.4 percent fi.r 2007 compared to 2000 due to 33.0
percent

dccteasc in closings and 3.4 percent
decrease in average

closmg price

in order to manage
risk and return of land investments match land supply with anticipated volume levels and monetize

marginal land positions through the carryback of tax losses the Company executed several land and lot sales durmg the

year Homebuilding revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 included $55.0 million from land and lot sales

compared to $21.2 million for 2007 and 8943 million for 2006 which contributed net loss of $25.8 million to pretax

losses in 2008 compared to net gains of $2.2 million and $24.8 million to pretax earnings in 2007 and 2006 respectively

Housing gross profit margins averaged negative 3.2 percent for 2008 decrease from negative 0.4 percent for 2007 and

21.8 percent for 2006 The decline in 2008 was primarily attributable to increased price concessions and sales incentives as

well as to price reductions that related to home deliveries Housing gross profit margins excluding inventory and joint

venture valuation adjustments and write-offs were 11.6
percent

17.1 percent and 23.4 percent
for the

years
ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Gross profit margins
from land sales were negative

47.0 percent for

December 31 2008 compared to 10.3 percent
and 26.3

percent
for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively Price concessions and sales incentives as percentage
of revenues totaled 15.0

percent
12.1 percent

and

7.1
percent

for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The effect of price declines valuation
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adjustments and writeoffs was partially offset by the amortization of valuation allowances based on home closings which

impacted housing gross profit margins by 6.7 percent 1.7 percent
and 0.1

percent
for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 CSFAS 144 Accotuning for the Impairment

or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets inventory is reviewed for potential write-downs on an ongoing
basis SFAS 144 requires

that in the event that impairment indicators arc present impairment charges are required to he recorded if the fair value of

such assets is less than their carrying amounts For inventory
held and used undiscounted cash flow

projections are

generated at community
level based on estimates of revenues costs and other factors The Companys analysis

of these

communities gcnerall\ assumes current revenues equal to current sales orders for particular or comparable communities The

Companys determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting
the estimated cash flows at rate commensurate

with inherent risks that are associated with assets and related estimated cash flow streams When determining the value of

inventory held-for-sale the Company considers recent offers comparable sales and/or estimated cash flows Valuation

adjustments are recorded against homes completed or under construction land under development and improved lots when

events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying

values are greater than the fair values Due to continued pressure on home

prices symptomatic of excess home inventories in many markets the Company recorded inventory impairment charges of

$257.4 million $504.0 million and $62.9 million during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectivelY in order to reduce the carrYing value of the impaired communities to their estimated fair value Approximately

92
percent

of these impairment charges were recorded to residential land and lots and land held for development
while

approximatelY percent
of these charges were recorded to residential construction in progress

and finished homes in

inventory At December 31 2008 the fair value of the Companys inventory subject to valuation adjustments of

$257.4 million during the year net of impairments was $222.8 million There were 112 communities with writedossns in

2008 compared to 101 communities in 2007 Inventory and other
impairment charges and write-oils of deposits and

acquisition costs reduced total housing gross profit margins by 14.8 percent in 2008 17.5
percent in 2007 and 1.6 percent

in 2006 Should market conditions deteriorate or costs increase it is possible that the Companys estimates of undiscounted

cash flows from its communities could decline resulting in additional future inventory impairment charges

The Company periodically writes off earnest money deposits and feasibility costs related to land and lot option contracts

that it no longer plans to pursue During the year ended December 31 2008 the Company wrote off S21.7 million of

earnest money deposits and $795000 of feasibility costs For the same period in 2007 write-offs of earnest money

deposits and feasibility costs related to land purchase option contracts that the Company would not pursue were

$72.6 million and $4.6 million respectively For the same period in 2006 write-offs of earnest money deposits and

feasibility costs were Sf0.9 million and $6.9 million respectivek
Should weak homebuilding market conditions persist

and

the Company be unsuccessful in its efforts to renegotiate certain land option purchase contracts it may write off additional

earnest money deposits and feasibility costs in Riture periods

Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage
of revenue were 13.1 percent

for 2008 11.9
percent

for 2007

and 9.5 percent
for 2006 The

percentage increase for 2008 compared to 2007 was mainly attributable to decline in

revenues as well as to severance relocation model abandonment and goodwill impairment costs and charges that collectively

totaled $25.9 million partially offset by lower marketing and advertising costs per unit Excluding these costs selling

general and administrative expenses as percentage
of revenue were 11.7 percent 11.0 percent and 9.4

percent
for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respecrivek Exclusive of the aforementioned one-time charges the

percentage
increase for 2007 compared to 2006 was mainly attributable to lower overhead leverage due to lower volume

levels and to higher marketing and advertising costs per unit partially offset by reduced incentive compensation expense

Selling general and administrative expense
dollars decreased $101.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 versus

the same period in 2007 and $89.3 million for the year ended December 31 2007 versus the same period in 2006

Interest which was incurred principally to finance land acquisitions
land development and home construction totaled

$46.9 million $62.0 million and $71.8 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectivek In 2008 2007 and 2006 the

homebuilding segments capitalized all interest incurred except $604000 in charges related to the reduction of commitments

for the Companys revolving credit facility in 2008 due to continued development and construction activity See Housing

Inventories within Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Homebuilding Segment
Information

The Companys homehuilding operations consist of four geographically determined regional reporting segments North

Southeast Texas and West

Conditions have continued to be most challenging in geographical areas that have previously cxpcricnccd the highest price

appreciation such as the California Chicago Florida Las \egas
Phoenix and Vashington D.C markets result of

declining affordability decreased demand and changes in buyer perception
the excess supply of housing inventory has been

greater in these areas In an attempt to maintain market share and reduce inventory
investment to better match current sales

volume leveis the Company has increased its usc of sales discounting and incentives As result it had to take additional

inventory impairment charges in many markets Of the Companies
total lots or homes with valuation adjustments during

2008 28.9 percent of total lots were impaired in the North 21.4
percent

in the Southeast 2.7 percent in TeLls and

47.0 percent
in the West

The following table provides summary of the Companys inventory and other impairments taken for the
years

ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

ii ihoiiaids

NORTH

inventor valuation adjustments

Octiou deposit
and feasibiliti cost writeoff

Joint venture and otie Impairments __________________________________________________________

Total

SOUTHEAST

inventory
valuation

adjustments

Option deposit and feasibilsiv cost write-off

joint venture and otlie Impairments
__________________________________________________________

Total

TEXAS

inventory valuation ad1ustnients

Option deposit
and feasibility cost writeofT

Joint venture and other impairments _____________________________________________________

lotal

WEST

Inventory valuation
adjustment_s

Option deposit
and feasibility cost svrite-offs

Joini venture and other5 unpairments _____________________________________________________

Total

TOTAL

Inventory
vaiuai ion adjustmetu_s

Option deposit and feasibility cost writeoffs

Joint veniure and other impairments
_____________________________________________________

Iota

Other iiiclusles
npalnhlniis so other assets

New Orders

New order dollars decreased 39.2
percent

for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 2007 New orders for 2008

decreased 29.1 percent in the North 33.4
percent in the Sotitheast 27.9 percent in Texas and 44.1 percent

in the West

New orders for 2007 decreased 16.4
percent

in the North 22.2 percent in the Southeast 27.1
percent in Texas and

4.6 percent in the West In 2008 and 2007 the decline in new orders was primarily due to softening of demand and

consumer confidence rising levels of foreclosures and overall housing inventory increasing cosnpctitlon
for diminished

number of buyers and declining commtmity counts resttlting
from

project
abandonment and low land acquisition activity

in

most markets The cancellation rate was 35.0
percent

for the year ended December 31 2008 versus 37.0
percent

and

37.1
percent

for 2007 and 2006 respectively

2008 2007 2006

99037 86957 3694

4906 27.337 3.853

35.903 71

139846 114294 7618

74813 112721 I78

5834 25.250 5.868

3390 2.073 438

84037 140044 8195

11126 2744 100

11319 775 248

227 31

22.672 3.550 348

72413 301533 57327

392 23.805 7.886

8922 15.520 40

81.727 340.858 65.253

257389 503955 62910

22.451 77.167 17.855

48442 17.624 549

328282 598.746 81.314
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The Company experiences seasonal variations in its quarterly operating
results and capital requirements Historically new

order activity is higher in the
spring

and summer months result the Company typically has more homes under

construction closes more homes and has greater revenues and operating income in the third and fourth quarters
of its

fiscal wear However historical results are not necessarily indicative of current or fliwrc homebuilding activities

The following table is summary of the Companys new orders units and aggregate
sales value for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 CHG 2007 CHG 2006

UNITS

North 1770 29.1% 2496 16.4% 2987 31.l%

Southeast 1640 33.4 2461 22.2 3.164 43.8

Texas 1701 27.9 2.359 27.1 3237 12.6

West 931 44.1 1.666 4.6 1.746 54.7

Tetal 6042 32.7% 8.982 19.39 11134 36.45

DOLLARS usdhos

North 471 38.5% 765 21.1% 970 28.4%

Southeast 403 38.4 653 29.F 921 43.2

Texas 368 25.5 494 24.3 653 3.9

West 235 54.6 518 22.2 666 55.0

Total 1477 39.2% 2.430 24.3% 3.210 37.5%

The following table provides the Companys cancellation percentages
fir the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

North 36.1% 34.8% 31.5%

Southeast 32.0 39.7 39.0

Texas 33.4 35.1 32.2

West 40.1 38.3 48.3

Tetal 35.0% 37.07 37.1%

The cancellation rate for the year ended December 31 2008 was 35.0
percent compared to 37.0 percent

and 37.1
percent

for the wears ended 2007 and 2006 respectively

C1osins

The following table provides the Companys closings and
average closing prices

for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006

2008 CHG 2007 CHG 2006 CHG

UNITS

North 2162 19.57 2687 25.4% 3.604 17.5

Southeast 2187 30.7 3.154 38.5 5126 4.9

Texas 1908 29.4 2703 23.8 3.546 5.4

West 1.095 38.3 1.775 43.0 3116 23.1

Tetal 7352 28.8% 10319 330 15.392 7.75

AVERAGE PRICE ut iheusasjt

North 281 II.6% 318 0.6% 320 3.2Yo

Southeast 253 13.4 292 0.3 293 15.4

Texas 216 2.9 210 8.8 193 9.0

West 258 23.0 335 13.0 385 8.1

Total 252 Il.6% 285 3.47 295 6.1
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Outstatdin Contracts

Outstanding contracts denote the Compaiws backlog of homes sold but not closed which are generally
built and closed

subject to cancellation over the subsequent two quarters
At December 31 2008 the Company had ourstandmg contracts

for 1559 units representing 45.7
percent

decrease from year end 2007 The $407.1 million value of outstandmg

contracts at December 31 2008 represented decrease of 48.2
percent

from December 31 2007 primarily due to

32.7 percent decline in unit orders Average
sales

price
decreases resulted primarily from slowing market trcnds high

inventory
levels 1or new and resale housing and more competitive sales environment

DECEMBER 31 2008

A\ERAGE
DOLLARS PRICE

in nilljons in tbousands

DECEMBER 31 2006

AVERAGE
PRICE

iiiUNITS

DECEMBER 31 2007

AVERAGE

DOLLARS PRICE DOLLARS

ii nillwns thousands l.JNITS mi/losUNITS

North 574 161 280 966 298 307 1.157 387 334

Southeast 399 107 267 946 2.57 272 1639 526 321

Texas 469 III 238 676 155 230 1020 228 224

West 117 28 242 281 76 269 390 153 391

Ibtal 1.559 407 261 2869 736 274 4206 1294 308
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

The following summary provides results for the homehuilding segments for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

xi iheiisands

NORTH

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of saies

Earnings loss from unronsolidatsd joint ventures

Selling general and administrative expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

SOUTHEAST

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsolidated
joint

Selling general and administrative expenses

loral
expenses

Pretax
earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

TEXAS

Revenues

Expenses

Cost if sales

Earnings loss flout unconsolidated joint ventures

Selling general
and adnainistrative

expenses

lotal
expenses

Pretax earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

WEST

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earrungs loss from unciansolidated Joinisristures

Selling general and administrative
expenses

Tosal
expenses

Pretax earnings loss

Housing gross profit margins

TOTAE

Revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Earnings loss from unconsialidated joint ventures

Selling general
and administrative

expenses

Total
expenses

Pretax earnings loss

lousing gross profit margins

689.455

35448

71069

156.158 37077

I1.6% 5.9%

95449 59419

OIiji 4.7%

253.120

25.9%

89.533

16.8%

Honiebui/din Senteiif 2008 versus 2007

NorthHomehuilding revenues decreased by 25.4 percent to $639.8 millton in 2008 from $857.4 million in 2007

primarily due to 19.5
percent

decline tn the number of homes delivered and an 11.6 percent
decrease in average closing

price
Gross margins on home sales were negative

11.6
percent in 2008 compared to 5.9 percent tn 2007 This decrease

was primarily attributable to inveiltory and other valuation adjustments and writeoILs of SI 36.2 million as well as to

increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 18.6
percent in 2008 versus 13.2 percent in 2007 As result

the North region incurred $156.2 million of pretax
losses in 2008 compared to $37.1 million of pretax losses in 2007

2008 2007 2006

639814 857448 1196.335

816851

902

88.576

917.804

107895

795972 894525 1025.699

170.636

23.7%

558194 929168 1522.123

57745 886763 1.128636

28 215

76.192 101.852 140582

653643 988587 1269003

415761 571689 695356

383243 479826 564.107

289 24 104

52.635 64789 71.499

435589 544591 635502

19828 27098 59.854

8.8% 16.1% 18.5%

297862 601.889 1240106

353193 860701 1029.268

8741 612 579

50382 96159 120.726

412316 957.472 1150573

114454 355583

8.8% 33.1%

191 1631 2960194 4653920

2003342 3.034141 3639.815

43.900 342 260

250278 351376 440.702

2297520 3385.175 4.08C777

385889 42498% 573143

3.2% 0.4% 21.8%
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SoutheastHomehuilding revenues were $558.2 million in 2008 compared to $929.2 million in 2007 decrease of

39.9
percent primarily due to 30.7 percent

decline in the number of homes delivered and 13.4 percent
decrease in

average closing price Gross margins on home sales were negative
0.1 percent in 2008 compared to 4.7

percent in 2007

This decrease was primarily attributable to inventory valuation adjustments and write-offs of $69.7 million as well as to

increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 13.3
percent in 2008 versus 12.2 percent in 2007 In addition

selling general and administrative costs were 13.6
percent

of revenues in 2008 compared to 11.0
percent

in 2007 due

part to $2.8 million goodwill impairment charge As result the Southeast region incurred $95.4 million of
pretax

losses in 2008 compared to $59.4 million of pretax losses in 2007

TexasHomebuilding revenues decreased by 27.3 percent to $415.8 million in 2008 from $571.7 million in 2007

primarily due to 29.4 percent decline in the number of homes delivered partially offset by 2.9
percent

increase in

average
sales price Gross margins on home sales were 8.8 percent in 2008 compared to 16.1 percent in 2007 This

decrease was primarily attributable to the mix of product delivered during the year as well as to inventory valuation

adjustments and writc-offs of $21.9 million and to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 9.6 percent

of revenues in 2008 versus 7.4 percent
in 2007 As result the Texas

region
incurred $19.8 million of

pretax
losses in

2008 compared to $27.1 million of
pretax earnings in 2007

WestHomehuilding revenues decreased by $304.0 million or 50.5 percent to $297.9 million in 2008 compared to

$601.9 million in 2007 primarily due to 38.3 percent decline in tEe number of homes delivered and to 22.0 percent

decrease in average closing price Gross margms on home sales were negative 8.8 percent in 2008 compared to negative

33.1 percent in 2007 This change was primarily attributable to lower inventory
valuation adjustments and writeoffs that

totaled $46.7 million in 2008 compared to S260.7 million in 2007 partially offset by rise in price concessions and sales

incentives that totaled 17.3 percent
of revenues in 2008 compared to 14.7 percent in 2007 As result the Vfest

region

incurred $1 14.5 million of pre josses in 2008 compared to $355.6 million of
pretax

losses in 2007

HomehuiIdin Segnieuts
2007 versus 2006

North_Homehuilding revenues decreased by 28.3
percent

to $857.4 million in 2007 from $1.2 billion in 2006 primarily

due to 25.4 percent decline in the number of homes delivered Gross margins on home sales were 5.9 percent in 2007

compared to 23.7
percent

in 206 This decrease was primarily attributable to inventory
valuation adjustments and

writc-offs of $111.7 million as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 13.2 percent
of

revenues in 2007 versus 7.9 percent in 2006 As result the North region incurred $37.1 million of pretax losses in

2007 compared to $170.6 million of pretax earnings in 2006

SoutheastHomnebuilding revenues were $929.2 million 2007 compared to $1.5 billion in 2006 decrease of

39.0
percent primarily due to 38.5

percent
decline in the number of homes delivered Gross

margins on home sales were

4.7
percent

in 2007 compared to 25.9 percent in 2006 This decrease was primarily due to inventory valuation adjustments

and write-offs of $138.9 million as well as to increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 12.2
percent

of

revenues in 2007 versus 5.6
percent

in 2006 As result the Southeast
region

incurred $59.4 million of pretax losses in

2007 compared to $253.1 million of
pretax earnings in 2006

TexasHomehuilding revenues decreased by 17.8
percent to $571.7 million in 2007 from $695.4 million in 2006

primarily due to 23.8
percent

decline in the number of homes delivered partially offset b1 an 8.8 percent
increase in

average
sales price Gross margins on home sales decreased to 16.1 percent in 2007 compared to 18.5 percent in 2006

primarily due to the mix of product delivered during the
year as well as to inventory valuation adjustments and writeoffs

of $3.2 million and increased price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 7.4
percent

of revenues in 2007 versus

6.3 percent in 2006 As result the Texas
region generated $27.1 million of pretax earnings in 2007 compared to

$59.9 million of pretax earnings in 2006

WestHomcbuilding revenues decreased $638.2 million or 51.5
percent to $601.9 million in 2007 compared

to $1.2 billion in 2006 primarily due to 43.0 percent decline in the number of homes delivered and to 13.0

percent
decrease in average closing price

Gross
margins on home sales were negative 33.1 percent in 2007 compared

to 16.8
percent

in 2006 Gross
margins on home sales decreased in 2007 due to inventory

valuation adjustments and

write-offs of $260.7 million as well as to increased
price concessions and sales incentives that totaled 14.7 percent

of

in 2007 compared to 8.7
percent

in 2006 In addition selling general and administrative costs were 16.0 percent

of revenues in 2007 compared to 9.7 percent in 2006 due to declining leverage severance and relocation costs and

feasibility cost writeoIls As result the West
region

incurred S355.6 million of pretax
losses in 2007 compared with

$89.5 million of pretax earnings in 2006
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Financial Services

The Companys financial services
segment provides mortgage-related products and services as well as title escrow and

insurance services to its homehuyers By aligning its operations
with the Companys homehuilding segments the financial

services segment leverages
this relationship to offer its lending services to homebuyers In addition to being valuable asset

to customers the financial services segment generates profit for the Company Providing mortgage financing and other

services to its customers allows the Company to better monitor its backlog and closing process
The majority of ioans

originated arc sold within one business day of the date they close The third
parry purchaser then services and manages

the

loans assuming nearly all of the credit risk of borrower default The Company also provided construction-related insurance

to subcontractors in its western markets through june 2008 Additionally the financial services segment also offers insurance

for liability risks
specifically

homeowners structural warranty coverage arising in connection with the homebuilding

business of the Compan

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
YEAR ENIED DECEMBER 31

200$ 2007 2006
iii theusacls

except
utIts

REVENUES

Net gains on sales of mortgages 28556 31126 44.231

Origination fees 16997 25.678 39.589

Title escrow/insurance 17440 33.734 41.086

Interest and other 1500 1143 1427

TOTAL REVF.NUES 64493 91.681 126.333

EXPENSES 41.466 50.754 58638

PRETAX EARNINGS 23027 40927 67695

Originations
5634 7.653 1.744

Ryland Homes
origination capture

rate 82.2% 78.8% 81.906

Mortgagebacked securities and notes receivable average balance 370 446 1.707

In 2008 RMCs
morigage origination operations

consisted primarily ol
mortgage

loans originated in connection with the

sale of the Companys homes The number of
mortgage originations was 5634 for 2008 compared to 7653 for 2007 and

11744 for 2006 During 2008 total dollar originations were $1.3 billion of which 99.6
percent was for purchases of

homes built by the Company and the
remaining amount was for either purchases of homes built by others purchases of

existing homes or refinancing of existing mortgage loans The capture rate of
mortgages originated for customers of the

Companys homehuilding operations was 82.2
percent in 2008 compared to 78.8 percent in 2007 and 81.9

percent in

2006

The financial services segment reported pretax earnings
of $23.0 million for 2008 compared to $40.9 million for 2007

and $67.7 million for 2006 The decrease in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily attributable to 26.4
percent

decline

in the number of
mortgages originated due to slowdown in the homehuilding markets 10.1 percent decrease in average

loan size and $2.5 million decline in sales of its insurance renewal rights in 2008 compared to 2007 partially
offset by

the recognition
of $1.7 million gain related to the 2008 implementation

of Staff Accounting Bulletin No 109

SAB 109 \Vritten Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings which requires that servicing rights

related to interest rate lock commitments be recorded at fair value The decrease in 2007 compared to 2006 was ptiniarilv

attributable to 34.8
percent

decline in the number of mortgages originated due to slowdown in the homehuilding

markets decline in the availability of
mortgage products and .8 percent decrease in loan size partially offset by

$4.4 million gain on the sale of the segments insurance renewal rights in 2007

Revenues for the financial services segment declined 29.7 percent to $64.5 million for 2008 compared to $91.7 million for

2007 The decrease was primarily
attributable to 26.4

percent
decline in the number of

mortgages originated and sold

due to slowdown in the homehuilding markets and to the midyear cessation of the subcontractor insurance program
In

2007 revenues for the financial services segment declined 27.4 percent to $91.7 million from S126.3 million in 2006 The

decrease in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily
attributable to 34.8

percent
decline in the number of

mortgages

originated and sold due to slowdown in the homebuilding markets
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General and administrative
expenses

decreased to $41.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from $50.8 million

for the year ended December 31 2007 primarily due to personnel reductions made in an effort to align overhead with

lower production volumes and lower reserves for the subcontractor insurance program
that was terminated midyear partially

offset by an increase of $3.7 million in indemnification expense
General and administrative expenses

decreased for the year

ended December 31 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to personnel reductions made in an effort to align overhead

with lower production volumes partially offset by an increase of $1.6 million in mortgage
indemnification

expense

In 2007 increased delinquencies of primarily subprime mortgages in secondary markets resulted in significant decrease

in the availability of these
mortgage products During 2008 RMC did not originate mortgage

loans that would he

classified as subprime or Alt-A All of rise
mortgage

loans originated by RMC during the year were either government

or prime mortgage
loans Prime

mortgage
loans arc generally defined as agency loans FNMA/FHLMC and any

nonconforming loans that would otherwise meet agency criteria Generally they are borrowers with FICO scores that exceed

620 Approximately 86 percent
of the

mortgage
loans originated by RMC during 2008 were sold to Countrywide Financial

Corporation Cotmtrywide pursuant to their loan purchase agreement
with the Company The remaining loans were sold

to investors such as U.S Bank Corporation CitiMortgage \Vells Fargo and Freddie Mac or to specialized state bond loan

programs Except in rare circumstances RMC is not required to repurchase mortgage
loans Generally the Company is

required to indemnify Countrywide or another investor to which mortgage
loans are sold if there are losses due to

origination errors caused by RMC when it is shown that there has been undiscovered fraud on the
part

of the borrower or

if the borrower does not make his first payment The Company paid $3.2 million and $375000 in indemnification expense

during 2008 and 2007 respectivcly and held reserves of $5.4 million and $2.7 million for future losses as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 respcctively

Corporate

Corporate expenses were $42.3 million for 2008 $35.6 million fir 2007 and $66.0 million for 2006 Corporate expenses

for 2008 compared to 2007 increased primarily due to $5.7 million rise in losses within the market value of investments

included in the Companys benefit plans Corporate expenses
for 2007 compared to 2006 declined primarily due to lower

incentive
compensaiion expense that resulted from declining earnings

and stock price

In 2008 the Company recorded an expense of approximately S604000 that was associated with the reduction of

consmitments for its revolving credit facility
In 2007 the Company recorded an aggregate expense

of approximately

$490000 that was associated with the early redemption of $100.0 million of its 5.4
percent

senior notes due June 2008

The Company redeemed $75.0 million and $25.0 million at stated call prices of 100.2 percent and 100.8
percent

of the

principal amount of the notes in August and December of 2007 respectively In 2006 the Company recorded an expense

of $7.7 million that was associated with the
early redemption

of $150.0 million of its 9.1
percent

senior subordinated

notes due June 2011 of which it owned $6.5 million at stated call price of 104.6 percent
of the principal amount

Invesmients in Joint Ventures

Ar December 31 2008 the Company participated in six active joint ventures in the Austin Chicago Dallas Denver and

Orlando markets These joint ventures exist for the purpose of acquisition and co-development of land parcels and lots

which are then sold to the Company its joint venture partners or others at market prices Depending on the number of

joint ventures and the level of activity in the entities annual earnings
from the Companys investment in joint ventures will

var significantly The Companys investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $12.5 million at December 31

2008 compared to $30.8 million at December 31 2007 The Companys equity in losses from tmconsolidated Joint

ventures in 2008 totaled 43.9 million compared to earnings of $342000 in 2007 and losses of 8260.000 in 2006 Sec

Investments in Joint Ventures within Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesfl

Income Taxes

The Companys provision for income tax presented an effective mcone tax benefit rate of 2.3 percent
for the

year
ended

December 31 2008 compared to an effective income tax benefit rate of 20.6 percent
for the same period in 2007 and an

effective income tax provision rate of 36.5 percent
for the same period in 2006 The decrease in the effective tax rate for

2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to noncash tax charges in 2008 totaling 143.8 million for the Companys

valuation allowance related to its deferred tax assets The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2007 compared to 2006 was

primarily due to noncash tax charge
of S75.2 million for valuation allowance related to the Companys deferred tax

assets in accordance with SEAS 109 and to the impact of lower pretax earnings
for the year See Note Income

Taxcs
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

The Company has historically ftmnded its homebuilding and financial services operations with cash flows from operating

activities borrowings under its revolving credit facilities and the issuance of new debt securities In light of market

conditions in 2008 the Company continued its efforts toward generating cash reducing debt levels and strengthening its

balance sheet by selling excess or marginal land inventory monetizing tax losses paying off maturing senior note

terminating or renegotiating land
option contracts consolidating or exiting tmderperforming markets and downsizing and

restructuring operating grotips .As result of this
strategyi

the Company lowered its total debt in 2008 by S48.7 million

ending the year with $423.3 million in cash and cash equivalents and $160.7 million in current taxes receivable

NET

STOCK IOLDERS DEBT-TO-CAPITAL

rn nilliesi EQUITY DEBT R.VF1O

2006 1.511 950 32.7%

2007 1125 839 34.6%

2008 725 790 33.6%

At December 31 2008 the Companys net debt-to-capital ratio was 33.6 percent decrease from 34.6
percent at

December 31 2007 This decrease was primarily due to debt repayments in 2008 and an increase in cash The Company

remains focused oii maintaining its liquidity so that it can be flexible in reacting to changing market conditions

The following table summarizes the Companys cash flow activities for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

ii ihoasadsl 2008 2007 2006

Operating activities
248426 228.140 14637

Investing
activities 9826 3I.397 51.589

Financing activities 58955 168166 209.394

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

79645 28.577 246.346

During 2008 the Company generated $248.4 million of cash from its operations
The Company invested $9.9 million in

property plant and equipment and used $59.0 million in financing activities including debt repayments
of $70.8 million

and dividends of $20.5 million partially offset by borrowings of $22.1 million from credit facilities The net cash flow

generated during the year ended December 31 2008 was $179.6 million

During 2007 the Company generated $228.1 million of cash Irons its
operations

The Company invested $32.1 million in

property plant and equipment and used $168.2 million in financing activities including debt
repayments

of $111.0 million

stock repurchases of $59.3 million and dividends of $20.4 million The net cash flow generated during the year ended

December 31 2007 was $28.6 million

During 2006 the Company generated $14.6 million of cash from its operations The Company invested $53.8 million in

property plant and equipment and used S209.4 million in financing activities including net debt proceeds of $28.1 million

outflows for stock repurchases of $250.1 million and dividends of $21.7 million The net cash used during the year ended

December 31 2006 was $246.3 million

During the fourth
quarter

of 2008 the Board of Directors approved reduction of the Companys common stock dividend

by 75.0 percent to $0.03 per share from $0.12 per
share in the previous quarters Dividends declared totaled $0.39 $0.48

and $0.48 per
share for the annual periods ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Consolidated inventories owned by the Company decreased by 37.8 percent to $1.1 billion at December 31 2008 from

$1.7 billion at December 31 2007 The Company attemnprs to maintain prolected four- to five-year supply of land At

December 31 2008 it controlled 23555 lots with 19239 lots owned and 4316 lots or 18.3 percent under option
As

result of its efforts to match controlled inventor with current unit volume levels lots controlled declined by 41.0
percent

at December 31 2008 compared to 39900 lots under control at December 31 2007 See Housing Inventories within

Note Summary of Significant .Accounmmg Policies The Company continues to evaluate its option contracts for

changes in the
viability

of communities and abandonment potential In an efforr to increase liquidity models have been sold

and leased back on selective basis for generally to 18 months The Company owned $6.5 percent and 76.1
percent

of

its model homes at December 31 2008 and 2c07 respectivelt
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The homehuilding segments borrowings include senior notes an unsecured revolving credit facility and nonrecourse secured

notes payable

Senior Notes

Senior notes outstanding totaled $746.0 million and $800.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively During

2008 the Companys $50.0 million of 5.4 percent
senior notes matured and were repaid and the Company repurchased

$4.0 million of irs 5.4
percent senior notes due january 2015 See Note Debt

During the first quarter
of 2009 the Company repurchased $47.6 million of its senior notes for $35.9 million in the

open

marker See Note Subsequent Events

The Company redeemed S75.0 million and $25.0 million of its 5.4 percent senior notes due June 2008 in August and

December 2007 respectively The redemption prices were 100.2
percent

and 100.8
percent

of the principal amount of the

notes outstanding respectively plus accrued interest as of the redemption dates The Company recognized an aggregate
loss

of approximately $490000 related to the early retirement of these notes in 2007

The $250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012 the $250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due June

2013 and the S246.0 million of 54
percent

senior notes due January 2015 are subject to certain covenants that include

among other things restrictions on additional secured debt and the sale of assets At December 31 2008 the Company

was in compliance
with these covenants

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In February and June of 2008 the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit facility The credit
filcility is used for

general corporate purposes
and contains affirmative negative and financial covenants including minimum consolidated

tangible net worth requirement permitted leverage ratio and limitations on unsold home units unsold land lot inventory

investments and senior debt The amendments included among other things decrease in the Companys borrowing

availability from $750.0 million to $550.0 million reduction in the base amount for the minimum consolidated

tangible net worth covenant an increase in the pricing grid which is based on the Companys leverage ratio and public

debt raring an adjustment in the permitted leverage ratio to no less than 55.0
percent

fbr the fourth quarter of 2008

and the first quarter of 2009 52.5 percent
for the second third and fourth quarters of 2009 and 50.0 percent thereafter

an increase in the borrowing base by adding restricted cash up to $300.0 million change in the definition of

material indebtedness to $20.0 million and change in the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to

I.15x its consolidated tangible net worth

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement çthe Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Agent and the lenders listed therem which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys horrowmg availability

from $550.0 million to $200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant default limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to be no inure than 55.0
percent agreed to establish cerram

liquidity reserve accounts in the event the Company fails to sarisf an interest coverage test and an adjusted cash flow from

operations to interest incurred test changed the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to .20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing
base to allow for 1000

percent use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less
any

drawn balances on the revolving credit facility established requirement
fot the Company to

cash collateralize
pro

rata share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and
swing

line exposure established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit of $10.0 million and increased the pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage ratio and public debt raring as well as the interest coverage ratio The credit
facilitys maturity date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million subject to the

availability
of additional lending commitments The revolving credit facility

includes $75.0 million swing-line facility and

the ability to issue standby letters of credit Amounts borrowed under the credit
agreement

are guaranteed on joint and

several basis by substantially all of the Companys IOU percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries Such
gtiarantees are full

and unconditional Interest rates on outstanding borrowings under the amended
facility are determined either by reference to

LIBOR or an alternative base rate with
margins

determined based on changes in the Companys leverage ratio and credit

ratings plus if the Companys interest coverage ratio is less than 2.0 to 1.0 an interest premium is determined based on

changes in the Companys interest coverage ratio The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit
facility to finance
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increases in its homehuilding inventory
and working capital when necessary çSee Note Debt and Note Subsequent

Events

There were no borrowings outstanding under the facility at December 31 2008 or 2007 Under the facility
the Company

had lettets of credit outstanding that totaled $95.7 million and $157.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Unused borrowing capacity under the facility as then in effect totaled $454.3 million and $592.2 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2008 the $550.0 million facility then in effect was subject

to borrowing base limitation covenant that restricted its borrowing capacity to $338.1 million of which $242.4 million

was available The Company was in compliance with its covenants at December 31 2008 The reduction in the tevolving

credit
facilitys

commitments during 2008 resulted in an expense
of $604000 which represented write-off of

pro rara

portion
of unamortized debt costs and is included within Expenses related to early retirement of debt in the Consolidated

Statement of Earnings See Note Debt

Nonrecourse Secured Notes Payable

To finance its land purchases
the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes payable At

December 31 2008 such notes payable outstanding amounted to $22.3 million compared to $39.1 million at

December 31 2007

Finance Subsidiaries

In January 2008 RMC entered into mortgage warehouse line of credit
agreement

with Guaranty Bank the RMC Credit

Agreement The RMC Credit Agreement
matured in January 2009 and provided for borrowings up to $40.0 million to

fund RMCs mortgage
loan origination operations

It was secured by underlying mortgage
loans and by other assets of

RMC Facility balances were repaid as loans funded under the agreement were sold to third
parties

The RMC Credit

Agreements interest rate was set at LIBOR plus 0.9
percent

with commitment fee of 0.125
percent on the unused

portion
of the

facility
The RMC Credit Agreement contained representations warranties covenants and tOViSiOfl5 defining

events of default The covenants reqtmired
RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios The

Company was in compliance
with these covenants and outstanding borrowings against

this credit facility totaled

$22.1 million at December 31 2008

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facility $60.0 million repurchase facility
with Guaranty Bank

and Buyers The facility became effective January 15 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired in January

2009 The agreement contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margin
of 1.75 percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0 percent
The

facility
contains representations warranties covenants and provisions defming events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios See Note Subsequent Events

Other

On February 2009 the Company filed shelf registration
with the SEC The registration statement provides that

securities may be offered from time to time in one or more series and in the form of senior subordinated or convertible

debt preferred stock preferred stock represented by depository shares common stock stock purchase contracts stock

purchase units and warrants to purchase both debt and equity securities The Companys previous shelf registration

statement expired in 2008
pursuant

to the provisions
of the SECs Securities Offering Reform As of the date of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K the Company has not issued any securities under its shelf registration statement In the

ftiture the Company intends to contintie to maintain effective shelf
registration

statements that will facilitate access to the

capital markets The timing and amount of future offerings if any wiii depend on market and general btisiness conditions

See Note Subsequent Events

During 2008 the Company did not repurchase any shares of its otitstanding commnon stock The Company had

existing authorization from its Board of Directors to purchase approximately
8.1 million additional shares at cost of

$142.3 million based on the Companys stock price at December 31 2008 Outstanding shares were 42754467 and

42151085 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively an increase of 1.4
percent
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The following table provides summary of the Companys contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments at

December 31 2008 and the effect such obligations arc expected to have on its future liquidity and cash flow

CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

AFTER

2013
thcavrnds

TOTAL 2009 20102011 20122013

Debt
principal

maturities 790399 32716 11683 500000 246000

Interest on debt 201865 43848 87695 56549 13.773

Operating leases 35650 9.594 15793 5916 4347

.and
opt on contracts1 5659 5659

Total at December 31 2008 1033573 91817 115171 562465 264120

.kqtresents
oh

gatios
nuder

optioti
osraw with .tpecye perfrmance provsuons

tot of cash deposits

\Vhile the Company expects challenging economic conditions to continue it is ficuscd on managing overhead lmd

acquisitions development and construction
activity

in order to generate cash ulow and maintain debt levels commensurate

with its business Absent more severe deterioration in market conditions the Company believes that it will be able to

continue to fund its homebuilding and financial services operations plus any
future cash needs including debt maturities

through its existing cash resources for the foreseeable future

OffBalance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into land and lot option purchase contracts in order to procure

land or lots for the construction of homes Land and lot option purchase contracts enable the Company to control

significant lot positions with nainirnal capital investment thereby reducmg
the risks associated with land ownership and

development Ar December 31 2008 the Company had $31.0 million in cash deposits and letters of credit to purchase

land and lots with an aggregate purchase price
of $276.5 million Only S5.7 million of the $276.5 million in land and lot

option purchase contracts contain specific performance provisions Additionally the Company liability
is generally limited

to forfeiture of the nonrefundabic deposits letters of credit and other nonrefundable amounts incurred

Pursuant to Interpretation
No 46 FIN 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities as amended the Company

consolidated $15.2 million of inventory nor owned at December 31 2008 of which $14.4 million perramed to land and

lot option purchase contracts representing
the fair value of the optioned property

and $799000 pertained to one of its

homebuilding joint ventures See Vxriable Interest Entities and Investments in Joint \Antures within Note Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies

Ar December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had outstanding letters of crcdit under irs revolving credit facility

totaling $95.7 million and $157.8 million respecrively Additionally it had development or performance bonds totaling

$199.0 million at December 31 2008 issued by third parties to secure performance tmder various contracts and

obligations relating to land or municipal improvements compared to $313.2 million at December 31 2007 The Company

expects
that the obligations secured by

these letters of credit and performance bonds will generally he satisfied in the

ordinary course of business and in accordance with applicable contractual terms To the extent that the obligations are

fulfilled the related letters of credit and performance
bonds will be released and the Company wiii nor have

any continuing

obligations

The Companu has no material thirdparty guarantees other than those associated with its revolving credit facility senior

notes and investments in joint ventures Sec Investments in Joint Ventures within Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies and Note Supplemental Guarantor Information

Critical Accounting
Policies

Preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements requires the use of judgment in the application of

accounting policies and estimates of inherently uncertain matters Listed below are those policies that management
believes

are critical and require the use of complex judgment in their application

Management has discussed the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of its Board Directors and the

Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure There are items within the financial statements that require estimation hut arc

not considered critical
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Use of Estimates

In budgeting land acquisitions development and homehuilding construction costs associated with real estate projects the

Company evaluates market conditions material and labor costs buyer preferences construction timing and provisions for

insurance and warranty obligations
The Company accrues its best estimate of the probable cost for resolution of legal

claims Estimates which are based on historical experience and other
assumptions are reviewed continually updated when

necessary and believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Management
believes that the toning and scope of its

evaluation procedures are proper
and adequate Changes in assumptions relating to such factors however could have

material effect on the Companys results of
operations

for particular quarterly or annual period

Income Recognition

In accordance with SFAS 66 revenues and cost of sales are recorded at the time each home or lot is closed title and

possession are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing
involvement from the homebuilder In order

to march revenues with related expenses land land development interest taxes and other related costs both incurred and

estimated to be incurred in the ftiture are allocated to the cost of homes closed based upon
the relative sales value basis of

the total number of homes to he constructed in each
community

in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 67 SEAS 67 Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects Estimated

land common area development and related costs of planned communities including the cost of amenities are allocated

to individual parcels or communities on relative sales value basis Changes to estimated Costs subsequent to the

commencement of the delivery of homes are allocated to the remaining undelivered homes in the community Home

Construction and related costs are charged to the cost of homes closed under the specific-identification
method

Inventory Valuation

Housing projects and land held for development inventory and sale are stated at either the lower oi cost or net realizable

value lnventor includes land and development costs direct construction Costs capitalized indirect construction costs

capitalized interest and real estate taxes It may take one to three
years

to develop
sell and deliver all of the homes in

typical Community The Company assesses these assets for recoverability in accordance with the provisions
of SEAS 144

SEAS 144 requires that long-lived assets and assets held-for-sale be reviewed fur impairment
whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of housing inventories is

measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by

that asset or by the sales of comparable assets Assets held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less cost to

sell These evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates of revenues costs and expenses as well as by

other factors In addition land or costs related to future communities whether owned or under
option are reviewed to

determine if the Company will proceed with development and if all related costs are recoverable If these assets are

considered to be impaired the impairment
loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets

exceeds the fair value of the assets and is recognized within the same period that it is identified Management
believes its

processes are designed to properly assess the market and
carrying

values of assets

Warranty Reserves

The Companys homes are sold with limited third-parry warranties Warranty reserves are established as homes close on

house-by-house basis in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during

warranty periods Certain factors are considered in determining
the reserves including the historical range of amounts paid

per house experience with respect to similar home designs and geographical areas the historical amount paid as

percentage
of home construction costs any warranty expenditures not considered to be normal and recurring and

conditions that may affect certain subdivisions Improvements in quality control and construction techniques expected to

impact future warranty expenditures ate also considered Accordingly the
process

of determining the Companys warranty

reserves balance necessarily requites estimates associated with various assumptions each of which can positively or negatively

impact this balance

Generally warrants reserves are reviewed monthly to determine the reasonableness and adequacy of both the
aggregate

reserve and the
per

unit reserve amount originally included in home cost of sales as well as the
timing

of
any

reversals of

the original reserve General warranty reserves not utilized for particular
hotise are evaluated for reasonableness in the

aggregate on both market-by-market and consolidated basis Warranty payments
for an individual house may exceed

the related reserve Payments in excess of the resetve are evaluated in the
aggregate to determine if an adjustment to

the warrant reserve should be recorded which could result in corresponding ad1ustment to home cost of sales
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The Company continues to evaluate the adequacy of its warranty reserves and believes that its existing estimation tOCCSS

is materially accurate Because the Companys warranty reserves can be impacted by significant number of flictors it is

possible that changes to the Companys assumptions
could have niatetial impact on its warranty reserve balances

Variable Interest Entities VIE
FIN 46 requires VIE to be eonsolidated by company if that company is subject to majority of the risk of ioss from

the VIEs activities and/ot entitled to receive majority
of the VIEs residual teturns FIN 46 also

requires
disclosure about

\TIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in which it has significant though not
primary

variable

interest The Company enters into oinr ventures from time to time for the
purpose

of acquisition and co-development of

land parcels and lots Its investment in these joint ventures may crcste variable interest in VIE depending on the

contractual terms of the arrangement Additionally in the ordinary course of business the Company enters into lot
option

purchase contracts in order to procure land for the construction of homes Under such lot option purchase contracts the

Company funds stated deposits in consideration for the
rigl1t

to purchase lots at future point in time usually at

predetermined prices In accordance with the
requirements

of FIN 46 certain of the Companys lot
option purchase

contracts may
result in the creation of variable interest in VIE The Company believes the accounting

for joint ventures

and land option purchase contracts using the variable interest consolidation methodology is critical accounting policy

because compliance with FIN 46 requires the use of complex judgment in its application

Income Taxes

The Compaiw calculates provision for its income taxes by using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recognized by identifying the temporary
differences

arising
from the different treatment of items for

tax and accounting purposes The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets on quarterly basis to determine whether

valuation allowance is required In accordance with SEAS 109 the Company assesses whether valuation allowance should

be established based on its determination of whether it is more likely
thai not that some portion or all of the deferred tax

assets will not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends primarily on the generation
of future

taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible Judgment is required in

determining the future tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Companys consolidated financial

statements and/or tax returns Differences between the amounts recognized in its financial statements and/or tax returns

and actual outcomes may arise upon issuance of regulations and final guidance from federal and state taxing authorities

These differences could have material
impact on the Companys consolidated results of

operations or financial position

Share-Based Payments

Effective January 2006 the Company follows the
provisions

of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R

SPAS I23R ShareBased Payment which requires
that

compensation expense
be measured and recognized at an

amount equal to the fair value of share-based
payments granted under compensation arrangenients

The Company calculates

the fair value of stock options by using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing
model The determusation of the fair value

of share-based awards at the
grant

date
requires judgment in developing assumptions

which involve number of variables

These variables include but are not limited to expected stock-price volatility over the term of the awards expected dividend

yield and expected stock option
exercise behavior Additionall judgment is also required in estimating the number of share-

based awards that are expected to forfeit If actual results differ significantly from these estimates stock-based compensation

expense
and the Companys consolidated results of

operations
could he materially impacted The Company believes the

accounting
for stock-based compensation is critical accounting policy because it requires the use of complex judgment in

its application

Outlook

In 2008 the Company experienced decline in sales orders for new homes compared to the same period last year due to

severe economic conditions and broader market trends that contributed to soft demand for residential housing as we11 as to

lower number of active communities resulting from Company initiatives to react to such trends Nearly all markets have

been affected by reductions in the affordability of homes the availability of
mortgage products and consumer demand for

homes leading to persistent high levels of new and resale home inventories The Company is prepared for prices and

margins to remain under pressure
for an extended period of time knowing that additional volume declines inventory

impairments and land option contract abandonment could result though potentially less in magnitude At December 31

2008 the Company backlog of orders for new homes totaled 1559 units or projected dollar value of S407.I million

reflecting 48.2 percent decrease in dollar value from December 31 2007 Recent activity by the federal government

designed to stimulate the economy could improve demand hut the Company is unable to predict when or whether this will

occur As long as the imbalance of housing supply and demand continues the Company will not only remain focused on its
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liquidity and balance sheet while seeking to optimize its operating performance
but also on positioning itself for return

to more favorable economic environment

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disdosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Summary
The following table provides information about the Companys significant financial instruments that are sensitive to changes

in interest rates For debt obligations
the table

presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by

expected maturity dates For other financial instruments weighted-average rates are based on implied forward rates as of the

reporting
date

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Principal Amount by Expected Maturity

FAIR

TI IERE- VALUE

thaasandi 2009 20102012 2013 AFTER TOTAL 12/31/2008

Senior notes fixed rate 250000 250000 246000 746000 559851

Average interest isle 5.4% 6.9% 54% 5.9% 5.9/h

Other financial instruments

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments

Nmional amount 88824 88824 2175

Aeerage
merest rate 5.6% 5.6%

lorwarddeliverv contracts

Notional amount 103435 103.435 1.400

Average
interest rate 54t9 54%

Options on futures contracts

Notional amount 9000 9000 121

Investor finaricitig comriirtnents çoption.il

Notional amount 1489 1489 19

Interest rate risk is primary market risk fscing the Company Interest rate risk arises principally in the Companys financial

services segment
and also in respect to the hoinehuilding segments revolving credit facility

The Company enters into

forward-delivery contracts and may at times use other hedging contracts to
mitigate

its exposure to movements in interest

rates on mortgage
interest rate lock commitments IRLCs In managing interest rate risk the Company does not

speculate on the direction of interest rates See Note Derivative Inurruments
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

REVENUES

Ilomebuilding

Financial services

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES

Cost of Sales

Earnings
loss from unconsolidated

joint
ventures

Selling general
atad administrative

Financial services

Corporate

Expenses
related to early

retirement of debt

TOTAL EXPENSES

EARNINGS LOSS
Earnings loss before taxes

Tax
expense benefit

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

1911631 2960194 4653.920

64493 91681 126333

47802531976124 3051875

2003342 3034141 3639.815

43900 342 260

250278 351376 440.702

41466 50754 58.638

42298 35.554 66035

604 490 7.695

2381888 3.471973 4213145

405764 420.098 567108

9179 86572 207.166

396585 333526 359942

it honsatds
except

share data

NET EARNINGS LOSS

NET EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic 9.33 7.92 8.14

Diluted 9.33 7.92 7.83

AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING

Basic
42496796 42.136.315 44.228.502

1iluted 42496796 421363l 45944.448

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE 0.39 048 0.48

.cec Notec to Cixtsoldated Financial Siaietncitc
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31

iii thousands except
share data

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Housing inventories

Homes tinder construction

Land under development and improved lots

Inventory heldlorsale

Consolidated inventory not owned

Total housing ssntones

Property plant
and equipment

Current taxes receivable

Net deErred taxes

Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued arid oilier liabilities

Debt

TOTAL UABILITIES

MINORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Pretirred stock 81.00
par

value

Authorized 10001 shares Series lttnior

Participating ltreferred none otttstandtng

Common stock 1.00
par

value

Aurhoriedl99990000 shares

lsstied42754467 shares at December 31 2008

42.151.085 shares at December 31 2007

Retouned earnings

Accumulated other
comprehensire

income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See Notes to consolidated Finaiicial Siaietienrt

2008 2007

1096317 1813677

41558 75.538

160681 9141

158065

141173 251.285

1862988 2551320

73464 114050

259947 40454.8

790399 839080

1123810 135767.8

13816 6891

42754 42151

679317 1078.521

3291 4054

725362 1124726

1.862988 2.551.320

423259 243.614

464810

547.318

68971

15218

717.992

94i 726

69225

76.734
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

ACCUMULaVFEI
OTHER

COMMON RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
STOCK EARNINGS INc

TOTAL
STOCKI IOLDERS

EQUITY
it thotisaeids cxcnpt

share data

BALANCE AT IANUARY 2006 4-6.368 1326689 2.964 1376.021

Comprehensive income

Net
earnings

359942 359942

Oilier
comprehensive income net of tax

Change in net unrealized
gain on cash flow

hedging

instruments and mortgagehacked securities net of taxes

of 51154
1.863 1.863

Total comprehensive income
361803

Common stock dividends per share 5048 21214 21.2 14

Repurchase of common stock 4700 245.418 250.118

Stockbased
cotupetisatton

and rclited income tax benefit 944 43728 44672

BALANCE AT DECEIvIBER 31 2006 42612 1.463.727 4.827 1.511.166

Contprehenstve income loss

Net
earnings loss 333.526 333526

Other contpcehensive income loss net of lax

Change in net unrealized
gait on cash flow hedging

instruments and availableforsale securities net of taxes

of S479 773 773

festal
comprehensive

income loss 33429

Common stock dividends per share .S0.48 20286 20.286

Repurchase
of common stock 1265 58016 39.281

Stock-based compensation
and related income tax benefit 804 26622 27426

BALANCE .AT DECEMBER 31 2007 42151 1078521 4.054 1.124726

Comprehensive income loss

Net
earnings loss 396585 396585

Other contpreltensivc income loss net of tax

Change in net unrealized
gain

on cash flow
hedging

instruments and availableforsale securities net of taxes

S473 763 763

Total comprehensive income loss 397348

Common stock dividends
per

slmare S0.39 16719 16719
Stock-based

conmpemtsatioit
and related income tax benefit 603 14100 14703

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 2008 42754 679317 3291 725362

See Ivotes Is consolidated Iinancial .Statenmemiis
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

iii thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
and amortization

Stockbased compensation expense

Inventors and other asset impairments and svriteoffi

Deferred tax valuation allowance

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in itivenrones

Net
change

in other assets payablcs
and other liabilities

Excess tax benefits from stockbased compensation

Other
operating

activities net

Net cash
provided

he
operating

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTiVITIES

Additions to property plant
and equipment

Other
investing activities net

Net cash tised for
Investing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash
proceeds

of
long-terni

debt

Repaynient
of longterm debt

Net borrowings against resolving
credit f3cilities

Decrease increasc in shortterto borrowings

Common stock dividends

Ciintnon stock ri-purchases

Issuance of coninion stock tinder stock-based
conipcnsatton

Excess tax benefits from stockbased compensation

Net cash used for financuig activities

Net incre.tse decrease in cash and cash
eqttivalents

Cash and cash
eqtttvalents at begitinitig

of period

YEAR ENDEI DECEMBER 31

2008 2007 2006

396.585 333526 359942

52215

9048

325480

143784

383237

239388

3.138

26227

S4.494

12257

583.363

75.166

273355

412.984

6714
17271

46731

25593

$1314

263444

217.488

14.632

3379

248.426 228140 14637

9.866 32147 53.839

40 7Sf 2.250

9826 31397 51589

250000

54000 100.000 243.500

22125

16.806 11037 21647

20510 20.36S 21.666

250.11$

7098 15803 19611

3138 6714 14632

58955 168166 209394

179645 2S577 246.346

243614 215037 461383

423259 243614 215037CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid fbr interest net of
capitalized interest

76 1097 1295

Cash
paid reftinds received

for income i.txvs 20111 25569 258205

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES

Decrease increase in consuIidated inventors not owned related to land
optiotis 54283 104.415 9139

See js.tes Jo Congo idatec Fiitastcia/ Siatentettis
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis cf
Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Rvland Group Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the 2008 presentation

Use of
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes Actual results could differ from these estimates

Jash and cash
Eqiiva1rnts

At December 31 2008 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $423.3 million of which $30.0 million was

restricted The Company considers all highly liquid short-term investments and cash held in escrow to he cash equivalents

Cash equivalents
totaled $364.6 million and 8193.6 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Per Share Data

Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weightedaverage number of common

shares outstanding Additionally diluted net earnmgs per common share
give

efict to dilutive common stock equivalent

shares For the wears ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the effect of outstanding restricted stock units and stock
options

was not included in the diluted earnings per
share calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive due to the

Companys net loss for the year

StockBased Compensation

Effective January
2006 the Company complies

with the lair value
recognition provisions of SEAS 123R by using the

modified-prospective transition method Under that transition method compensation cost recognized in 2008 2007 and

2006 includes compensation cost br all sharebased payments granted prior to January 2006 but not ci vested

based on the grant-date fur value estimated in accordance with the original provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 123 SPAS 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Cornpcnsation and compensation cost for all share-

based payments granted subsequent to lanuary 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the

provisions of SPAS 123R

iJoniebui1dint
Revenues

In accordance with SLkS 66 homehuilding revenues are recognized when home and lot sales are closed title and
possession

are transferred to the buyer and there is no significant continuing involvement from the homebudder Sales incentives offset

and are expensed when homes are closed

Iosisin Inventories

Housing inventories consist principally of homes under construction land under development and improved lots and

inventory
held-for-salc Inventory includes land and development costs direct construction costs capitalized indirect

construction costs capitalized interest and real estate taxes The costs of acquiring and developing land and constructing

certain related amenities arc allocated to the parcels to which these Costs relate Interest and taws are capitalized during

active development and construction Inventories to be held and used are stated at cost unless
community is determined

to be impaired in which case the impaired inventories are written down to fair value Inventories held-for-sale are stated at

the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell Long-lived assets are reviewed for
impairment

whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not he recoverable Recoverability of these assets is

measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future smdiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by

that asset or by the sales of comparable assets For inventory held and used undiscounted cash flow pro3ections are

generated at community level based on estimates of revenues costs and other factors The Companys analysis of these

communities generally assumes current revenues equal to current sales orders for particular or comparable communities The

Companys determination of fair value is primarily based on discounting estimated cash flows at rate commensurate with

inherent risks that are associated with assets and related estimated cash flow streams vVhen determining the value of

inventory held-for-sale the Company considers recent offers comparable sales and/or estimated cash flows Inventories to

be held and used or disposed of are reported net of valuation reserves sVrite-downs of unpaired Inventories to fair value are

recorded as adjustments to the cost basis of the respective Inventory
\4iluation reserves related to impaired Inventories

amounted to $445.2 million and $488.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectivcl The net carrying values of
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the related inventories amounted to $378.6 million and S388.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectlvely

Inventory costs include direct costs of land and land development material acquisition and home construction expenses

The costs of acquiring arid developing land and constructing
certain related amenities are allocated to the parcels to which

these costs relate Interest and taxes are capitalized during thc land development and construction stages

The following table is summary of capitalized interest

thnusands
2008 2007

interest at january
119267 98.932

Interest capitalized
46889 62024

Interest amortized to cost of saks 61146 41689

Capitalized
interest at December 31

105010 119.267

The following table summarizes each reporting segments total number of lots owned and lots controlled under
option

agreements
DECEMBER 31 2008 DECEMBER 31 2007

LOTS LOTS LOTS LOTS

OWNED OPTIONED TOTAL OWNEI OPTIONFI TOTAl

North 4381 2755 7136 5999 5787 11786

Southeast 7969 749 8718 9957 3192 13149

Tesas 4.833 440 5.273 5784 3.434 9.218

West 2056 372 2428 4907 840 5.747

Total 19.239 4316 23555 26.647 13.253 39.900

Eiriable interest Enlities

FIN 46 requires
VIE to he consolidated by company if that company is subject to majority of the risk of loss from

the VIEs activities and/or entitled to receive majority of the VIEs residual returns FIN 46 also requires disclosures

about VIEs that the Company is not obligated to consolidate but in which it has significant though not primar variable

interest

The Company enters into joint ventures froni time to time for the purpose
of acquisition and co-development

of land

parcels and lots its investment in these joint ventures may create variable interest In VIE depending on the contractual

terms of the arrangement Additionally in the ordinary course of business the Company enters into lot option purchase

contracts in order to procure
land for the construction of homes Under such lot option purchase contracts the Company

funds stated deposits in consideration 6r the right to purchase lots at future
point in time usually at predetermined

prices In accordance with the requirements of FIN 46 certain of the Companys lot
option purchase contracts may

result

in the creation of variable interest in VIE

In compliance with the provisions of FIN 46 the Company consolidated $15.2 million of inventory not owned at

December 31 2008 of which $14.4 million pertained to land and lot option purchase contracts representing the fur value

of the optioned property
and $799000 pertained to one of its homebtulding joint ventures See further discussion that

fbllows under investments in Joint \4sntures While the Company may not have had
legal

title to the optioned land or

guaranteed the sellers debt associated with that properiiv under FIN 46 it had the
primary

variable interest and was

required to consolidate the particular VIEs assets under
option at fair value Additionally to reflect the fair value of the

inventory consolidated under FIN 46 the Company eliminated $845.000 of its related cash deposits for lot
option

purchase contracts which are included in Consolidated inventory not owned Minority interest totaling $13.6 million was

recorded with
respect to the consolidation of these contracts representing

the
selling

entities ownership interests in these

VIEs At December 31 2008 the Company had cash deposits and letters of credit totaling $2 million relating to lot

option purchase contracts that were consolidated representing its current maximum exposure to loss Creditors of these

VIEs if any have no recourse against the Compan At December 31 2008 the Company had cash deposits and/or letters

of credit totaling $20.4 million that were associated with lot option purchase contracts liavmg an aggregate purchase price

of $184.6 million and related to VIEs in which it did not have primary variable interest

Service Liabilities

Service warranty and completion costs are estimated and accrued at the time home closes and updated as experience

requires
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Investments in Joint Jnturcs

The Company enters into joint ventures from time to time for the
purpose

of acquisition and co-development of land

parcels and lots Currently the Company participates
in six active homebuilding joint ventures in the Austin Chicago

Dallas Denver and Orlando markets It participates in number of joint ventures in which it has less than controlling

interest The Company recognizes its share of the respective joint ventures
earnings or losses from the sale of lots to other

homebuilders It does not however recognize earnings or losses from lots that it purchases
from the joint ventures Instead

it reduces its cost basis in these lots by its share of the earnings from the lots

The following table summarizes each reporting segments total estimated share of lots owned and controlled by the

Company under its joint ventures

DECEMBER 31 2008 DECEMBER 31 2007

LOTS LOTS LOTS 1.OTS

OWNED OPTIONED OWNED OPTIONEDTOTAL TOTAL

North 578 578 681 681

Southeast
45 45

Texas 145 145 189 18

West 166 1209 1375 410 1209 1619

ThtaI 889 1209 2098 1.325 1209 2534

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Companys investments in its unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $12.5 million and

$30.8 million respectively and were classified in the consolidated balance sheets under Other assets For the year
ended

December 31 2008 the Companys equity in losses from unconsolidated joint ventures totaled $43.9 million compared to

earnings of $342000 and losses of $260000 for the same periods in 2007 and 2006 respectively The increased loss in

2008 compared to 2007 was primarily atrributable to an $8.7 million impairment of inventory within two joint ventures

in the \Vcst region and $35.8 million impairment
of inventory within joint venture in the Companys North region

partially
offset by earnings from irs other unconsolidated joint ventures The

aggregate
debt of the unconsolidated joint

ventures in which the Company participated totaled $1.3 million and $508.4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

One of the Companys unconsolidated joint ventures had recorded assets of $644.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at

December 31 2007 During 2008 the debt related to this joint venture was declared in default and the administrative

agent
for the lenders foreclosed on the real estate securing the loan in non-judicial foreclosure proceeding The Company

and its partners in the joint venture provided limited Repayment Guarantee of the outstanding debt that can only be

pursued upon
the occurrence of certain bankruptcy events with respect to the joint venture which have not occurred in

addition Completion Guarantee was also provided that pertained to development and improvement costs estimated by the

banks at $358.0 million certain interest and other obligations The Company has 3.3 percent interest in this
joint

venture and its obligation with respect to the Repayment Guarantee and Completion Guarantee is limited to its pro rats

percentage
of the

guarantee and/or costs as applicable
The administrative

agent
under the loan documents filed

complaint against the Comp.mny
and certain other

partners in the joint venture during the fourth
quarter

of 2008 seeking

enforcement of the Completion Guarantees including damage elaun for an alleged failure of performance
The Company

wrote off its $7.2 million investment in this
joint venture during the first

quarter
of 2008

The Company had an interest in another joint venture in which the Company had an investment of $2.9 million and

$13.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The decrease was primarily due to $35.9 million impairment

of the CompanVs share of inventory within the venture In addition during 200$ an appraisal generated lender demand

for
repayment

of debt in the amount of 39.3 million of which the Company paid its pro rats share of 19.6 million At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the actual borrowings against the revolving credit 1scility for this joint venture were

$1.3 million and S50.6 million respectively of which the Companys pro rats share of debt under
payment guarantee was

$646000 and $25.3 million respectivek

At December 31 2008 one of the joint ventures in which the Company participated was consolidated in accordance with

the provisions
of FIN 46 as the Company was determined to have the

primary
variable interest in this entity In association

with this consolidated joint venture the Company eliminates any pretax earnings or losses i1
any

sales are made by the joint

venture to the Company The Company did not record any pretax earnings or losses 6ar the year ended December 31

2008 in association with this consolidamed joint venture For the year ended December 31 2007 the Company recorded

pretax earnings of 108000 in connection with its consolidated joint ventures The Company consolidated approximately
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$810000 of assets which included $799000 of consolidated Inventory not owned $968000 of total liabilities and

approximately $242000 of minority interest at December 31 2008 Total assets of approximately $782000 including

consolidated inventotT not owned and minority interest of $1.1 million were consolidated at December 31 2007

Property Plant and Equipment

Properr plant and equipment which included model home furnishings of $38.6 million and $69.6 miiiion at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization Depreciation

is provided for principally by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Model home

furnishings which are amortized over the life of the community as homes are closed are included in selling general and

administrative expenses

lurchase Price in Excess
of

Net Assets Acquired

Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 142 SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets requires that

goodwill and certain intangible assets no longer be amortized hut be reviewed for impairment at least annually Intangible

assets with finite lives will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives SEAS 142 also requires that goodwill

incltided in the carrying
value of equity-method investments no longer be amortized

Goodwill is allocated to the reporting unit from which ii originates The Company performs impairment tests of its

goodwill annually as of March 31 or as needed The Company tests goodwill for impairment by using
the

two-step process

prescribed in SFAS 142 The first
step

identifies potential impairment while the second
step measures the amount of

impairment
The Company evaluated the recoverability

of its goodwill at December 31 2008 which resulted in an

impairment of its remaining goodwill that totaled $2.8 million and reported it under Selling general and administrative

expenses This impairment related to the 1998 acquisition
of The Regency Organization Inc in the Companys Southeast

region There was no goodwill remaining at December 31 2008

The Company recorded $15.4 million goodwill impairment charge which was reported under Selling general and

administrative expenses during the first quarter
of 2007 This impairment was related to the 1986 acquisition of Mj

Brock Sons Calitbrnia homebuilder based in the Companys West region

As result of the Companys application of the nonamortization provisions
of SPAS 142 no amortization of goodwill was

recorded in 2008 2007 or 2006

Income Taxes

The Company files consolidated federal income tax return Certain items of income and
expense arc included in one

period for financial reporting purposes
and in another for income tax purposes

Deferred income taxes are provided in

recognition
of these differences Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on enacted tax rates and are

subsequently adjusted for changes in these rates An allowance against the Companys deferred tax assets may be established

if it is more likely
than not that all or some portion

of the deferred tax assets will not he realized change in deferred

tax assets or liabilities results in charge or credit to deferred tax expense See Note Income Taxes

Loan Or.inarion Fees Costs Mortgage Discounts and Loan Sales

Loan origination fees net of loan discount points were recognized in earnings upon the sale of related mortgage loans

prior to January 2008 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 140 SEAS 140
Accounting for Transrs and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities and Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 91 SFAS 91 Accounting for Nontefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or

Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases Beginning january 2008 upon
the implementation of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 159 SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities loan origination fees net of loan discount points were recognized in earnings upon
the

origination
of related

mortgage loans in accordance with SFAS 159

Derivative Instrunienis

In the normal course of business and
pursuant

to its risk_management policy the Company enters as an end tiser into

derivative instruments including forward-delivery contracts for loans options on forward-delivery contracts futures contracts

and options on futures contracts to minimize the impact of movements in market interest rates on IRLCs Maor factors

influencing the use of various hedging contracts include general market conditions interest rates types
of mortgages

originated and the
percentage

of IRLCs expected to fund The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of

nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging contracts Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company



is in net unrealized gain position
It

manages
this credit risk by entering into agreements

with counrerparties meeting its

credit standards and by monitoring position
limits The Company elected not to use hedge accountuig treatment with

respect
to its economic hedging activities Accordingly all derivative instruments used as economic hedges are carried in the

consolidated balance sheets in Other assets or Accrued and other liabilities at fair value with changes in value recorded

in current earnings The Companys mortgage pipeline includes IRLCs which represent commitments that have been

extended by the Company to those borrowers who have pplicd for loan funding and have met certain defined credit and

underwriting criteria Additionally RMC periodically purchases investor financing commitments IFCs from third
party

These commitments enable RMC to sell loans at fixed rate for stipulated period
of time The Company determined

that its IRLCs and IFCs meet the definition of derivatives under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133

SFAS 33 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended

Advertising
Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as they arc incurred Advertising costs totaled $14.4 million $28.7 million and

$34.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectivcl

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income consists of net earnings or losses and the increase or decrease in unrealized gains or losses on the

Companys available-firsalc securities as well as the decrease in unrealized
gains

associated with the treasury locks net of

applicable taxes Comprehensive losses totaled 8397.3 million compared to losses of S334.3 million and income of

$361.8 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

New
Accounting

Pronouncements

SFAS 157

In September 206 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 157 SPAS 157 Fair-Vilue

Measurements SPAS 157 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted

accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair-value measurements SFAS 157 is effective as of the beginning
of

an entitys fiscal
year

that begins after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the EASE issued Staff Position No

FAS 157-2 whidi partially defers the effective date of SEAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities except for items that

are recognized or disclosed at fur value in the financial statements on recurring basis until fiscal years beginnmg after

November IS 2008 The partial adoption of SPAS 157 did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the remaining provisions
of SPAS 157

however it is nor expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

SFAS 158

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 158 SPAS 158 Employers

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plansan Amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88

106 and 132R SPAS 158 requires that the funded status of defined benefit pension plans and other postrerirement

plans be recognized in the balance sheet along with corresponding after-tax adusunent to stockholders equity The

recognition of the funded status provision of SPAS 158 applies prospectively
and is effective December 31 2007

SPAS 158 also requires measurement of plan assets and benefit obligations at the entitys fiscal year-end effective

December 31 2008 SPAS 158 did not and is nor expected to have material effect on the Companys financial condition

or results of operations

SFAS 160

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 160 SEAS 160 Noncontrolling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an Amendment of ARB No 51 SPAS 160 establishes accounting
and

reporting standards pertaining to ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties
other than the

parent
the amount of

net income attributable to the
parent

and to the noncontrolling interest changes in parents ownership interest and the

valuation of any retained noncontrolling equity investment when subsidiary is deconsolidated SPAS 160 also establishes

disclosure requirements that
clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the

noncontrolling owners SPAS 160 is requited to he adopted prospectively
for the first annual

reporting period beginning

after Decctnher IS 2008 The Company is currently reviewing
this statement and has not yet determined the

impact
if

any
on its consolidated financial statements
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SEAS 161

In March 2008 the EASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 161 SEAS 61 Disclosures About

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesan amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SEAS 161 cxpands
the

disclosure requirements in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities SFAS 161 is effective for the Companys fiscal
year beginning January 2009 The Company does

not expect
the adoption of SEAS 161 to have material effect on its consolidated financial statements

SEAS 162

In Ma 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 162 SEAS 162 The Hierarchy of

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for

selecting the principles to be used in the
preparation

of financial statements for nongovernmental entities that are presented

in conformity
with GAAP SFAS 162 will be effective 60 days following the SECs approval of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Boards amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles The Company does nor expect
the adoption of SFAS 162 to have material

impact on its consolidated financial position
results of operations or cash flows

SEAS 163

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 163 SEAS 163 Accounting lot

Financial Guarantee insurance Contractsan Interpretation of FASB Statement No 60 SEAS 163 requires that an

insurance entity recognize claim liability prior to an event of default insured event when there is evidence that credit

deterioration has occurred in an insured financial obligation SEAS 163 also clarifies the application
of SEAS 60

Accounting and Reporting by insurance Enterprises to financial guarantee insurance contracts and expands disclosure

requirements surrounding such contracts SF.AS 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim

periods beginning
after December 15 2008 The Company is currently reviewing this statement and has not yet

determined

the impact if
any on its consolidated financial statements

FSP 157-3

In October 2008 the EASE issued EASE Staff Position No 157-3 FSP 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of

Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active The staff position clarifies the application of SFAS 157

to market that is not active ESP 157-3 became effective upon issuance including prior periods for which financial

statements have nor been issued The Company adopted FSP 157-3 as of September 30 2008 and it did not have

material impact on its consolidated financial position
results of

operations
or cash flows

Note Segment
Information

The Company is leading national homnehuilder and mortgage-related financial services firm As one of the largest single

family onsire homebuilders in the United States it operates
in IS states and 19 homehuilding divisions across the country

The Company consists of six segments
four geographically determined homebuilding regions financial services and

corporate
The Companys homehuilding operations consist of foist regional reporting segments

referred to as North

Southeast Texas and West The homebuilding segments specialize in the sale and construction of single-family
attached and

detached housing Its financial services segment includes RMC RHIC LPS and CNRRG The Companys financial services

segment provides loan origination and offers
mortgage

title escrow and instirance services Corporate is nonoperating

business segment with the sole
purpose

of supporting operations
Certain

corporate expenses are allocated to the

homehuilding and financial services segments while certain assets relating to employee benefit plans are attributed to other

segments in order to best reflect the Companys financial position
and results of

operations

The Company evaluates performance
and allocates resources based on number of factors including segment pretax

earnings and risk The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies
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Selected Segment Information

YEAR ENDEL DECEMBER 31

thousands
2008 2007 2006

REVENUES

Iiomebuildtng

North 639814 857448 1.196335

Southeast 558194 929168 1.522.123

Texas
415761 571689 695.356

West 297862 601389 1240106

Financial services
64493 91.681 126.333

Total 1976124 3.051.875 4780253

EARNHGS LOSS BEFORE TAXES

Homebtitiding

North 156158 37.077 170.636

Southeast 95449 59419 253120

Texas 19828 27.098 59854

\Vest 114454 355.583 89.533

Financial services
23.027 40927 67.695

Corporate
and tinallocated 42902 36.044 73730t

Total 405764 420098 567108

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Hotnehuilding

North 10079 9.080 9620

Southeast 16566 8252 10.913

Texas
8589 6856 7366

West 15415 27.552 15981

Financial servIces
361 1.054 1.225

Corporate
and unallocated 1205 1700 1626

Total 52215 54494 46.731

DECEMBER 31

is ihottsaidst
2008 2007

IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS

Homehuilding

North 520969 724105

Southeast
476633 693532

Texas 378625 421.359

West 197814 379640

Financial services
98540 93200

Corporate
and tinallocated 190407 239.484

Total 1862.988 2.551320

Note Earnings Per Share Reconciliation

The following table sets forth the
computation

of basic and diluted earnings pcr
share

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

it ihonsawC
mcopt

share data
2008 2007 2006

NUMERATOR

Net
earnings

lossi 396585 33352C 359942

DENOMATOR
Basic earnings per shareweighied-arerage shares 42496.796 42136315 44228502

Effect of dilutive secutities

Stock
options

1294.237

Equity
incentive plan

421.709

Dilutive potential
of comnaon shares

1715.946

Dilutive
earnings per shareadjusted weightedaverage

shares and assumed conversions 42496796 421363 15 45944.448

NET EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic 9.33 7.92 814

Diluted 9.33 7.92 7.83
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For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the effect of outstanding restricted stock units and stock options was

not included in the diluted earnings per
share calculation as their effect would have been antidilunve due to the Companys

net loss for the ear Options to purchase 1.1 million shares of common stock at various prices were outstanding at

December 31 2006 hut were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would have

been antidilutive since their exercise prices were greater than the
average

market price of the common shares

Note Derivative Instruments

The Company which uses derivative financial instruments in its normal course of
operations

has no derivative financial

instruments that are held for trading purposes

The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments at December 31 were as follows

in hssane1s
2008 2007

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments 88824 fi.12o

kdgtng contracts

Forward-delivers contracts
103.435 47500

Options on lowers contracts
9.000 21.000

investor financing conmIlenleno
1489 32534

IRLCs
represent

loan commitments with customers at market rates generally up to 180 days before settlement IRLCs

expose the Company to market risk as result of increases in mortgage interest rates IRLCs had interest rates generally

ranging from 5.0 to 7.0 percent at December 31 2008 and 2007

Hedging contracts are regularly entered into by the Company for the purpose
of

mitigating
its

exposure
to movements in

interest rates on IRLCs The selection of these hedging contracts is based
upon

the Companys secondary marketing

strategy
which establishes risk-tolerance level Major

factors influencing the use of various hedging contracts include

general market conditions interest rates types
of

mortgages originated and the
percentage

of IRLCs expected to fund The

market risk assumed while holding the hedging contracts generally mitigates
the market risk associated with IRLCs The

Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by countcrparties to certain hedging contracts

Credit risk is limited to those instances where the Company is in net unrealized
gain position

The Company manages

this credit risk by entering into agreements with
counterparties meeting its credit standards and by monitoring position

limits

During the second
quarter

of 2006 the Company terminated its $100.0 million treasury lock at 4.2
percent

and irs

$150.0 million treasury lock at 4.1 percent
These hedges were entered into to facilitate the replacement of higher-rare

senior and senior subordinated debt in 2006 which were evaluated and deemed to be highly
effective at the

inception
of

the contracts The Company accounted for the treasury locks as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS 33..As

result of changes in the timing of the Companys debt issuance and in the term of debt issued in the second
quarter

of

2006 gain of S9.2 million was recognized during that period reflecting the ineffective
portion

of those cash flow hedges

For the year
ended 2006 the Company recognized pretax gains of S9.9 million from the termination of these treasury

locks The S8.4 million effective portion
of the settlement value of the $150.0 million treasury lock was recorded net of

income tax effect in Accumulated other comprehensive
income and will be amortized over the seven-year

life of the

related debt instrument The Company recorded amortization of SI.2 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 and approximately $704000 for the
year

ended December 31 2006 related to the effective portion
of this

termination

Note Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Companys financial instruments are held fur purposes other than trading The fair values of these financial instruments

based on quoted market prices where available or are estimated using other valuation techniques lstimated fair values

are significantly affected by the
assumptions

used
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The table below sets forth the carrying values and fair values of the Companys financial instruments at December 31 2008

and 2007 It excludes nonfinancial instruments and accordingl the aggregate fair value amounts presented do nor represent

the underlying value of the Coinpany

2008 2007

CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR

VALUE VALUE VAWE VALUE
ii theusandsl

OTHER ASSETS

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 26291 26291 12557 12.813

DEBT

Senior notes 746000 559851 800000 751885

OTHER FINANCIAL iNSTRUMENTS

Mortgage interest rate lock comnitunenis 2175 2175 298 298

Forward-delivers contracts 1400 1400 181 IS

Options on fliures contracts 121 121 298 298

Investor financing commitments 19 19 15 15

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and secured notes payable are reported in the balance sheet and

approximate their fair values The fair values of the senior notes mortgage loans held-for-sale forwarddelivery contracts

and IRLCs arc based on either quoted marker prices or market prices
for similar financial instruments Beginning in 2008

the fair values of the IRLCs include amounts associated with the future servicing of loans in accordance with SAB 109

The fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices where available or are estimated using other

valuation techniques Estimated fair values are significantly
affected by assumptions used SEAS 157 categorizes

fair value

measurements as level level or level based on the
tYpe

of mpurs used in estimating fair value The table below sets

forth information regarding the Companys fiir value measurement methods and values

DECEMBER 31 2008

FAIR VALUE

QUOTED VALUATION VALUATION

PRICES UTILIZES UTILIZES

LOWER OF IN ACTIVE OBSERVABLE UNOBSERVABLE

COST OR MARKETS INPUTS INPUTS

MARKET LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL
fin thosands

Mortgage loans held-for-sale 195 26096 26291

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments 2175 2175

Forward-delivery contracts 1400 1400

Optioiss on futures contracts
121 121

Investor financing commitments 19 19

loans orginatcd prior
to Jannan 2008

Options on futures contracts are exchange_traded and are valued based on quoted market exit prices level Loans

held-for-sale and forward delivery contracts sre based on quoted market
prices

of similar instruments level As of

December 31 2008 contractual principal amounts of loans held-for-sale totaled S25.8 million IRLCs are valued at their

aggregate
market price premium or deficit plus servicing premium multiplied by the projected close ratio The market

price

premium or deficit is based on quoted market
prices

of similar instruments level
the

servicing premium is based oct

contractual investor guidelines for each product level and the projected close ratio is determined utilizing an external

modeling system
used widely within the industry to estimate customer behavior at an mdividual loan level level Investor

financing commitments are valued based on their intrinsic value which is determined with reference to movements in marker

interest rates level plus time value factor that is extrapolated from current market prices
of sunilar contracts level

In 2008 the Company implemented SAB 109 which revises and rescinds portions of Staff Accounting
Bulletin No 105

SAB 105 Loan Commitments Accounted for as Derivative Instruments and
requires

that expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of loan be included in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are

accounted for at fair value through earnings The
provisions

of SAB 109 were applicable to written loan commitments

issued or modified beginning on January 2008 when SAB 109 was adopted Ar December 31 2008 servicing rights of

$1.7 million were included in net gains on the sale of mortgages and mortgage servicing rights in accordance with

SAB 109
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The Company adopted SPAS 159 on prospective basis for mortgage loans held-for-sale effective January 2008

Accordingly mortgage
loans held-for-sale that originated subsequent to January 2008 are measured at fair value Loans

originated prior to that date are held at the lower of cost or market on an aggregate basis in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard No 65 Accounting for Certain Mortgage Banking Activities The application of

SEAS 159 to loans held-for-sale improves the consistency
of loan valuation between the date of borrower lock and the date

of loan sale As of December 31 2008 the difference between the aggregate fair value and the
aggregate unpaid principal

balance for mortgage loans held-for-sale measured at fair value was S704000 Conscquentl this amount has been

recognized as gain in current earnings within financial services revenues The Company held two loans with
payments

90 days or more past due as of December 31 2008 that had an aggregate carrying
value of 145000

\Vhile recorded fair values
represent managements best estimate based on data currently available future changes in interest

rates or in market prices for mortgage loans among other factors could have material impact on the value of these items

The following table represents reconciliation of changes in fair values of level items included in revenues tinder

Financial services within the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

it sesands IRLCs IFCs

Fair value at Jmuirv 2008 298 IS

Gain loss recognized on conversion to loans 6475
Additions

9346 1497

Change in valuation of ienas held 994 .493

Fair value at December 31 2008 2175 19

Note Debt

Debt consisted of the following at December 31

in tIotisanls
2008 2007

Senior notes
746000 800.000

Secured notes payable
22274 39081

RMC warehouse line of credit
22.125

Total debt 790399 839080

At December 31 2008 maturities of debt are scheduled as follows

in thensattd

2009
32716

2010 6.130

2011 5.553

2012
250.000

After 2012 496000

Thtal debt
790.399

Ar December 31 2008 the Company had outstanding 5250.0 million of 5.4 percent senior notes due May 2012

5250.0 million of 6.9 percent senior notes due
Jtinc 2013 and 5246.0 million of 5.4

percent senior notes due

January 2015 Each of the senior notes pays interest semiannually and may be redeemed at stated redemption price at the

option
of the Compan in whole or in part at any time

During 2008 the Companys S50.0 million of 5.4
percent

senior notes due June 2008 matured and were repaid and rise

Company repurchased $4.0 million of irs 5.4 percent senior notes due January 2015 çSee Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Financial Condition and Liquidity

The senior notes and indenture
agreements are sub1ecr to certain covenants that include atnong other things restrictions on

additional secured debt and the sale of assets The Company was in compliance with these covenants at December 31

2008

47



In February and june of 2008 the Company amended its unsecured revolving credit fiscility
The credit

facility is used for

general corporarc purposes
and contains affirmative negative and financial covenants including minimum consolidated

tangible net worrh requirement permitted leverage ratio and limitations on unsold home units unsold land lot inventory

investments and senior debt The amendments included among other things decrease in the Companys borrowing

availability from $750.0 million to S550.0 million reduction in the base amount for the minimum consolidated

tangible net worth covenant an increase in the pricing grid which is based on the Companys leverage ratio and public

debt raring an adjustment in the permitted leverage ratio to no less than 55.0
percent

for the fourth quarter
of 2008

and the first quarter
of 2009 52.5 percent for the second third and fourth

quarters
of 2009 and 50.0

percent thereafter

an increase in the borrowing base by adding restricted cash
tip

to $300.0 million change in the definition of

material indebtedness to $20.0 million and change in the restriction of the Companys hook value of unsold land to

l15x its consolidated tangible net worth

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement the Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Agent and the lenders listed therein which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys borrowing availability

from $550.0 million to $200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant default limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to be no more than 55.0 percent agreed to establish certam

liquidity reserve accounts in ihe event the Company fciils to satisfy an interest coverage test and an ad1usted cash flow from

operations io interest incurred test changed
the restTiction of the Companys book value of unsold land to .20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing base to allow for 100.0
pereeni use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less any drawn balances on the revolving credit
fiicility

established requirement
for the Company to

cash collateralize pro rama share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and
swing

line
exposure

established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit of $10.0 million and increased the pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage ratio and public debt rating as well as the Interest coverage ratio The credit
facilitys maturity date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million suh3ect to the

availability
of additional lending

commitments The revolving credit
facility

includes $75.0 million swingline facility and

the
ability

to issue standby letters of credit Amounts borrowed under the credit
agreement are guaranteed on Joint and

several basis by substantially all of the Companys IOU percent-owned homebuilding subsidiaries Such guarantees are full

and unconditional Interest rates on outstanding borrowings under the amended facility are determmed either by reference to

LIBOR or an alternative base rate with margins determined based on changes in the Companys leverage ratio and credit

ratings plus if the Companys interest coverage ratio is less than 2.0 to 1.0 an interest
premium

is determined based on

changes in the Companys uiterest coverage ratio See Note Subsequent Events

There were no borrowings outstanding under the
facility at December 2008 or 2007 Letters of credit aggregating

$95.7 million and $157.8 million were outstanding under the facility at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Under

the faciIit the unused borrowing capacity as then in effect totaled $454.3 million and $592.2 million at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2008 the $550.0 million facility then in effect was subject to borrowing

base limitation covenant which restricted its borrowing capacity
to $338.1 million of which $242.4 million was available

The Company was in compliance with its covenants at December 31 2008 The reduction in the facilitys commitments

during 2008 resulted in an expense of $604000 which represented the write-off of pro rata portion
of unamortized

debt costs and is included within Expenses related to early retirement of debt in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

See Managements Discussion and Anal sis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Financial Condition and

Liqiudity

At December 31 2008 the Companys obligations to pay principal premium if any and interest under its unsecured

revolving credit facility
5.4

percent
senior notes due May 2012 6.9

percent senior notes due June 2013 and 5.4
percent

senior notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on joint and several basis by substantially all of its 100 percent-owned

homehuilding subsidiaries Such
guarantees are full and unconditional Sec Note Supplemental Guarantor

Information

To finance its land purchases the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes payable At

December 31 2008 and 2007 outstanding seller-financed nonrccourse notes payable were $22.3 million and $39.1 million

respectively
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RIvIC had mortgage
warehouse line of credit with Guaranty

Bank which matured in January 2009 and provided for

borrowings up to $40.0 million to fund RMCs mortgage
loan origination operations

The R1vIC Credit Agreement is

secured by underlying mortgage
loans and by other assets of RMC Facility

balances were repaid as loans funded under the

agreement were sold to third parties The RMC Credit Agreements interest rate was set at LIBOR plus 0.9 percent with

commitment fee of 0.125
percent

The R1vf Credit Agreement contained representations warranties covenants and

provisions defining events of default The covenants required RMC to maintain certain financial ratios including tangible

iiet worth minimum of $13.0 million an adjusted tangible net worth minimum of $5.0 million ratio of total

indebtedness to adjusted tangible net worth of 121 and consolidated net income for the four preceding fiscal quarters

The Company was in compliance with these covenants and outstanding borrowings against
this credit facility totaled

$22.1 million at December 31 2008 Sec Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Financial Condition and Liquidity

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facilir $60.0 million repurchase fiscility with Guaranty Bank

and Buyers The facility
became effective January 15 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired in January

2009 The
agreement

contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margm of 1.75
percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0 percent The facilirv contains representations warranties covenants and provisions defining events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios

Note Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for estimated tax effects thai are attributable to deductible temporary
differences and tax

carrvforwards related to tax credits and operating losses They are realized when existing temporary
differences are carried

back to profitable years and/or carried fbrward to fuiure years having taxable income Deferred tax assets are reduced by

valuation allowance if an assessment of their components
indicates that it is more likely

than not that some portion
of the

deferred tax asset will not be realized This assessment considers among other things the nature frequency and severity
of

current and cumulative losses furecasts of future profitability
the duration of the statutory carryforward periods the

Companys experience with loss carryforwards not expiring unused and tax planning alternatives The Company generated

additional deferred tax assets in 2008 and 2007 due to inventory impairments
In light

of these additional
impairments

the

continued downturn in the housing market and the uncertainty as to its duration which limits the Companys ability to

predict
future taxable income the Company determined that an allowance against its deferred tax assets was required

Therefore in accordance with SEAS 109 the Company recorded valuation allowances totaling $143.8 million and

$75.2 million against its deferred tax assets during 2008 and 2007 respectively which were reflected as noncash charges to

income tax expense
The valuation allowance taken in 2008 was comprised of $13.3 million of net state taxes and

$130.5 million of federal taxes which related to tax benefits generated in 2008 The valuation allowance taken in 2007 was

comprised of net state taxes of $21.7 million and federal taxes of $53.5 million For the year ended December 31 2006

no valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset was required The net increase in the valuation allowance was

$143.8 million and the balance of the deferred tax valuation allowance was $219.0 million as of December 31 2008 For

federal purposes net operating losses can be carried forward 20
years

and for state purposes can generally he carried

forward 10 to IS years depending on the taxing jurisdiction
To the extent that the Company generates

sufficient taxable

income in the future to utilize the tax benefits of related deferred tax assets it expects to experience
reduction in its

effective tax rate as the valuation allowance is reversed

As result of the noncash tax charges the Companys effective income tax benefit rate was 2.3 percent
for the

year
ended

December 31 2008 compared to an effective income tax benefit rate of 20.6 percent
and an effective provision rate of

36.5
percent

for the years ended 2007 and 2006 respectively The decrease in effective income tax benefit rate in 2008

compared to 2007 was primarily due to its noncash tax charges that related to its derrcd tax assets The decrease in the

effective tax rate for 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to noncash tax charge of $75.2 million for valuation

allowance related to its deferred tax assets and the impact of lower pretax earnings
for 2007 The Company had net

current tax receivable of $l0.7 million and $9.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The following table reconciles the
stanitory

federal income tax rate to the Companys effective income tax rate for the years

ended December 31 2003 2007 and 2006

2006

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

3.2 3.2 3.2

0.9

1.0

0.2

36.5%

2.0

1.4

17.8

0.4

2.3% 20.6%

2008

21.813

28678

170.5 17

12725

17560

1418

23.801

48.574

187.385

154

1.755

4.28

The Companys expense
for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is summarized as

follows

ii tloioanth 2008 2007 2006

CURRENT EXPENSE BENEFIT
Federal 167244 14323 206635

State
1617 32.799

Total current
expense

benefit 167.244 12706 239434

DEFERRED EXPENSE BENEFIT
Federal 158065 84872 27848

State 11.006 4.420

Total deferred
expense

benefit 158065 73866 .32268

Total
expense

benefit 9.179 86572 207166

The Company accounts for unrecognized tax benefits under Interpretation
No 48 FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes The Company accounts for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits through its provision
for

income taxes As of December 31 2008 the Companys liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits was $7.0 million of

which $4.7 million if recognized will affect the Companys effective tax rate The Company had $5.8 million and

$2.6 million in accrued interest and penalties at January and December 31 2008 respectively As of December 31 2007

the Companys liability for gross unrecognized tax benefits was $11.8 million of which $8.3 million if recognized will

affect the Companys effective tax rare The Company estimates that within 12 months $2.0 million of gross state

unrecognized tax benefits will reverse due to the anticipated expiration
of time to assess tax

Income taxes at federal
statutory rate

State income taxes net of federal tax

Domestic production activity deduction

Resolution of tax contingency

Goodwill

Deferred tax asset .illowancr

Other

Effectve tas rate

2008 2007

0.3

35.4

0.2

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes Significant components of the

Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were as follows

in thoisaiidn

2007

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Warranty legal and other accruals

Employee benefits

Noncash charge lhr impairment of longlived assets

Joint ventures

State net operating
loss carryforwaids

Other

Total

\aluatiott allowance

7btal deferred tax assets

DEFERRED TAX LIABIUTIES

Deferred
recognition

of income and
gains

Ca1italzed expenses

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET

252711 265950

218.950 75.166

33761 190.784

365 2.224

27.708 27.605

2988 2890

33.761 32.719

158.065

50



The Companys summary of accounting for tax uncertainties at December 31 2008 and 2007 and for the periods then

ended follows

iti thoiisait4

2008 2007

Balance at january
11844 15.555

Additions related to current year posluons
634 1947

Reductions additions related to
prior

rear
positions

2448 1898

Reductions due to settlements 1017 300

Reductions due to expiration
of the statute of limitations 2059 ç7.256

Balance it December 31
6954 11.844

As of December 31 2008 the 2005 through 2008 tax years remam open for examination

Note Employee Incentive Stock and Shareholder Rights Plans

Retirement Savings Opportunity Plan RSOP
All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the RSOP Part-time employees are eligible

to participate in the RSOP

following the completion of 1000 hours of service within the first 12 months of employment or within
any plan year after

the date of hire Pursuant to Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code the plan permits
deferral of portion

of

participants income into variety of investment options
Total

compensation expense related to the Companys matching

contributions for this plan amounted to 6.9 million 10.0 million and 12.0 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Employee Stork Purchase Plait ESPP
All full-time employees of the Company with the

exception
of its executive officers are eligible to participate in the ESPP

Eligible employees authorize payroll deductions to be made for the purchase of shares The Company matches portion of

the employees contribution by donating an additional 20.0
percent

of the employees payroll deduction Stock is purchased

by plan administrator on regular monthly basis All brokerage and transaction fees for purchasing the stock are paid for

by the Cotnpan The Companys expense related to its matching contribution for this plan was approximately 233000

$354000 and 495000 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Supplemental beers tile Retirement Plans

The Company has supplemental nonqualified retirement plans which generally vest over five-year periods beginning in 2003

pursuant to which it will
pay supplemental pension

benefits to key employees upon
retirement In connection with these

plans the Company has purchased cost-recovery life insurance on the lives of certain employees Insurance contracts

associated with the plans are held by trusts established as part
of the plans to implement and carry out their provisions

and

finance their related benefits The trusts are owners and beneficiaries of such contracts The amount of
coverage is designed

to provide sufficient revenue to cover all costs of the plans if assumptions
made as to employment term mortality

experience policy earnings and other factors are realized At December 31 2008 and 2007 the cash surrender value of

these contracts was 23.8 million and 28.5 million respectively and is included in Other assets The net periodic

benefit cost of these plans for the year ended December 31 2008 was $13.9 million and included service costs of

$4.1 million interest costs of $1.9 million and investment losses of $7.9 million The net periodic benefit cost of these

plans for the year ended December 31 2007 was $5.7 million and i.ncludcd service costs of S4.5 million interest costs of

$1.4 million and investment earnings of S217000 The $29.7 million and 24.0 million projected
benefit obligations at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively were equal to the net
liability recognized in the balance sheet at those dates

The weighted_average discount rate used for the plans was 7.8 and 7.7
percent

for 2008 and 2007 respectively

Shareholder
R/ghts

llan

On December 23 2008 the Company announced that the Board of Directors adopted shareholder rights plan the

Rights Plan designed to preserve
shareholder value and the value of certain tax assets primarily associated with net

operating
loss carryforwards NOLs under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code The Companys ability to usc its

NOLs would he limited if there was an ownership change under Section 382 This would occur if stockholders owning

or deemed under Section 382 to own 5.0 percent or more of the Companys stock increased their collective ownership of

the
aggregate amount of outstanding shares of the Company by inure than 50.0

percentage points over defined period of

rime The Rights Plan was adopted to reduce the likelihood of an ownership change occurring as defined by Section 382
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The Rights Plan is intended to act as deterrent to any person or group acquiring
4.9 percent or more of the Companys

outstanding common stock an Acquiring Person without the approval of its Board of Directors Under the Rights Plan

one right was distributed for cach share of common stock outstanding as of the close of business on December 29 2008

The rights initially arc attached to and trade with the Companys common stock Subject to the terms provisions and

conditions of the Rights Plan if the rights become exercisable each right would initially represent
the right to purchase

from the Company one ten-thousandth of share of its Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock for purchase price

of $90.00 the Purchase Price After the rights become exercisable and there is an Acquiring Person each holder of

right
other than rights beneficially owned by the

Acquiring
Person which will thereupon become void will thereafter have

the right to receive upon exercise of right and
payment

of the Purchase Price that number of shares of common stock as

the case may he having market value of two times the Purchase Price

Existing stockholders who currently own 4.9 percent or more of the outstanding shares of common stock will trigger

dilutive event only if they acquire
additional shares The Companys Board of Directors may in its sole discretion exempt

any person or group
from being deemed an Acquiring Person for

purposes
of the Rights Plan The Rights Plan may be

terminated by the Board at any time prior to the rights being triggered The Rights Plan will continue in effect until

December 18 2018 unless it is terminated or redeemed earlier by the Board of Directors The Company plans to submit

the continuation of the Rights Plan to stockholder vote at its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders and the failure to

obtain this approval will result in termination of the Rights Plan on December 18 2009

Note Stock-Based Compensation

The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity
Incentive Plan the Plan permits

the
granting

of stock
options

restricted stock

awards stock units or any
combination of the foregoing to employees Stock

options granted in accordance with the Plan

generally have maximum term of five years and vest in equal annual installments over three
years

Certain outstanding

stock
options granted under predecessor plans have maximum term of ten years Outstanding restricted stock units

granted under predecessor plans generally vest in three equal annual installments or one year 1eriod with performance

criteria At December 31 2008 and 2007 stock options or other awards or units available for grant totaled 2446606 and

1587725 respectively

The Ryland Group Inc 2006 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan the Director Plan provides for stock award of

3000 shares to each non-employee director on May of each year New non_employee directors wi11 receive pro_rata

stock award 30 days after their date of appoinunent or election based on the remaining portion
of the plan year in which

they are appointed or elected Stock awards are fully
vested and non-forfeitable on their applicable award dates At

December 31 2008 and 2007 there were 72000 and 93000 stock awards available for future
grant

in accordance with

the Director Plan respectively Previously The Ryland Group Inc 2004 Non_Employee Director Equity Plan and its

predecessor plans provided for automatic grants
of non-statutory stock

options
to directors These stock

options are frilly

vested and have inaximuni term of ten years

All outstanding stock options
stock awards and restricted stock awards have been granted in accordance with the terms of

the applicable Plan Director Plan and their respective predecessor plans all of which were approved by the Companys

stockholders Certain option and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is change in control as defined in

the plans

The Company recorded $9.0 million $12.3 million and $25.6 million of stock-based
compensation expense for the

years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respecrivel Stock-based compensation expenses
have been allocated to the

Companys reportable segments and are reported in Corporate Financial services and Selling general and

administrative expenses

SFAS 123R reqtures cash flows attribtitahle to tax benefits resulting
from tax deductions in excess of compensation cost

recognized for those stock options excess tax benefits be classified as financing cash flows Excess tax benefits of

$3.1 million $6.7 million and $14.6 million for the 12 months ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

have been classified as financing cash inflows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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31 2008 2007 and 2006

SHARES PRICE LIFE ri tears

Options outstanding
at lanuarv 2006 4054570 25.91 5.7

Granted 374.500 62.31

Exercised 798.218 12.34

Forfeited 667 10 56.83

Options ontstandin at December 31 2006 4.164.142 31.29 5.0 106.250

Available future
grant

360645

Total shares reserved 4.524.787

Options exercisable at Dccenher 31 2006 3.365.335 25.54 5.0 102.729

Options outstanding at January
2007 4164142 31.29 5.0

Granted 658.500 43.60

Exercised 638232 12.62

Forfeited 150.244 53.07

Options outstanding at December 31 2007 4034166 35.44 4.3 23744

Available fur future
grant

1.680725

Total shares reserved 5714891

Options exercisable at December 31 2017 3.103.087 31.22 4.4 23.744

Options outstanding at January 2008 4034166 35.44 4.3

Granted 503000 31.88

Exercised 541720 8.25

Forfeited 340545 46.21

Options outstanding at December 31 2008 3654901 37.97 3.8 4347

Available for future
grant

2518606

Total shares reserved 6173507

Options exercisable at December 31 2008 2719574 37.53 3.8 4347

summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2008 follows

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGI ITED- WEIGI-ITED- WEIGI ITED

RANGE OF AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

EXERCISE NUMBER REMAINING EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE

PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE is tears PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

4.11 to 18.30 596340 2.0 10.41 596340 12.05

20.99 to 27.38 600903 4.0 22.39 495903 2139

33.14 to 40.12 903741 4.7 36.94 473741 39.81

44.32 to 57.54 863918 4.1 45.18 546599 56.28

61.40 to 83.13 689999 3.3 65.06 606991 65.41

The total intrinsic values of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were

$9.3 million $17.8 million and $38.5 million respectively The intrinsic value of stock option is the amount by which

the market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price
of the

option

The Company has determined the grant-date fair value of stock
options using

the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing

formula Expected volatility is based upon
the historical volatility of the Companys common stock The expected dividend

yield is based on an annual dividend rate of $0.48 per common share The risk-free interest rate for periods within the

contractual life of the stock
option

award is based
ttpon

the zero_coupon
U.S Treasury bond on the date the stock option

is granted with maturity equal to the expected option
life of the stock

option granted The expected option
life is

derived from historical experience
under the Companys share-based payment plans and

represents
the period of time that

stock option
awards granted are expected to be outstanding

summary of stock option activity
in accordance with the Companys plans as of December

and changes for the years
then ended follows

WEIGH7ED-

WEIGHTED- A\ERAGE

A\ERAGE REMAINING
EXERCISE CONTRACTUAl

AGGREGATE
INTRINSIC

VALUE
iv ii.esaids
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The following table
presents

the weighted-average inputs
used and fair values determined for stock options granted during

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

Expected
volatilit

44.4% 35.8% 38.0%

Expected dwidend yield
1.5% 1.1% 0.8%

Expected term wars
3.9 3.4 3.2

Risk-free rate
2.8% 4.6% 5.0%

Weighted-average grantdate
fair value 10.60 12.70 19.17

The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense
related to stock

options
of $4.5 million $4.9 million and

$10.4 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

summary of the CompanVs non-vested
options as of and for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

fAlows

2008 2007 2006

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

GRANT-DATE GRANIDiVFE GRANT-DATE

SHARES FAIR VALUE SHARES FAIR VALuE SHARES FAIR VALUE

Nonvested
options outstanding at lanuary 931079 14.67 798.807 16.40 1.294035 13.40

Granted 503000 10.60 658500 1270 374.500 1917

Vested 344002 15.22 375984 14.57 803.018 12.82

Forfeited 154.750 15.16 150.244 15.54 66710 16.82

Nonvested options outstanding at December 31 935327 12.19 931.079 14.67 798807 16.40

As of December 31 2008 there was $7.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvesred stock

option awards granted under the Companys plans That cost is expected to he recognized over the next 2.8
years

The Company has made several restricted stock awards to senior executives tinder the Plan and its predecessor plans

Compensation expense recognized or such awards was $3.9 million $6.1 million and $13.3 million fr the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The following is summary of activity relating to restricted stock awards

2008 2007 2006

Restricted shares at January
242000 435.664 441000

Shares awarded 370.000 25000 133.000

Shares vested 81331 182664 138.336

Shares forfeited 50667 36.000

Restricted shares at Decenaber 31 480002 242000 435.664

Ar December 31 2008 the outstanding restricted shares will vest as follows 2009246672 2010136665 and

201196665

The Company has granted stock awards to its non-employee directors pursuant to the terms of the Director J5lan The

Company recorded stock-based compensation expense
related to such

grants
in the amount of $700000 $1.2 million and

$1.9 million during the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Note Commitments and Contingencies

Cornntittncnts

In the normal course of business the Company acquires rights under option agreements to purchase land or lots for use in

future homehuilding operations At December 31 2008 and 2007 it had cash deposits and letters of credit outstanding

that totaled $31.0 million and $74.7 million respectively for land
options pertaining to land purchase contracts with an

aggregate purchase price
of $276.5 million and $721.4 million respectivelE At December 31 2008 the Company had
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commitments with
respect to option

contracts having specific performance provisions
of approximately S5.7 million

compared to S24.2 million at December 31 2007

Rent expense primarily relates to office fiscilities model homes furniture and equipment

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2007 2006
frucauis

2008

ibtal rent
expense

22270 26.760 23.232

Less Income from subleases 68J 24fr 950

Nct rent expense
21589 2rr514 22.282

At December 31 2008 future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable leases with remaining terms in excess of

one year are as follows

in the

2009 9594

2010
9044

2011 6.749

2012 4314

2013 1.602

Thereafter
4347

Less sublease Income 1606

Total lease rcmmunenss 34044

RMC purchases IFCs from third parties for the purpose
of mitigating its

exposure
to movements in interest rates on

customer-financing commitments RMC pays
the investor fixed one-time premium for these commitments In return

RMC receives the option of
selling

loan at fixed rate in the commitment for stipulated period of tune IFCs are

non-transferable and RMCs risk is limited to the initial
premium paid IFCs arc valued based on their intrinsic value

which is determined with reference to movements in market interest rates plus time value factor that is extrapolated
from

current market prices of similar contracts The outstanding commitments at December 31 2008 and 2007 were

$1.5 million and $32.5 million respectively with fair values of approximately $19000 and $15000 respectivelY

ontingencies

As an On-site housing producerS the Company is often required by some municipalities to obtain development or

performance
bonds and letters of credit in support of its contractual obligations At Decembet 31 2008 total development

bonds were 8199.0 million while perfirmancc-related
cash deposits and letters of credit were S54.3 million In the event

that am such bonds or letters of credit are called the Company would be required to reimburse the issuer however it does

not expect
that any currently outstanding bonds or letters of credit wi1i he called

One of the Companys unconsolidated joint ventures had recorded assets of Ss44.2 million and debt of $435.3 million at

December 31 2007 During 2008 the debt related to this joint venture was declared in default and the administrative

agent
fbr the lenders foreclosed on the real estate securing the loan in non-judicial foreclosure proceeding The Company

and its
partners

in the joint venture provided limited Repayment Guarantee of the outstanding debt that can only be

pursued upon the occurrence of certain bankruptcy events with respect to the joint Venture which have not occurred In

addition Completion Guarantee was also provided that pertained to development and improvement costs estimated by the

banks at $358.0 million certain interest and other obligations The Company has 3.3
percent

interest in this joint

venture and its obligation with
respect

to the Repayment
Guarantee and Completion Guarantee is limited to its pro rats

percentage
of the guarantee and/or costs as applicable The admsnistrative agent under the loan documents filed

complaint against
the Company and certain other partners in the

joint
venture during the fourth quarter

of 2008 seeking

enforcement of the Completion Guarantees including damage claim for an alleged failure of performance The Company

wrote off its S7.2 million investment in this
joint venture during the first quarter of 2008

The Compan\ had an interest in another Joint venture in which the Company had an investment of $2.9 million and

$13.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The decrease was primarily due to $35.9 million impairment

of the Companys share of inventory
within the venture In addition during 2008 an appraisal generated lender demand

for
repayment

of debt in the amount of $39.3 million of which the Company paid its pro rats share of S19.6 million At

December 31 2008 and 2007 the actual borrowings against
the revolving credit

f.sciliry
for this joint venture were



$1.3 million and $50.6 million respectively of which the Companys pro rara share of debt under
payment guarantee was

$646000 and $25.3 million respectively

IRLCs represent
loan commitments with customers at marker rates generally up to 80 days before settlement The

Company had outstanding IRLCs totaling $88.8 million and $66.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Hedging contracts are utilized to mitigate the risk associated with interest rate fluctuations on IRLCs See Note

Derivative Instruments

Under certain circumstances RMC is
reqtmircd

to indemnify loan investors for losses incurred on sold loans In general this

obligation arises if the losses are due to origination errors made by RMC if the borrower does not make their first

payment or if there is undiscovered fraud on the
part

of the borrower Reserves for losses related to future indemnification

or repurchase of sold and held loans were $5.4 million and S2.7 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Aggregate
indemnification and repurchase expense was S5.9 million and $2.2 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

The Company provides product warranties covering workmanship and materials for one year certain mechanical systems for

two years and structural
systems

for ten years
The Company estimates and records warranty

liabilities based upon historical

experience
and known risks at the dme home closes and in the case of unexpected claims upon identification and

quantification of the obligations Actual future warranty costs could differ from current estimates

Changes in the Companys product liability reserve during the period are as follows

itt thossas.b
2008 2007

Balance at january
36557 44.102

Warranties issued 5693 1820

Setilements nisde 12473 19.365

Balance at December 31 29777 36.557

The Company requires substantially all of its subcontractors to have general liability insurance which includes construction

defect coverage
and wotkmans compensation insurance These insurance policies protect

the Company against portion
of

its risk of loss from claims subject to certain self-insured retentions deductibles and other
coverage

limits However with

fewer insurers participating general liability
insurance for the homehuilding industry had become more difficult to obtain

over the
past

several years As result RHIC provided insurance services to the homebuilding segments subcontractors in

certain markets RHIC ceased providing such services effective June 2008 At December 31 2008 RHIC had

$37.1 million in cash and cash equivalents
of which $28.5 million was restricted as collateral for letters of credit for the

same amount and $28.3 million in subcontractor product liabiliry reserves which are included in the consolidated balance

sheer under Cash and cash equivalents and Accrued and other liabilities respectively At December 31 2007 RHIC had

$34.1 million in cash and cash equivalents of which $13.5 million was restricted and $28.3 million in subcontractor

product liability reserves which are included in rise consolidated balance sheet

Changes in the Companys insurance reserves during
the period arc as follows

in iIosnd 2008 2007

Balance ii
january

28293 22521

insurance expense provisions
40 5.772

Bdarce at December 31 28333 28293

The Company is party to various
legal proceedings generally incidental to its businesses Litigation reserves have been

established based on discussions with counsel and the Companys analysis of historical claims The Company has and

reqtures
the majority of its subcontractors to have general liability insurance to protect it against portion

of its risk of

loss and cover it against construction-related claims The Company establishes reserves to cover its self-insured retentions

and deductible amounts tinder those policies Due to the high degree of judgment required in determining these estimated

reserve amoumts and the inherent
variability

in predicting
future settlements and

judicial
decisions actual future litigation

costs could differ from the Companys current estimates At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had
legal

reserves

of $15.2 million and $15.3 million respectively See Item Legal Proceedings
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Note Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company obligations to pay principal premium if
anyi

and interest under its S550.0 million unsecured revolving

credit facility 5.4
percent

senior notes due May 2012 6.9 percent semor notes due June 2013 and 5.4
percent senior

notes due January 2015 are guaranteed on joint and several basis by substantially all of its 100 percent-owned

homebuilding subsidiaries the Guarantor Subsidiaries Such
guarantees arc full and unconditional

In lieu of providing separate
financial statcmenrs for the Guarantor Subsidiaries the accompanying

condensed consolidating

financial statements have been included Management does not believe that separate
financial statements for the Guarantor

Subsidiaries are material to investors and are therefore not presented

The following information
presents

the consolidating statements of earnings financial position and cash flows for the

parent compan nd iscuer The Raland Group Inc TRG mi the Gusrintor Subsidiaries the non Guarantor

Subsidiaries and the consolidation eliminations used to arrive at the consolidated information for The Ryland

Group Inc and subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

iii
ihouiaidc TRG INC

REVENUES 1158775 784712 64493 31856 1976124

EXPENSES

Corporate general and administrative 1441054 930620 41.466 31.856 2381284

Expenses related in early retirement of debt 604 604

TOTAL EXPENSES 1441658 930620 41466 31856 2381888

Earnings loss
hefbre taxes 282883 145908 23027 405764

Tax expense
benefit 11782 6077 8680 9179

E9uity
in net

earnings loss of subsidiaries 125484 125484

NET EARNINGS LOSS 396.585 139831 14.347 125484 396585

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2007

REVENUES 1863482 1147957 93.282 52846 3.051.875

EXPENSES

Corporate general and adntintsirativr 2.034125 1437.849 52355 52846 3.471483

Expenses related to earls retirement of debt 490 490

TOTAL EXPENSES 2034615 1.437.849 52355 52846 3471.973

Earnings loss beibre taxes 171.133 289892 40927 420098

lax expense benefit 37985 64.344 15757 86.572

Eptity in net earnings loss of subsidiaries 200.378 200378

NET EARNiNGS LOSS 333526 225.548 25170 200378 333.526

YEAR ENDEI DECEMBER 31 2006

REVENUES .5 2.859.744 1908416 140.379 128.286 4780253

EXPENSES

Corporate general
and administrative 2450.382 1810671 72.684 128.286 4205450

Expenses
related to early retirement of debt 7695 7695

TOTAL EXPENSES 2.458.077 1810670 72.684 128286 4213145

Earnings hefcre taxes 401667 97.746 67695 567.108

Lx
expense

145125 36655 25386 207166

Equby In net
earnings

of subsidiaries 103400 103400

NET EARNINGS 359.942 61.091 42.309 103.400 359942

GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

NON-
GUARANTOR

SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31 2008

rn iLousand

ASSETS

Cash and cash
equivalents

Consolidated uwentones owned

Consolidated inventones not owned

Total inventories

Investment in subsidiaries/intercompany

receivables

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts
parable

and other accrued liabilities

Debt

Intercompany pavables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

423259

1081099

15218

1096317

DECEMBER 31 2007

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

Consolidated inventories owned

Consolidaicd inventories noi owned

Iota1 inventories

Investment in subsidiaries uitercotnpany

receivables

Oilier asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other accrued habihues

Debt

Intercompany payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MINORITY INTEREST

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

58343

68.615

68.615

243.614

1736943

76734

1813677

NON-

GUARANTOR GUARANTOR

TRG INC SUBSIDIARIES SLIBSIDIARIES

CONSOI.IIATING

ELIMINATIONS

12021 349082 62156

705365 375.734

705 14373

705505 376439 14373

CONSOLIDATEI
1OTAL

738127 3194 741321

247629 58.868 36915 343412

1703282 784389 116638 741321 1862988

209684 71941 51786 333411

768236 39 22124 790399

438119 438119

977920 510099 73910 438119 1123810

13816 13816

725362 274290 28912 303202 725362

1703282 784389 116.638 741321 1862988

12908

1166.824

11 79

1168.003

172.363

571119

6940

577059

758.282 758.282

362.697 95239 36.093 494029

2.301890 844.661 163051 758.282 2551.320

342090 114.842 61663 518595

835074 4006 839080

311.692 4428 316120

1177164 430540 66.091 316120 1.357675

68919 68919

1124726 414121 28041 442162 1.124.726

2301890 844661 163.051 758282 2.551.320
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

ill tJOilSiiflflS

GUARANTOR

TRG INC SUBSIDIARIES

NON-
GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATED
EUMINATIONS TOTAL

396.585 139831 14347

410777 118764 986

214.476 80.909 26052
29365

125.484 396585

125.484

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net
opetating earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings loss to

net cash
provided by operating

activities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other
operating

activities net

Net cash provided by used for operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to property plant
and

equiptnent

Oilier
investing activities net

Net cash
çused

for
provided

hr investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Decrease increase in debt

Coinrncn stuck divideitds repurcitases
and

stockbased compensation and other

Intecconspany balances

Net cash used for provided financing activities

Net decrease increase in cash and cash

eqttivalettts

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of

year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR

530.527

143849

29365

199303 59.842 10719 248426

4272 5583 II 9866
40 40

4272 5583 29 9826

66839 3.967 22125 48.681

10274 10274

118.805 126427 7622

195918 122460 14503 58955

887 176719 3813 179645

12908 172363 58343 243614

12021 349082 62156 423.259

YEAR ENDEI DECEMBER 31 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net
opetating earnings loss 333.526 225.548 25.170 200.378 333.526

Ad1ustments to reconcile net earnings loss to

tiet cash provided byop crating activities 439486 284210 1584 725280

Changes in assets and liabilities 26.332 63.056 28.639 200.378 139.629

Other
operating

activities net 23985

Net cash
provided by

used for operatnig
activities 108.307 121.718 1.885 228.140

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to
property plant and equipment 17939 14256 48 32.147

Other investing activities net
750 7.50

Net cash used for provided by investing activities 17.939 14.256 798 31.397

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIV1T1ES

Decrease in debt 106125 5012 111037

Common stuck dividends repurcliases
and

stock-based
conipensation

and other 57124 57129

Intercompany balances 42.560 59.166 16606

Net cash
vised for provided by fittaitcing activities 120589 64178 16601 168166

Net decrease increase in cash and cash

equivalents
30221 43284 15514 28577

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of

year
43129 129.079 42829 21.5.037

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR 12908 172.363 58.343 243614
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2006

thousasis

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net
operating earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net
earnings

to

net cash
provided by operating

activities

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other operating activities net

Net cash used for
provided

by
operating

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Net additions to property plant
and equipment

Other
investing acttsities net

Net cash ttsed for provided by invesung activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Increase decrease in debt

Common stock dividends reptirchases
and

stock-based
conipensatton

and other

Intercompany balances

Net cash
prosided by used fat Bttanctng activities

Net decre.tsc increase it
cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning
of

year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR

103.400 359.942

153635

103.400 480.932

18011

GUARANTOR

ERG INC SUBSIDIARIES

NON
GUARANTOR
SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING CONSOLIDATE
ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

359942 61091 42.309

62606 89040 1992

438.743 I6.944 28.645

18.011

34.206 33.187 15.656 14.637

31280 21372 1187 53839

2250 2250

31.280 21372 1.063 51.589

33363 5.216 28.147

237493 48 237541

230.850 237.229 6.379

26720 242445 6331 209394

38766 230630 23050 246346

81.895 359709 19779 461.383

43129 129079 42.829 215.037
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Note Subsequent Events

In January 2009 RMC entered into the RMC Repurchase Facili $60.0 million repurchase facility with Guaranty Bank

and Buyers The facility became effective January 15 2009 and replaces the RMC Credit Agreement that expired in January

2009 The agreement contains an initial interest rate of LIBOR plus margin of 1.75
percent subject to LIBOR floor

of 2.0 percent The facility contains representations warranties covenants and provisions defining events of default The

covenants require RMC to maintain minimum net worth and certain financial ratios

In January 2009 the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement çthe Amendment among the

Company J.P Morgan Chase Bank NA as Agent
and the lenders listed therein which further amended its $550.0 million

unsecured revolving credit facility The Amendment among other things decreased the Companys borrowing availability

from $550.0 million to S200.0 million subject to further reduction if the consolidated tangible net worth is less than

$400.0 million changed the adjustments used to determine compliance with the definition of consolidated tangible net

worth covenant and reduced the base amount for the minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant defiult limit to

$300.0 million amended the leverage ratio restriction to he no more than 55.0 percent agreed to establish certain

liquidity reserve accounts in the event the Company fails to satis6y an interest coverage test and an adjusted cash flow from

operations to interest incurred test changed the restriction of the Companys book value of unsold land to 1.20x its

consolidated tangible net worth changed the borrowing base to allow for 100.0 percent use of unrestricted cash in excess

of $25.0 million less any drawn balances on the revolving credit
fiscility

established requirement
for the Company to

cash collateralize pro rata share of defaulting lenders letter of credit and
swing

line exposure
established an annual

common stock cash dividend limit of $10.0 million and increased the pricing grid which is based on the Companys

leverage ratio and public
debt rating as well as the interest coverage ratio The credit facilitys maturity date of January

2011 remains unchanged and the tmcommitted accordion feature has been reduced to maximum of $300.0 million

During
the first

quarter
of 2009 the Company repurchased $47.6 million of its senior notes for $35.9 million in the open

market

In January 2009 the Company and Oaktree Capital furmed limited liability company the Venture to acquire and

develop residential real estate prcjects Combining the Companys operational proficiency as production homehuilder with

Oaktrees expertise in investing in distressed assets allows the Venture to take advantage of the current dislocation in the

residential real estate market An executive committee comprised of representatives from both firms will make purchase

decisions The Venture will then provide the improvements and permits necessary to ultimately sell the projects as finished

lots The Company will have the right to option
all lots sold by the \Tcnture

Supplementary Data

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

DEC.31 SEPT 30istsL ept thae dau vsathtd DEC 31 SEPT 30 JUN 30

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenues 528233 543844 487881 416166 359790 737237 743734 .5 711114

Eariungs loss before taxes 89148 80679 189771 46166 206.111 94.521 88.825 30.641

Tax
expense

benefit 29236 14961 51868 16850 4201 397S1 ç36394 6196

Net elm ng lo 59912 65 718 241 639 29 U6 201 7101 740 52 431 44

Net earnings loss
per

cornrnCn share

Basic 1.40 1.54 5.70 0.69 4.80 1.30 1.25 0.58

Diluted 1.40 1.54 5.70 0.69 4.80 1.30 1.25 0.58

Weightedaverage conarnon

shares outstanding

Basic 42726 42607 42422 42232 42096 41958 42011 42485

Diluted 42726 42607 42422 42232 42096 41958 42011 42.485

2008

MAR 31

2007

JUN 30 MAR 31
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Report of Management

Management of the Company is responsible for the integrity and accuracy of the financial statements and all other

annual report information The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles and include amounts based on managements judgments and estimates

The accounting systems
which record summanze and report financial information are supported by internal

control systems designed to provide reasonable assurance at an appropnate cost that the assets are safeguarded and

that transactions are recorded in accordance with Company policies and procedures Developing and maintaining

these systems are the responsibility of management Proper selection training and development of personnel
also

contribute to the effectiveness of the internal control systems For the purpose
of evaluating and documenting its

systems of internal control management elected to use the integrated framework promulgated by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys systems evaluation and test

results were documented The Companys internal auditors regularly test these systems Based on its evaluation

management believes that its systems of internal control over financial reporting were effective and is not aware of

any material weaknesses

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm also reviewed and tested the effectiveness of these

systems to the extent it deemed necessary to express an opinion on the consohdated financial statements and

systems of internal control

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically meets with management the internal auditors and the

independent registered public accounting firm to review accounting auditing and financial matters Both internal

auditors and the independent registered pubhc accounting firm have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee

ordon Mime

Executive ice President and

ice President Control/er and

ChiefAccounting Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
THE RYLAND GROUP INC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries

as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 Our audits also

included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a These fmancial statements and

schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007

and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period

ended December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our

opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States The Ryland Group Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 23 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Los Angeles California

February 23 2009



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
THE RYLAND GROUP INC

We have audited The Ryland Group Inc.s internal control over fmancial reporting as of December 31

2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Ryland Group Inc.s

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over fmancial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Report of Management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over fmancial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit

preparation of fmancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion The Ryland Group Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders equity

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated

February 23 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Los Angeles California

February 23 2009



Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

The Company has procedures in place for accumulating and evaluating information that enable it to prepare
and file

reports

with the SEC At the end of the period covered by the
report on Form 10-K an evaluation was pcrforsned by the

Companys management including the CEO and CFO of the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rule 3a-I 5e promulgated under the Exchange Act Based on that evaluation the Companys

management including the CEO and CEO concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective

as of December 31 2008

The Company has committee consisting
of key officers including the chief accounting officer and general counsel to

ensure that all information required to be disclosed in the Companys reports
is accumulated and communicated to those

individuals responsible for the preparation
of the

reports as well as to all principal executive and financial officers in

manner that wiil allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

The Conipanvs management including the CEO and CEO has evaluated any changes in the Companys internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during
the quarterly period ended December 31 2008 and has concluded that there

was no change during this period that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys

internal control over financial reporting

At December 31 2008 the Company completed detailed evaluation of its internal control over financial reporting

including
the assessment documentation and testing of its controls as required by the Sarbanes-Oxlev Act of 2002 No

material weaknesses were identified The Companys management
summarized its assessment process and documented its

conclusions in the Report of Managcment which
appears in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data

NYSE Certification

The NYSE requires that the chief exectitive officers of its listed
companies certifr annually to the NYSE that they are not

aware of violations by their companies of NYSE
corporate governance listing

standards The Company submitted

non-qualified certification by its Chief Executive Officer to the NYSE last
year

in accordance with the NYSEs rules

Further the Company files certifications by its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with the SEC

accordance with the Sarhanes-Oxley Act of 2002 These certifications are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART Ill

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company

Position date elected to position

Name Age
Prior Business Experience

Chad Dreicr 61 Chairman of the Board of Directors smce 1994 President of the

Conipanv 1993-2008 Chief Executive Officer of the Company

since 1993

Larry Nicholson 51 President of the Company since 2008 Chief Operating Officer of

the Company since 2007 Senior Vice President of the Company

and President of the Southeast Region
of Ryland Homes

20052007 President of the Orlando Division of Ryland Homes

1999-2005

Gordon Mime 57 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the

Company since 2002 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company 2000-2002

Keith Bass 44 Senior Vice President of the Company and President of the South

Region of Ryland Homes since 2008 Senior Vice President of

the Company and President of the Southeast Region of Ryland

Homes 2007-2008 President of the Orlando Division of Ryland

Homes 2004-2007 Vice President of Land Resources for the

Southeast Region of Ryland Homes 2003-2004

Robert Cunnion III 53 Senior Vice President Human Resources of the Company since

1999

Eric Elder SI Senior Vice President Marketing and Communications of the

Company since 2000

David Fristoc 52 Senior Vice President Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of

the Company since 2005 Senior Vice President Controller Chief

Accounting
Officer and Chief Information Officer of the Company

ç2000-2005

Timothy
Geckle 56 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of the

Company since 1997

Daniel Schreiner 51 Senior Vice President of the Company since 1999 President of

Ryland Mortgage Company since 199$

Peter Skelly 45 Senior Vice Presideni of the Company and President of the North/

West Region of Ryland Homes since 2008 Senior Vice President

of the Company and President of the North Region of Rvland

Homes 2006-2008 President of the Chicago Division of Ryland

Homes 1999-2006
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The Board of Directors elects all officers

There are no family relationships between any director or executive officer or arrangements or understandings pursuant to

which the officers listed above were elected For description of the Companys employment and severance arrangements

with certain of its executive officers see the Companys Proxy Statenieni for
the 2009 Annual Meethi of Stockholders l.the

2009

iraxy Staienient which is filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act

Information as to the Companys directors executive officers and corporate governance
is incorporated by reference from the

Companys 2009 Proxy Statement including
the determination by the Board of Directors with

respect
to the Audit

Committees financial expert
and the identity of each member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

The Company has adopted code of ethics that is applicable to its senior officers directors and employees To retrieve the

Companys code of ethics visit www.rvland.com select Investors and scroll down the
page

to Code of Ethics

Item II Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement The Compensation

Committee Report to he included in the 2009 Proxy Statement shall be deemed furnished in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act as

resuli of such furnishing in this Item II

kern 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The inlormation required be this item is set fbrth on page
13 of this Annual Report on Form 10K and is incorporated

by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The inlormation required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required this item is incorporated by
reference from the 2009 Proxy Statement

PART 1Y

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

Page No

Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Earningsyears ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 34

Consolidated Balance SheetsDecember 31 2008 and 2007 35

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equityyears
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 36

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsyears ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 37

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 38

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts 71

Schedules not listed above have been omitted either because they arc inapplicable or because the required

information has been provided in the financial statements or notes thereto
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Exhibits

The following exhibits are included with this report or incorporated herein by reference as indicated below

3.1 Articles of Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form 0-Q for the quarter
ended March 31 2005

3.2 Bylaws of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996

4.1 Senior Notes dated as of anuarv 11 2005

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No 333-121469

4.2 Articles Supplementary of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No 333157170

4.3 Senior Notes dated as of Max 2005

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No 333-124000

4.4 Senior Notes dated as of May 30 2006

Incorporated by reference from Registration Starement on Form S-3 Registration No 333-124000

4.5 Rights Agreement dared as of December 18 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc and American

Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-A filed December 29 2008

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of lanuary 12 2006 between The Rvland Group Inc and certain financial

institutions

çlncorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed January 13 2006

10.2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dared October 17 2007 between The Rvland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed October 17 2007

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated February IS 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc

and certam uinancal institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed February 15 2008

10.4 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement
dated June 27 2008 between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed July 2008

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 22 2009 between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain financial institutions

Fikd herewith

10.6 Credit Agreement dated Januatv 24 2008 between Ryland Mortgage Company and Guaranty Bank

Incorporated by reference from Form S-K filed January 29 2008

10.7 RMC Repurchase Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Ryland Mortgage Company and

Guaranty Bank and Buyers

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed January 15 2009

10.8 2002 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Form 0-Q for the
quarter

ended June 30 2002

10.9 Amendment and Restatement of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Filed herewith

10.10 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

Filed herewith

10.11 Amendment and Restatement of The Riand Group Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

Filed herewith
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Exhibits continued

10.12 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 29 2005

10.13 Form of Amended and Restated Stock Unit Agreement

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April IS 2006

10.14 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Executive Officers

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.15 Amendment No to Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Executive Officers

Filed herewith

10.16 Non-Employee Directors Stock Unit Plan effective January 2005

Filed herewith

10.17 2000 Non-Employee
Director

Equity
Plan of The Ryland Group Inc as amended

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2000

10.18 2004 Non-Employee Director Equity Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended Mardi 31 2004

10.19 Non-Employee Direcior Stock Plan effective April 26 2006

incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 27 2006

10.20 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of April 20 2005 between The Ryland

Group Inc and Chad Dreier

incorporaied by
reference from Form 8-K/A filed May 2005

10.21 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between The Ryland

Group Inc and Chad Drcier effective lanuary 2005

Filed herewith

10.22 The Ryland Group Inc Dreier Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Incorporated by reference from Form I0-Q for the
quarter

ended September 30 2003

10.23 Amendment and Restatement of Thc Ryland Group Inc Dreier Supplemental Executive Retirement

Plan II

Filed herewith

10.24 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Chad Dreier

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.25 Amendment No to Form of Stock Unit Agreement
for Chad Dreier

Filcd herewith

10.26 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Supplemental Retirement

Plan

Filed herewith

10.27 Form of Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc and

certain executive officers of the Company

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2000

10.28 Form of Amendment No to Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc

and certain executive officers of the Company

Filed herewith

10.29 Form of 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Ryland Group Inc and certain

executive officers of the Company

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006

10.30 Form of Amendment No to 2007 Senior Exectitive Severance Agreement between The Ryland

Group Inc and certain executive officers of the Company

Filed herewith
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Exhibits continued

10.31 The Rvland Group Inc Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan II effective

lanuary 2005

Filed herewith

10.32 TRG Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective January 2005

Filed herewith

10.33 The Ryland Group Inc Performance Award Program

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.34 Amendment No to The Ryland Group Inc Performance Award Program

Filed herewith

10.35 The Ryland Group Inc Senior Executive Performance Plan

Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed April 30 2008

10.36 Amendment No to The Riand Group Inc Senior Executive Performance Plan

Filed herewith

10.37 1_ease Agreement dated as of December 29 1999 by and between The R.yland Group Inc and

Kilroy Realty Group

Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1999

T0.38 First Amendment to Office Building Lease dated August 26 2005 by
and between

The Ryland Group inc and Kiiroy Realty L.P

incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

10.39 Lease Agreement
dated February 28 2006 by and between The Ryland Group Inc and

PCCP HG Kierland LLC

incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed March 2006

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Filed herewith

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

çFiled herewith

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Filed herewith

24 Power of Attorney

Filed herewith

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarhanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxicy Act of 2002

Ftirnished herewith

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of 2002

Furnished herewith
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The Ryland Group Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts

BALANCE AT CHARGED TO
BEGINNING COSTS ANI
OF IERIOL EXPENSES

DEDUCTiONS
ANT

TRANSFERS

BALANCE AT

EN OF

IERIOD
iboioandi

Valuation allowances

Hornebuidrng inventories

2008 488106 257389 300307 445188

2007 59735 503.955 C75.584 488.106

2006 480 62.910 366U 59735

Other real estate assets

2008 2381 45640 14451 33570

2007 670 2.24 530 2381

2006 263 549 I42 670

Deferred tax assets

2008 75166 143784 218.950

2007 75166 75166



Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements
of Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the Company has duly caused this report

to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

The Ryland Group Inc

Chad Ireier

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

February 25 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act this
report

has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Principal Exe utive jeer

Chad Dreier

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer

February 25 2009

Q6ion AThhlne

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

February 25 2009

February 25 2009

majority of the Board of Directors Chad Dreier Leslie FrØcon Roland Hernandez William Jews

Ned Mansour Robert ellor Norman Metcalfe and Charlotte St Martin

B\
Timothy Geckle

As Attorney-in-Fact

Vice President

Chief Accounting Officer

February 25 2009
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Index of Exhibits

10.5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 22 2009 between The Rvland Group Inc and

certain financial institutions

10.9 Amendment and Restatement of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan of The Ryland Group Inc

10.10 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

10.11 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

10.15 Amendment No to Form of Stock Unit Agreement
for Executive Officers

10.16 Non-Employee Directors Stock Unit Plan effective January 2005
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Executive Retirement Plan II
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10.26 Amendment and Restatement of The Ryland Group Inc Semor Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan
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certain executive officers of the Company

10.30 Form of Amendment No to 2007 Senior Executive Severance Agreement between The Rvland Group Inc

and certain executive officers of the Company
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10.32 TRG Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective January 2005
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32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal
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Exhibit 12.1 Computation
of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

in ihoiisaiids c-nip ratio

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Consolidated
pretax income loss 521.212 721.051 567108 420.098 405764

Share of distiibutcd loss income of 50%orlessowned affiliates net

of
equity pickup

5.772 315 260

Amortization of capitalized interest
41.764 45483 48708

Interest
53.242 66697 71955

Less interest capitalized during the period
52015 65959 71.750

Interest
portion

of rental
expense

5.639 5.678 7736

EARNINGS LOSS

Interest

Interest
portion

of rental
expense

FIXED CHARGES

564070 772.635 624.017

53.242 66.697 71955 62.122 47.109

5.639 5678 7736 8911 7416

58.881 72375 79691 71.033 54.525

9.58 10.68 7.83 5.21 5.38

As of December 31 2008 the following subsidiaries represent
the significant subsidiaries of the Registrant

Ratio of earnings loss to fixed charges

Exhibit 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Ryland Homes of California Inc Delaware corporation

Ryland Homes of Texas Inc Texas corporation

The Ryland Corporation
California

corporation

Ryland Organization Compan California corporation

342

41.689

62122

62024

8.9 11

369742

43900

61146

47109

46889
7.416

293082



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-100 167 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group

Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-1 13756 and related Prospectus
of The Ryland Group

Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-121469 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group

Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-124000 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group

Inc

Registration Statement Form S-3 No 333-157170 and related Prospectus of The Ryland Group

Inc

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 33-32431 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc Retirement

Savings Opportunity Plan

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-68397 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc Executive

and Director Deferred Compensation Plan and The Ryland Group Inc Non-Employee Directors

Stock Unit Plan

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-133602 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc 2006

Non-Employee Director Stock Plan and

Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-150465 pertaining to The Ryland Group Inc 2008

Equity Incentive Plan

of our reports dated February 23 2009 with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule

of The Ryland Group Inc and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of The Ryland

Group Inc included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 25 2009



Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney

The undcrsigned directors of The Rvland Group Inc I\larvland corporation constitute and
appoint Timothvj

Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent

and attorney-in-fact to sign
for the undersigned in their respective names as directors of lie Rvland Group Inc the

Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc for the fiscal ear ended December 31 2008 and any

amendments thereto to he filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act as amended

Dated February 25 2009 6IL
Chad Dreier Chairman of ti Boaid and

Chief Executive Officer

Leslie FrØcon Direc

Ned Mansour Director

Robert Mellor Director

No anj Metcalfe Di tot

Charlotte St Martin Director



Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of ihc Rvland Group Inc \IarvIand corporation constitute and appoint Timothy

Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent

and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned in their respective names as directors of The Rvland Group Inc the

Annual Report on Form 10-K ofIhe Ryland Group inc for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and any

amendments thereto to he filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act as amended

Dated February 25 2009

Chad lreier Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Roland Hernandez Directo

William Jews Director

Ned Mansour Director

Robert Mellor Director

Norman Metcalfe Director

Charlotte St Martin Director



Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Rvland Group Inc \larvland corporation constitute and appoint Timothy

Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent

and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned in their respective names as directors of The Rvland Group Inc the

Annual Report on Form 10-K ofIhe Rvland Group Inc for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and any

amendments thereto to he filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act as amended

Dated February 25 2009

Chad Dreier Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Leslie FrØcon Director

Roland Hernandez Director

Robert Mellor Director

Norman Metcalfe Director

Charlotte St Martin Director



Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Rvland Group Inc Maryland corporation constitute and appoint Timothvj

Geckle the true and lawful agent and attorney_in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent

and attorney-in-fact to sign
for the undersigned in their respective names as directors of The Rvland Group Inc the

Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and any

amendments thereto to he filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act as amended

Dated February 25 2009

Chad Dieier Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Leslie FrØcon Director

Roland Hernandex Director

William Jews Director

Ned 4nour Iirfctor

Robert Mellor Director

NormanJ Metcalfe Director

Charlotte St \Iartin Director



Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney

The undersigned directors of The Rvland Group Inc \Iarvland corporation constitute and appoint Timothy

Geckle the true and lawful
agent

and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with full power and authority in said agent

and attorney-in-fact to sign for the undersigned in their
respective names as directors of The Rvland Group Inc the

Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 and any

amendments thereto to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act as amended

Dated February 25 2009

Chad Dreier Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Leslie FrØcon Director

Roland Hernandez Director

William Jews Director

Ned Mansour Director

Robert J\Icllor Director

St Martin Director



Exhibit 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

Under the Exchange Act

Chad Dreier certify that

have revie\ved this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc the Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of matenal fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in hght of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the penod covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition results of
operations

and cash flows of the Company as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The Companys other certifying officer and are responsible for estabhshing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and lSd-15f for the Company and have

Iesigned such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the Company including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the penod in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehabihty of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting pnnciples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the Companys most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting and

The Companys other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the Companys auditors and the audit committee of the Companys board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Companys ability to record process
summarize

and report
financial information and

Any fraud whether or not matenal that involves management or other employees \vho have significant role

in the Companys internal control over financial reportin

Date Febmaiy 25 2009 __________________________________________________

Chad Dreier

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

Under the Exchange Act

Gordon Ahine certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Ryland Group Inc the Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in hght of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects
the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The Companys other certifying officer and are responsible for estabhshing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the Company and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the Company including its

consohdated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to he designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehabihty of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accountmg pnnciples

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this
reporr

based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this
report any change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting

that occurred

during the Companys most recent fiscal
quarter

that has materially affected or is reasonably hkely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting
and

The Companys other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our mosr recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the Companys auditors and the audit committee of the Companys board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation
of internal control over financial

reporting
which are reasonably hkely to adversely affect the Companys abibtv to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud \vhether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Date February 25 2009 __________________________________________________
GordKn Alilne

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

Chad Dreier Chairman and Chief Executive Officer principal executive officer of The Ryland Group Inc the

Company certify to the best of my knowledge based upon review of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008 of the Company the Report that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a of the Exchange Act as amended and

The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents in all material respects

the financial condition and results of
operations

of the Company

Chad Dreier

February 25 2009



Exhibit 32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Pnncipal Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

Gordon I\hlne Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pnncipal financial officer of The Ryland Group Inc

the company certify to the hest of my knowledge based upon review of the .\nnual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company the Report that

The Report fully comphes with the requirements of Section 13a of the Exchange Act as amended and

The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Report fairly presents in all material respects

the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company

Gordon Milne

February 25 2009


